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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!
603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 E*t. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

March 20, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into Retroactive amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors
listed in bold below to continue to provide In-Home Care. Home Health Aide, and Nursing
Services by increasing the total price limitation by $254,631.52 from $24,384,719.10 to
$24,639,350.62 with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2026, effective
retroactive to November 1, 2024 upon Governor and Council approval. 53.14% Federal Funds
46.86% General Funds.

Contractor

Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Current

Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount
G&C

Approval

Androscoggln
Valley Home
Care Services

Berlin, NH

157347
Coos

County $2,496,649.14 $188,583.52 $2,685,232.66

O:

6/29/22.
Item #47

A1:

6/28/23.
Item #62

A2:

6/12/24.
item #30A

Area HomeCare
Family Services.

Inc.

Portsmouth. NH

166931
Rockingham

County $5,257,400.00 $0 $5,257,400.00

O;

6/29/22,
item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item #30A

Easter Seals

New Hampshire,
Inc.

Manchester. NH

177204

Hillsborough
(Manchester,

Milford.
Nashua) and

Strafford

Counties

$3,105,393.92 $0 j $3,105,393.92

0:6/29/22.
item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24.
item #30A
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Lakes Region
Community
Services

Council

Laconia, NH

177251

Belknap,
Grafton and

Sullivan

Counties

$2,596,952,00 $0' $2,596,952.00

0:

6/29/22,
item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2;

, 6/12/24.
item #30A

Visiting Nurse
Home Care &

Hospice of
Carroll County
North Conway.

NH

225191
Carroll

County
$606,219.72 $0 $606,219.72

0:

6/29/22,
item #47

A1;

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item #30A

VNA at HCS,
Inc.

Keene. NH

177274
Cheshire

County
$2,940,175.60 $0 $2,940,175.60

0:

6/29/22,
: item #47
A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24.
;ltem#30A

Waypoint
.Manchester!

NH

177166

Hlllsborough
and Merrimack

Counties

:  $5,775,917.80

i

$66,048.00

1

$5,841,965.80

0:

6/29/22,
Item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
Item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
Item #30A

Cornerstone

VNA

Rochester, NH
230881

Strafford

County
$552,254.48 $0 $552,254.48

0:

10/19/22,
,item #21
A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item #30A

Lake Sunapee
Community

Health Services

New London,
NH

174248
Sullivan

County
$439,348.00 $0 $439,348.00'

0:

10/19/22,
item #21

A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item #30A
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North Country
Home Health &

Hospice
Agency, Inc.
Littleton, NH

154643
Grafton

County $351,220.44 $0 $351,220.44

0:

10/19/22,
item #21

A1:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item #30A

The Visiting
Nurse

Association of

Franklin

Franklin, NH

154177

I
1

j

Gelknap and
Merrimack

Counties
$263,188.00 $0 $263,188.00

0:10/19/2

2. item
#21

Al:

6/28/23,
item #62

A2:

6/12/24,
item#30A

Total $24,384,719.10 $254,631.52 $24,639,350.62

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
vyithin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to reimburse the Contractors for services provided since
November 1. 2024, and to enable the Contractors to maintain standard service levels. The two
contractors did not have enough service units to ensure coverage of existing enrolled clients who
required an increase in support to stabilize their care plans. This request is to mitigate the risk of
service reductions, thereby preventing the necessity for more intensive interventions. SPY 2024
had to be closed out financially before the Department could amend the contracts, which is why
this request is delayed and retroactive. Medicaid rates for home health services increased, which
resulted in the Department also standardizing these rates for Title III & Title XX home health
services, which resulted in a decrease in the overall service units associated with these contracts.
Additional funding is necessary to maintain current utilization levels.

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding to the two Contractors that
have had an increased need to maintain nursing service levels and avoid a necessary reduction
in services for clients. The Contractors will continue providing uninterrupted In-Home Care, Home
Health Aide, and Nursing services to support older, isolated adults. 60 years of age and over, and
adults between 18 and 59 years of age who have a chronic illness or disability to live as
Independently as possible, safely and with dignity. Thei Department will continually assess
utilization data to ensure adequate funding is being allocated to areas of the state who are
demonstrating the greatest need.

Approximately 3,320 individuals will be served in State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.
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Services provided by the Contractors include;

•  In-Home-Care services: Older Americans Act Title III and Title XX programs,
including household maintenance and housekeeping: and meal planning and
preparation.

•  Home Health Aide services: Assistance with managing individual personal care
needs, including bathing and grooming.

•  Nursing services: Conducting medical needs evaluations and developing a nursing
care plan to support individuals in their homes, general licensed practical nurse or
registered nurse duties including assistance with preparing and administering
medications, providing health evaluations, and developing health and wellness
plans.

The Department will continue to monitor services through review of the Contractor's
required quarterly reports and through conducting site/desk reviews as necessary, as determined
by the Department.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the two
Contractors wiW be unable to provide support to isolated, and frail adults 60 years of age and over,
and adults between 18 and 59 years of age, who have a chronic illness or disability, which would
result in the two Contractors reducing or terminating client services or potentially transferring
clients to other providers.

Sources of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.044, FAINs
2201NHOASS, 2301NHOASS, and 2401NHOASS; ALN 93,667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR
2201NHSOSR, 2301NHSOSR, 2401NHSOSR.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully Submitted

Co

s

l/Ud
Lol;i\^. Weaver

lissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to joiti communitiesand families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT
SERVICES, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS (50% Fed 50% Gen)

AV Home Care

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased •

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103.890.22 $ $  103,890.22
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,890.22 $ $  103,890.22
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,929.70 $  54,291.76 $  158,221.46
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,929.70 $  54,291.76 $  158,221.46

' Subtotal $  415,639.84 $  108,583.52 $  524,223.36

Area Home

Care

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 70,584.00 $ $ 70,584.00
2024 540-500382 . SS Contracts multiple $ 70,584.00 $ $ 70.584.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 70,592.00 $ $ 70,592.00
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 70,592.00 $ $ 70,592.00

Subtotal $ 282,352.00 $ $ 282,352.00

Cornerstone



Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 38 Contracts multiple $ 6,272.00 $ $ 6,272.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts . multiple $ 6,272.00 $ $ 6,272.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ 6,267.24 $  . $ 6,267.24
2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ 6,267.24 $ $ 6,267.24

8ubtotal $ 25.078.48 $ $ 25,078.48

Easter Seals

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  66,516.00 $ $  66,516.00
2024 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  66,516.0.0 $ $  66,516.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  66,508.96 $ $  66,508.96
2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  66,508.96 $ $- 66,508.96

8ubtotal $  266,049.92 $ $  266,049.92

Franklin VNA

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts ' multiple $ 7,200.00 $ $ 7,200.00
2024 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ 7,200.00 $ ■$ 7,200.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ 7,200.00 $ $ 7,200.00
2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ 7,200.00 $ $ 7,200.00

Subtotal $ 28,800.00 $ $ 28,800.00



Lake Region

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 90,456.00 $ $ 90,456.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 90,456.00 $ $ 90,456.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 90,464.00 $ $ 90.464.00
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 90,464.00 $ $ 90,464.00

Subtotal $ 361,840.00 $ $ 361,840.00

Lake Sunapee

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33,384.00 $ $ 33,384.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33,384.00 $ $ 33,384.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33,392.00 $ $ 33,392.00
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33,392.00 $ $ 33,392.00

Subtotal $ 133,552.00 $ $ 133,552.00

North Country
HHH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts ' multiple $  76,532.00 $ $  76.532.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  76,532.00 $ $  76,532.00



2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  76,522.22 $ $  76,522.22
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  76,522.22 $ $  76,522.22

Subtotal $  306,108.44 $ $  306,108.44

Visiting Nurse

HCH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 39,800.00 $ $ 39,800.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 39,800.00 $ $. 39,800.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 39,809.86 $ $ 39,809.86
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 39,809.86 $ $ 39,809.86

Subtotal $ 159,219.72 $ $ 159,219.72

VNA at HCS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts niultiple $ 16,548.00 $ $ 16,548.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 16,548.00 $ $ 16,548.00
2025 540-500382 - SS Contracts multiple $ 16,543.80 $ $ 16,543.80
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 16,543.80 $ $ 16,543.80

Subtotal $ 66,183.60 $ $ 66,183.60

Waypoint



Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,515.00 ■$ $  239,515.00
2024 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,515.00 $ $  239,515.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,531.90 $  33,024.00 $  272.555.90
2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,531.90 $  33,024.00 $  272,555.90

Subtotal $  958,093.80 $  66,048.00 $  1,024,141.80
Total 7872 $  3,002,917.80 $  174,631.52 $  3,177,549.32

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT
SERVICES, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT (60% Fed 40% Gen)

AV Home Care

Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130098 $  514,800.00 $ $  514,800.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $- 514,800.00 $ $  514,800.00
2025 543-500385 88 Contracts multiple $  514,800.00 $  40,000.00 $  554,800.00
2026 543-500385 88 Contracts multiple $  514,800.00 $  40,000.00 $  554,800.00

8ubtotal $  2,059,200.00 $  80,000.00 $  2,139,200.00

Area Home

Care

Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130098 $  1,240,008.00 $ $  1,240.008.00



2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  1,240,008.00 $  ■ $  1,240,008.00

2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  1,240,016.00 $ $  1,240,016.00

2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  1,240,016.00 $ $  1,240,016.00

Subtotal $  4,960,048.00 $ $  4,960,048.00

Cornerstone

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  128,040.00 $ $  128,040.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  128,040.00 $ $  128,040.00

2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  128,048.00 $ $  128,048.00

2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  128,048.00 $ $  128,048.00

Subtotal $  512,176.00 $ $  512,176.00

Easter Seals

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  702,336.00 $ $  702,336.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  702,336.00 $ $  702,336.00

2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  702,336.00 $ $  702,336.00

2026 543-500385. SS Contracts multiple $  702.336.00 $ $  702,336.00

Subtotal $  2,809,344.00 $ $  2,809,344.00

Franklin VNA



Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 50,760.00 $ $ 50,760.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 50,760.00 $ $ 50,760.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 50,768.00 $ $ 50,768.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 50,768.00 $ $ 50,768.00

Subtotal $ 203,056.00 $. $ 203,056.00

Lake Region

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(C^ecreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  569,472.00 $ $  569,472.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  569,472.00 $ ■$ 569,472.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple .$ 525,584.00 $ $  525,584.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  525,584.00 $ $  525,584.00

Subtotal $  2,190,112.00 $ $  2,190,112.00

Lake Sunapee

Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  -48,132.00 $ $  48,132.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  48,132.00 $ $  48,132.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts ■ multiple $  84,016.00 $ $  84,016.00
2026 -543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  84,016.00 -$ $  84,016.00

Subtotal $  264,296.00 $ $  264,296.00



North Country
HHH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

1

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

4

Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 1,956.00 $ $ 1,956.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 1,956.00 $ $ 1,956.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 9,952.00 $ $ 9,952.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 9,952.00 $ $ 9,952.00

Subtotal $ 23,816.00 $ $ 23,816.00

Visiting Nurse
HCH

4

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 108,000.00 $ $ 108,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 108,000.00 $ $ 108,000.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 108,000.00 $ $ 108,000.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $ 108,000.00 $ $ 108,000.00

Subtotal $ 432,000.00 $ $ 432,000.00

VNA at HQS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  714,744.00 $ $  714,744.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  714,744.00 $ $  714,744.00



2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  714.752.00 $ $  714,752.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  714,752.00 $ $  714,752.00

Subtotal $  2,858,992.00 $ $  2,858,992.00

Waypoint

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  1,196,952.00 $  . $^1,196,952.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  1,196,952.00 $ $  1,196,952.00
2025 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  1,196,960.00 ■  $ $  1,196,960.00
2026 543-500385 SS Contracts multiple $  1.196,960.00 $ $  1,196,960.00

Subtotal $  4,787,824.00 $ $  4,787,824.00
^ Total 9255 $ 21,100,864.00 $  80,000.00 $ 21,180,864.00

05-95-48-481010-2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT
SERVICES, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, GENERAL FUND MATCH FOR ARPA (85% Fed 15% Gen)

AV Home Care

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $ $
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $-

2026- 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00



Area Home

Care

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS. Contracts 48130619 $ $■ $
2024 540-500382 38 Contracts 48130619 - $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00

Cornerstone

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified
Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  8,000.00 $ $  8,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  7,000.00 $ $  7,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts (multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00

Easter Seals

Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $ $
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  30,000.00 $ $  30,000.00



2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  30,000.00 $ $  30,000.00

Franklin VNA

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  16,000.00 $ $ . 16,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  14,000.00 .  $ $  14,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ . $

Subtotal $  30,000.00 $ $  30,000.00

Lake Region

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 . $ $ $

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 - $ 45,000.00 $ $  45,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  )- $ $  .

Subtotal $  45,000.00 $ $  45,000700

Lake Sunapee



Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  8,000.00 $  . $  8,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  7,000.00 $ $  7,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00

North Country
HHH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 ■ SS Contracts 48130619 $  8,000.00 $ $  8,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  7,000.00 $ $  7,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00

Visiting Nurse

HCH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $ $
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00



VNA at HCS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130619 $ $ $  ■
2024 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130619 $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ $ $

2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ ,  $ $

8ubtotal $  15,000.00 $ $  15,000.00

Waypoint

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class-Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130619 , $ - $ $ _

2024 540-500382 88 Contracts 48130619 $ 30,000.00 $ $ 30,000.00
2025 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  . $ ■  $

2026 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $ - $ $

Subtotal $ 30,000.00 $ $ 30,000.00

Total 2638 $ 240,000.00 $ $ 240,000.00

05-95-93-930010-2606 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: DLTSS-
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS: HCBS ENHANCED FMAP-ARP (100% Fed)



AV Home Care

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ $
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  6,809.30 $ $  6,809.30
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  6,809.30 $ $  6,809.30

Franklin VNA

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

, Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  - $ $  . -
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  1,332.00 $ $ 1,332.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

/

2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  1,332.00 $ $ 1,332.00
/

Lake Sunapee

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ $
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  26,500.00 $ $ 26,500.00



2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple .X$ $ $

Subtotal $  26,500.00 $ $  26,500.00

North Country
HHH

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ $  ■
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts, 93009020 $  6,296.00 $ $  6,296.00
2025 540.500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $. $  ,
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $

Subtotal $  6,296.00 $ $  6,296.00
Total 2606 $  40.937.30 $ $  40,937.30
Grand Total $ 24,384,719.10 $  254,631.52 $ 24,639,350.62



Docusign Envelope ID; CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFE82ED528

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Home Health Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Androscoggin Valley Home
Care Services ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2022 (Item #47), as amended on June 28, 2023 (Item #62), and most recently amended on
June 12, 2024 (Item #30A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,685,232.66

2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1., to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 58.29% Federal Funds:

1.1.1. 9.76% Older Americans Act Title IIIB, as awarded on Septembers, 2022, February
13, 2023, and September 24, 2024, by the Administration for Community Living,
Title IIIB, Supportive Services, ALN 93.044, FAINs 2201NHOASS, 2301NHOASS.
and 2401NHOASS;

1.1.2. 47.80% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1, 2021, by the Social
Services Block Grant, ALN 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR;

1.1.3. .48% Older Americans Act Title IIIB-ARP, as awarded on May 3, 2021, by the
Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB-ARP, Supporting Services, ALN
93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6; and

1.1.4. .25% Enhanced FMAP-ARP, as awarded by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services.

1.2. 41.71% General Funds.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., lead in paragraph only, to read:

3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per unit rate in accordance with Exhibit C-1, Amendment
#3, Rate Sheet.

4. Modify Exhibit C-1, Amendment #2. Rate Sheet, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1,
Amendment #3, Rate Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFA-20

v7.12.23

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01-A03 Page 1 of3 Date

G-os
(WS
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this^Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to November 1,2024, upon Governor
and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

2/20/2025

OocuSignvd by;

Date Name: Melissa Hardy

Director, DLTSS

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

—0«cuSlgn«d by:

2/14/2025
— 7B1FC1228E6C4F2.,.

Date Name: Marge Sullivan

Executive Director

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.3

RFA.2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01 -A03 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12,23
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The preceding Amendmeht, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OocuSlgrxd by:

3/1/2025 '
—DocuSigMd by:

-748734844041460...

Date Name: Robyn cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.3

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C>1, Amendment #3, Rate Sheet

Adult In-Home Care - Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

7/1/2022 throuqh 06/30/2023 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 42.900 S12.00 $514,800.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5.000 SI 2.00 $60,000.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $38,384.00

Title IIIB Nursino 1/2 Hour 214 $25.73 $5,506.22

Subtotal 50.513 $618,690.22

7/1/2023 throuqh 06/30/2024 Service Units

/

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being

Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 42.900 $12.00 $514,800.00

Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5.000 $12.00 $60,000.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $38,384.00
Title IIIB Nursino 1/2 Hour 214 $25.73 $5,506.22

HCBS ARP In Home Services 1/2 Hour 354 $12.00 $4,248.00

HCBS ARP Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 144 $16.00 $2,304.00

HCBS ARP Nursino 1/2 Hour 10 $25.73 $257.30

Subtotal 51.021 5625.499.52

7/01/2024 throuqh 06/30/2025 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per .

Service

Total Amount of

- Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 34.675 $16.00 $554,800.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5,452 $16.00 $87,232.00

Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 3,737 $16.58 $61,959.46

Title IIIB Nursirto 1/2 Hour 140 $64.50 $9,030.00

Subtotal 44,004 5713.021.46

7/01/2025 throuqh 06/30/2026 Service Units

In Home Services Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Monthly Funding being

Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 34.675 $16.00 $554,800.00

Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5.452 $16.00 $87,232.00

Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 3.737 $16.58 $61,959.46
Title IIIB Nursino 1/2 Hour 140 $64.50 $9,030.00

Subtotal 44.004 $713,021.46

Overall Total 189.542 $2,670,232.66

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

RfA-2023-BEAS•06•HOMEH^Dl•A03

Exhibit C-1, Amendment «3, Rate Sheet

Contranor Initials:

Date:
2/14/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan,Secrciary ofSlaie of Ihe Sialc of New Hampshire, do hereby certify lhat ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY

HOME CARE SERVICES is a New H^pshirc Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June

24. 1982.1 further cenily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofijce have been r«eived and is in good

standing as far ns this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID; 62239

Certificate Number 0006320420

fCSI

a&i

o

A

711

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of NcwHanipshire,

this I3th day of September A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccreuiry of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. <4? /y u.
(Name of the elected Offi

hereby certify that;
cer of the CorporatioiVLLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Al ^ eV.UfCM^
tnnrnnrnlinrittiUjP Mnn-ml U(CorporaliorWibC Name)

2. The folloyving is a true c^y of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders/duiy called and
held on 20c3>d'. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

O  (Date)

VOTED: That list more than one person)
(Naifiie^nd Title of Contract Sionator^ /.

is duly authorized on behalf offp)fiM Ldjft j ̂\/U.t f \o enter into contracts or agreements v^th the State
' (Nameof CorporSlon/LlX)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment t>e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect.as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached, "mis authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positibn(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any '
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

K Dated:
Signature of Elected Officer

y Name: L UMSe VcUMcf'C '
)C Title: poA]t(> Of

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#: 948547 ANDR0VAL2

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (M^D/YYYY)

1/01/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED'BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A'CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER

IMPOK1 AN 1: It the certificate holder Is^an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such eridofsementfs).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

feSiEf^'-Sherrl Winslow
KVEX.1:855 874-0123

AimRFM- Sherrl.Winslowl^usi.com

INSURERiS) AFFOROING COVERAGE NAIC 9

iNSURERA; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services
795 Main Street

'Berlin, NH 03570

INSURER 8: Technology Insurance Company, Inc. 42376

INSURERC:

INSURER D; .

INSURER E;

INSURERF:

"T

IN

C

E

HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE fMY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
<CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

' UTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

"N5R
SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMMR)orYYYYl
POLICY exp 1.

(MM/OD/VYYV) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GlINERAL LUBILITV

OCCUR

PHPK2701454 12/02/2024 12/02/202S EACH OCCURRENCE $1:006.000
CL/UMS-MA( $100,000

MEO EXP (Aiiy dn« cMiaon) $5,000

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY $1,000,000
G£/n. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I 1 1 1 LOO
OTHER:-

GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A AU1

X

OM08ILE LIABILITY PHPK2701454 12/02/2024 12/02/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LtMIT
(Ea aeddmil t1.000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRy)
AUT^ ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

' NONOWNED
AUIOSONLY

B00a.Y INJURY (Par p«aon) $

BODILY INJURY (Per aecldani} $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
$

s

A UMBRELLA UAB

'excess LIAB

X OCCUR

.CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB891630 12/02/2024 12/02/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1:000.000

AGGREGATE $1,000,000

DED X RETENTION Sl 0000 $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABILJTY y / N
ANY PROPRieTQR/PARTNER/exeCUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMSER EXCLUDED? ' N
(M«nd«(0.y In NH) ' '
It y»«! datcribt unM'
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS baiw

N/A

TES4457177 07/0.1/2024 07/01/202£ .V P£R OTH.
A STATIITF PR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $500:000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L; DISEASE • POUCY"LIMIT $500,000
A Professional Liab PHPK2701454 12/02/2024 12/02/2025 $1,000,000/53,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. /LddlUorwl Rwnarks SCAduH, may iM tliaeitad I' mera tpaca la raqulrad)
This Evidence of Insurance Is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the holder
and does not amend, extend or alter the coverage, afforded by policies designated on the Evidence.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH, DHHS

Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street ,
Concord, NH ̂03301

-  1 - -

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S47657908/M47641450

01988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD nanrie arid logo are registered marks of ACORD

PJR2P
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Mission Statement

The mission of Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

is to responsibly provide the best personal care, homemaking,

and respite possible, according to each client's needs.

Vision Statement

A V Home Care Services is dedicated to the integrity and

wellbeing of the community and its citizens as unique individuals.

This includes acknowledging the cultural^ religious,, educational,

and ethnic differences among people, while maintaining a

standard of fairness and equality in rendering care to them.

F: Mission A'ision Staicmcnt BOD 5/08/18
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^VACHON Clukay CER.T/F/ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAf^TS

XT\7 Chcsmui Sireci • Manchesicr. New Hampshire 03104
Ci V_A_/MFAN Y r ̂  (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.yachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Androscoggin Valley Home Care
Services' ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services' internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there arc conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services' ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

f

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Manchester, New Hampshire
January 15, 2025
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2024 and 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

investments

Accounts receivable ;

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

2024

138,620

141,879

89,889
9,564

379,952

2023

154,792

189,923

73,320
9,625

427,660

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Land

Building and improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment-net ■

Investment in North Country Consortium

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

15,000

227,733

82,754
28,894

354,381
288,628

65,753
128

65,881

15,000

229,603

71,750
28,894

345,247
285,053

60,194
128

60,322

TOTAL ASSETS $ 445,833 $ 487,982

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

530

36,483

37,013

$  . 1,487
17,433

18,920

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,013 18,920

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board reser\'e for client financial assistance

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

385,914

2,906

20,000

408,820

406,398

62,664

469,062

$ 445.833 $ 487,982

See notes to financial statements

3
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Fees and grants from governmental agencies

Charges for services

Grants and contributions

Contributed professional services

Other

Town of Gorham contribution

City of Berlin contribution

United Way

Net assets released from donor restrictions

2024

861,699

48,225

58,890

2,865

9,796

14,000

19,500

53

2023

798,460

42,715

30,406

2,080

.  2,501

15,535

10,000

223

23,447

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS ,015,028 925,367

EXPENSES

Program Services:

Momemaker

Health Aide

Home Community Based Care

Total Program Services

539,476

103,531
128,612

771,619

520,366

1 15,934
121,975

758,275

Supporting Services:

Management and general

Total Support Services

TOTAL EXPENSES

323,651

323,651

1,095,270

254,930

254,930

1,013,205

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (80,242) (87,838)

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Grants

Net assets released from donor restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

20,000

20,000

(23,447)

(23,447)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, July 1

NET ASSETS, June 30

(60,242)

469,062

(1 11,285)

580,347

$ 408,820 $ 469,062

See noies tofinancial statements

4



Docusign Envelope ID: CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFEB2ED528

ANDROSCOCGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

For the Year Ended June 30. 2024

Program Services
Supporting

Ser\'ices

> Home Total Management
Health Community Program and Total

Homemaker Aide Based Care Services General Exoenses

Salaries and wages $  426,286 :g  82,424 $  104,798 $  613,508 $  163,852 $  777,360

Payroll taxes 27,328 5,419 6,449 39,196 13,827 53,023

Insurance 28,800 4,256 5,268 38,324 - 38,324

Dues and memberships 2,096 317 381 2,794 10 2,804

Marketing - - - - 2,251 2,251

Employee benefits - - - - 37,956 .  37,956

Miscellaneous - - - . 3,760 3,760

Office - - - - 64,585 64,585

Occupancy 147 192 26 365 22,651 23,016

Professional fees 10,339 4,329 4,103 18,771 2,044 20,815

Supplies 1,082 281 299 1,662 - 1,662

Telephone 2,083 307 372 2,762 - 2,762

Training 4,974 - - 4,974 - 4,974

Travel 30,389 4,481 5,561 40,431 1,369 41,800
Employer required expenses 1,414 541 •  470 2,425 31 2,456
Postage 2,721 672 728 4,121 867 4,988

Slate unemployment taxes 1,817 312 157 2,286 148 2,434

Depreciation - - - - 10,300 10,300

$  539,476 <E  103,531 $  128,612 $  771,619 $  323,651 $  1,095,270

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Supporting
Program Services Ser\'ices

Home Total Management
Health Community Program and Total

Homemaker Aide Based Care Services General ExDcnses

Salaries and wages $  421,519 JE  88,347 $  92,746 $  602,612 $  146,424 $  749,036
Payroll taxes 27,540 5,729 7,092 40,361 12,705 53,066

Insurance 17,857 4,954 6,008 28,819 - 28,819

Dues and memberships 1,041 647 452 2,140 737 2,877

Marketing ■ - - - 6,592 6,592

Employee benefits - ■ - - 33,526 33,526

Miscellaneous - - - - 4,165 4,165

Office - - - - 30,506 30,506
Occupancy 2,862 1,049 916 4,827 7,510 12,337

Professional fees 7,837 3,058 2,970 13,865 1,366 15,231

Supplies 3,224 1,254 1,249 5,727 - 5,727

Telephone 1,915 777 651 3,343 - 3,343

Training 2,657 13 15 2,685 - 2,685

Travel 27,473 7,540 • 8,402 43,415 347 43,762

Employer required expenses 429 258 111 798 537 1,335

Postage 2,004 843 789 3,636 564 4,200
State unemployment taxes 4,008 1,465 574 6,047 410 6,457
Depreciation - - - . 9,541 9,541

$  520,366 3;  115,934 $  121,975 $  758,275 $  254,930 $  1,013,205

See notes to financial statements
5



Docusign Envelope ID: CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFEB2ED528

ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERMCES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from clients and third-party reimbursements
Cash received from local governments and contributors
Cash received from United Way
Interest income

Other receipts

Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of Investments

. Redemption of investments

Purchases of equipment
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities

}

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year

2024

898,855

106,890

53

9,648

148

(758,042)
(305,909)

(48,357)

(36,961)

85,005

(15,859)

32.185

(16,172)

154,792

$  138,620

2023

789,873

62,347

223

2,365

136

(747,994)
(257,661)

(150.710

(189,923)

(189,923)

(340,634)

495,426

S  154,792

See notes to financial statements
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services (the "Organization") is organized as a nonprofit organization
and was incorporated on May 12, 1992. The Organization provides health aide and homemaker services
to clients of Social Service agencies and to the general public in the City of Berlin, New Hampshire and
surrounding areas of Coos County, New Hampshire.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations except as indicated hereafter. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
the following net asset classifications:

Nel Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, certain reserves for building improvements and for providing financial assistance to
clients in need.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions ~ Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
lime or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrietions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in
substance, unconditional. The Organization reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All
other donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, nel assets with donor restrictions
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

arc reclassifled to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consist of demand deposits, cash on
hand and all highly liquid investments comprised solely of certificates of deposit with a maturity of 90
days or less.

Investments

Investments, if any, consist of money market mutual funds and certificates of deposit with original
maturities of more than 90 days, but less than one year, and are carried at fair value.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in various financial institutions located in New Harnpshire. At times,
these balances may exceed federal insured limits. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, deposits with financial
institutions were fully insured. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The
Organization believes it is not exposed to any significant custodial credit risk on these cash and cash
equivalents deposits. ^

Accounts Receivable ,

Unconditional pledges are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value of the
estimated fair value. Conditional pledges are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. All accounts receivable are considered
collectible and expected to be received within one year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Organization's policy is to capitalize expenditures, for
major improvements and to charge to operations currently for expenses which do not extend the lives of
related assets in the period incurred. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line
method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Building and improvements 5 - 39

Equipment 3- 10

Furniture and fixtures 5-10

-s

Accrued Vacation

Full-time personnel accrue paid vacation at the rate of 10-15 working days per year. Part-time employees
earn vacation lime on a pro-rata basis. ^
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions, donations and miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

The Organization also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants,
which are conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue without donor restrictions when the Organization
has met those pcrfonnance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with the specific contract
or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to meeting performance requirements or incurring qualifying
expenditures are reported as either advances from grantors or revenue with donor restrictions, dependent
upon contribution terms and conditions. Amounts not yet received, but already awarded are recorded as
grants and contracts receivable.

The Organization recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the fonn of charges for health aid
and homemaker services when those services are provided to an individual not otherwise eligible for
services eovered by a Social Program or other external funding source, commonly referred to as "private-
pay."

Health Aide and Homemaker Services

Charges for private-pay health aide and homemaker services are invoiced monthly. Charges are based on
fixed fees dependent on the type of service provided, and do not incorporate variable consideration. The
Organization recognizes revenue for health aide and homemaker services at the point in time when
services are provided. The Organization recognizes accounts receivable for services provided in advance
of payment being received.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, employee

benefits and employer expenses, building occupancy, insurance, dues and memberships, supplies,
telephone services, training, and postage, which are all allocated on the basis of time and effort, as noted

previously. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Organization allocated indirect expenses for
Homemaker, Health Aid, and Home Community Based Care at rates of 75%, 14% and 11%, respectively.
During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Organization allocated indirect expenses for Homemaker,
Health Aid, and Home Community Based Care at rates of 63%, 20% and 17%, respectively. ,
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Credit Loss Expense

The Organization uses the reserve method for accounting for credit losses. No allowance for credit losses
has been recorded , as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, because management believes that all outstanding
receivables are fully collectable. No amounts were recognized as credit loss expense for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and-, therefore, has made no
provision for Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the
Internal-Revenue Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the
Code. The Organization is annually required to flic a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
(Form 990) with the IRS. ^

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Organization to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Organization had no
uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2024 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits
that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. The Organization is subject to
unrelated business income taxes (UBI) on its rental income, net of related expenses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the iransaetions. The fair values determined for financial instruments arc estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts which could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could-differ
from those estimates.

Rcclassirications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on net
assets as previously reported. '

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2016, the.FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The
objective of Topic 326 is to provide useful infonnation for decision making, by considering expected
credit losses on financial instruments. It requires financial assets which are measured on an amortized cost
basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. The adoption did not have a material

10



Docusign Envelope ID; CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFEB2ED528

ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

impact on the Organization's statements of financial position, activities, functional expenses, or the
statements of cash flows.

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. In the event the need
arises to utilize the board designated reserve funds for liquidity purposes, the reserves could be drawn
upon through approval by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position
date, comprise the following;

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $  138,620 $  154,792

Investments 141,879 189,923

Accounts receivable 89,889 73,320

Total Financial Assets 370,388 418,035

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (20,000) -

Board designated reserves (2,906) (62,664)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  347,482 $  355,371

NOTE 4—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The .Organization reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the PASS Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820) which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy arc described below.

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date.



Docusign Envelope ID: CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFEB2ED528

ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
\

•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that are not active;

•  inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

^ correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy, is based on the ,
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need
to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Cerli/icales ofDeposit: Valued at acquisition cost which approximates fair value.

Money market mutual Funds: Valued at closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Organization believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a
different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at fair
value:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2024

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 90,482 $ 90,482
Money market mutual fiinds $ 51,397 51,397

Total assets at fair value $ 51,397 $ 90,482 $ - $ 141,879

12
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 116,739 $ 116,739
Money market mutual funds $ 73,184 73,184
Total assets at fair value $ 73,184 $ 116,739 S $ 189,923

NOTE 5—ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization's primary source of revenues are fees and grants received from the State of New
Hampshire and Medicaid reimbursements of $767,143, and $742,468, for the years ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively. Revenue is recognized as conditions are met under the terms of the agreements on
a units of service basis. As of June 30, 2024, funding from the State of New Hampshire has been
approved through June 30, 2025. Other support originates as allocations from United Way, charges for
services for home community-based care programs and private charges for services, contributions and
other income.

NOTE 6—ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Accrued payroll and taxes $ 15,625
Accrued vacation 20,858 $ 17,379
Other 54

$  36,483 $ 17,433

NOTE 7—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 were comprised of $20,000 in support of Health
Force IDEA project.

NOTE 8—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables provide information about balances of receivables, contract assets and contract
liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Contract Contract

Receivables Assets Liabilities

June 30,2024 $ 3,088 $ - $ -

June 30,2023 $ 1,474 $ - $ -

June 30,2022 $ 2,804 $ . - $

13
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ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOME CARE SERVICES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9—RETIREMENT FLAN

The Organization offers a defined contribution retirement program (Simple IRA plan) to its employees.
The Organization contributes up to 3% of employee wages, for employees enrolled in the plan. Pension
plan expenses for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $12,103 and $13,567, respectively.

NOTE 10—IN-KIND SERVICES

The Organization received $2,865 and $2,080 for in-kind services for professional services for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Contributed services are valued at the estimated fair values
based on current rates for similar ser\'ices. Expenses associated with these contributed services have been
classified as "Professional fees" and allocated on the same basis as similar expenses within the statement
of functional expenses.

NOTE 11—CONTINGENCIES

Grants require fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the terms of the grant contract. Failure to
fulfill grant conditions could result in the retum.of the funds to grantors. Although that is a possibility, the
Board deems the contingency remote, since by accepting the gifts and their applicable terms it has
accommodated the objectives of the Organization to the provisions of the gift.

NOTE 12—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 15, 2025 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

14
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Margo Carmela Sullivan, BSN

Employmcin

August«No\rcmbcr 2019 Public Health Coordinator
Uttlcton NH ^ North Countfy Health Consortium

Coordinated public health acdvicie.^ for the North Countiy assuring drncly response to
r^onal needs and State rriandatcs. Assufcd.grant priorities rebtiec to Lead Poisoning
Prevention, H^adtis A Prcx-cndon, School Based Ru Oinic coordinadon. Medical Reserve
Corps volunteer recruitment and management, ̂'o.ur^ Adult Straieg)* training, and Public
Health Ad\4son' Council facilitation.

JanuaiyrAugust 2019 Integrated Delivxry Network QI Coach
Littleton, NH North Countiy Health Consprdum

Collaborated with partners in Region? Int^ratcd Deliver)' Network to ardcubtc goals
and track achievement of milestones as ourlincd in grant requirements. Coordinated Critical
'Time linicr%:ention trainings and meedngs for statewide regional CTI partners and Rq^bn 7
Cri Mini Learning CoUaboradvc.

Septcmbcr-2016-Dccember 2018 TCPI Practicc.Facilitator
Littleton, NH North Country Health Consoctium

Assured that QI prefects were idenddcd and implemented in'NH Scacoast ambulator)'
pnicdces so as to 'meet their milestones as rcqul^'d by die Transforniing Clinical Practice
Initbdvc, aiming to prq>arc the practices for iiTimlnent value- based reimbursetficnt.

'2001-2016 Executive Director A.V. Home Care Scrv'iccs

Berlin, NH

Ad\*anccd the charitable mission of A VHCS as a non-Medicacc cerdftcd home care

r^ncy wiiile assuring fiscal, regulatory, administrative and clinical intcgrit)' of the
organization and it.s programs. Worked effective!)- with staff, key stakeholders and panncrs
in multiple sectors over time, building rapport and trust

,1997-2001 Nurse Supervisor A.V. Home Care Services

Assured staff compliance with agency policies and procedures, as well as
Medicare home liealth standards of care for contracted I.NA ser\'ices.

orftnq7aDjab/-cj4Q-LP'ib<»aftfi-nw/df.nA :ni 6doiaAU3 uBjsnsoc
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I

1993-1997

BcHin, NH

Director of Nursing St. Vincent dc Paul Nursing Home

Diiccccd nursing services for 80- bed, Mcdicarc/Mcdicaid Ccrdficd Long- Tcrrh
Care facility, assuring regulatory compliance arxf quality of cacc.

1990-1993

San Diego, CA
Nurse Consultant IMED Corporation

Utilized infusion c.xpertise to assist sales force in dicir hospital evaluations and/or
in.stallations of new IV equipment, consulring ou clinical appUcarions across the US
and Canada. Trained hospital staff in both large and small settings cmpbying Train-
thc-Trainer strategies. Wrote clinical briefs for sales force.

1982-1990

Denver, CO
Nurse Manager Denver Quidrcii's Hospital

Su|Kr\-iscd more than 80 'all- RN staff on a medical/surgical/infectious disease unit
in regional teaching hospital. Key resource for medical students and residents.
Facilitated inter-departmental nursing coordination of services, managed patient
isolation per protocol, complcrcd Qualit)- reporting. Researched and instructed
nursing staff on different strains of meningiiis, implicadons for care and folbw up.'

1980-1982 Staff Nurse Denver Childrcn*s Hospital

Provided padcnt care for infants and toddlers in a team bxscd nursing .sctdng,
funcdoning as unit charge nurse ̂  assigned on -l-l bed medical/surgical/infectious
discasc Uriit. Trained a

Education

T974-1979 University of New Hampshire
Durham, NH

1970-1974

BcrUn, NH

Berlin High School

Bachelor of Science: Nursing
Minor: English Literature

High School Diploma

Snmwer / 07) Phillips Exefer A(adeaiy
Aflniwfd Sfttdy: L/^, y)/M/Of/jy and PhysioiojDf. lJ/rndurv
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Barbara Patry

Objective

To secure a challenging and responsible position that will allow me to utilize my accounting experience
and supervisory skills.

Summary or Qualifications

Nearly 20years ofexperience as aprofessional manager.

Vast knowledge of Microsoft Excel & Word.

Work on and proHcient with ADP Dealer Service system and ADP Inc. p^roll system.

Workonand proficientwith DealeiTrack service system.

Work on and proficient with QuickBooks system.

Function well both independently and as a team player; calm underpressure.

Goal^riented Individual with strong leadership capabilities.
1

Organized and efficient; productive in fast-paced, high pressure atmosphere.

Self-motivated; able to set elective priorities and meet impractical deadlines.

Experience

FINANCE DIRECTOR | A. V. HOME CARE SERVICES \ DECEMBER 2017-PRESENT
Provide professional finance management service for A. V.Home.Care Services. M4'\mge finances
and bookkeeping for company.

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT | NORDIC CONSTRUCTION SERVICES | MARCH 2017-DECEMBER
2017

Prvvlde.professional management service for Construction Company. Manage all finances and

bookkeeping for company. Responsible for all daily accounting and cash reconciliations. Perform all
Aspects of HRco include payroll processing. Responsible for providing owner with a daily operating

cash report.

OFFICE MANAGER 1AUTONORTH PREOWNED SUPERSTORE | JULY 2011-MARCH 2017

Provide professional management service for entire auto dealership. Manage all finances and
bookkeeping for company as well as supervise office personnel. Responsible for execution of aspects of

accounting to include AR/AP, cash recondliations, processing of deals and sales commission.^. Perform

all facets of HR to include payroll processing, associated tax preparation and submission and benefit
management Responsible for creation and calculation of daily operating cn.st reports and preparation

of monthly financial statements.
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department supervisor I DSD MANAGEMENT INC | MARCH 1988-JULY2017
OProvideprofesshnqlmahagementsenlceforemireBerllnCltyDeahrsMpautogroupmnaRemortgages forcomplete auto group, record dividend payments ifionthlyfrom ail associated companies
to parent company. Responsible for aUpcating a portion of company-wide expenses incurred i e data
processing expenses, egpl expenses, etc., to individual locations. Oversee advertising department and
11 department bpth of which provide service for entire company;

a Office Accouritihg -Responsible for. all aspects of accounting In fast paced Office environment Duties
include, but not limited to dally bank reconciJiaiions, dally online ACH transfers & wire transfers"

including shopping prices, purchasing and payment to all vendors, accounts
receivable. Coop advertising reimbursernents. demo logs, general journal entries.maiiuenance of DOC
and creation of white books. '

''^5^oji:AccountabIe for all phases of the payr^ Duties include inputting weekly payroll
performing all aspects of Human Resource from maintaining insurances, time cardsandemployee'personnel files to generating entire auto group's 401k weekly,file transfer.

□ W^n^nty Processing -First Extended Service Contract warranty maintenance. These duties Include
submission of final document s service department vendor, pfpceisslng of service contract
cancellations when notified by appropriate party, and input of alfauthonzed.cla.ims'associatcd. with the
*S0rvtcc contrdct*

COORDINATOR | NORTH GOUNTRV VVEEKLY (1987-1986
Resppnsible-for calculating prfces pf ads for various sizes & rates..
Coordinated cfeatlqn ofads'.with actual layout in the newspaperin a timely manner-.
Responsible for servicing customers by teJeplione or on site.

CREW CHIEF I MCDONALD'S RESTAURANT 11982-1987
Trained and supemse.d new employees. Ran shlfts-interacted ivith employee's aiicl guests.

BOOKKEEPER ( WILFRED'S. RESTAURANT | 1987
Accountable for.pli aspects of record l<eeping includi ng, but notlimited to; payroll calculation, tax
payments, checking account,reconciliations, placing-supply orders, AP and AR.

RIDE OPERATOR I STORYLAND j 1900-1981
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Education

US ARMY RESERVE 1986-1988, PFC, MILITARY POLICE

NHCTC, BERLIN NH 1985-1986, INTENDED MA|OR MID-MANAGEMENT

UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT. BURLINGTON VT1983-1984 INTENDED MAJOR PHYSICAL^
THERAPY

BERLIN HIGH SCHOOL, BERLIN NH 1983 GRADUATE

•Page '3



Doojsisn Envekape D; C03E7580-08BMC81.BFF3.74BFEB2E0528

MICHELLE LIBBY

OBJECTIVE

Established |rasttive rapport with alumni by speaking clearly, actively
engaging in conversation and askirtg open-ended questions. Dependable
Experiericed with excellent client and project management skills. Action-
orientated with strong ability to communicate effectively with technology,
executive, and business audiences. Enthusiastic, versatile, and flexible

positive relationship builder seeking to leverage background into a project

specialist.of global sales operations rote with a progressive organttation.

SKILLS .& ABILITIES

Exir.emely organized

Data Entry

Conflict Resolution

EXPERIENCE

March.l994to

June'2002

fMay2003to

November 2010

November

2016 to

Sef^ember

2022

Waitress/ Mariager- Loaf Around Bakery-Gorham'NH

- Attended to new customers quickly to inquire about drinks, offer specials
knowledge and build positive connections for meal satisfaction.

■ Manage cash register, bookkeeping, inventory. Assign other employees to

job duties.

• Stocking, inventory, cleaning, preparation

LNA - Coos County Nursing Home Berlin, NH

■ Assist residents with bathing, grooming, dressing and feeding

■ Work with and under the supervision of a Registered Nurse

'Documentation of clients condition and also what (asks were completed
while on duty.

Homemaker - Androscoggrn Valley Home Care Services Berlin NH

; Assist clients with deaning. daily household tasks; shopping, errands

. Report to nursing staff and abnormal behaviors

. Document tasks done, mandated reporter for clients well being
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Lauren M Cosgrove

Work Experfehce

RN Staff Nurse
Morrison Nursing Home ■ Whitefleld. NH
January 2023 to Present

Pflrnary nur^e on A wing, dementia floor.

RN Clinical Assessor

Choices for Independence (CFI)' for State of New Hampishire and Medicald
December 2021 to Preserlt

i  . . . . .. . 1
Nursing assessment for eligibility for Choices for independence (CFI) for State of New Hampshire and
Medlcaid

RN Staff Niirse
Layfette Nursing Center Franconia - Franconia, NH
May 2022 to July 2022

Tra.yel RN staff. nurse. .Performed nursing care for short-term arid long-term floor including (but not. >
limited to) medication adriilnlstraripn. ordering and p/oper uisposeh wound care - rribriltorlrig/skiri \
assessment,-Cleansing .end dressing changes; Assessmerit of V5, all systems and cognitive function
related't'o-.dlagnosis'; Diabetic management • blood sugar levels;,sigris/symptoms hyper/hypbglycemla: •
insuliri.admlnistratibn per slldirig.scale/as ordered; Obtaining MO orders as needed;,EMR syst'emijWeekfy
■skilled assessments per protocol; LNA supervision. |
Pediatrfc Home Health.RN I
Maxim Healthcare.(3rpup -Martchester. NH |
June 2021 to December'2b21 i
Pedlatric RN I
Premie
Verit.bnd trach dependent' <
GT dependerit/NPO
inline suctipnprn
Overall, care and development-

Travel RN
Caledonia Home Health and Hospice-.Saint Johnsbury.VT , •
Decemtier 2019 to May 202.1 |

I

Travel RN/Adulf Home Healthcare Skilled Visits |
t

'  ■ ■ " ' r
I
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Patient assessment/care

Wound care^Vound Vac
PiCCIihe

PleurX Drainage System

GT/Ehteral feeds

Catheterization

Colostomy

Medication reconciliation/adminlster/order/sel up
A'dmihister Flu vacdne

Phlebotomy.

Oasls/POC

Education and support to patlent/famliy
Work/POC with interdisciplinary professionals
. Worked directly with physicians, social workers, pharmacists, patient and physicians, therapists and
agency professionals
• Collected and.interpreted patierit data
• Administered medication and treatments
• peilyered patienlTTdmiiy education
• Facilitated the plan pf care

• Formulated and .evaluated health care plans

• Admit patients

RN Pedlatric Block Time-Chronkally III
Commonriweaith Clinlcal Services - Winthrop. MA
August 2017 to December 2019

Patient assessment/Total care

485/patlent clinical summary
GT/Enteral feeds

Skin/Wound care

Resplr'atcTry th'erapy/CPT

Medication administration/reconciliation
Education and Support of faniily

• Worked directly with physicians, social workers, pharmacists, patient and physicians, therapists and
agency .coordinators"

• Collected and Interpreted patient data

• Administered medication anid treatments
• Delivered patient education

• Facilitated the.plan of care

• Formulated and evaluated health care plans

RN Pedlatric Block Tlme/Chronlcally III
Northeast Arc - banvers, MA
March 2004 to.Dece.mber 2019

Job Specifications
RN-Bldck TIrhe-Home Care Pediatrlc/Skilled Visits Adult
Case Management/485/Patlent clinical summary
Patle'nfassessme'nt/Total care
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GT/Enterai feeds

SkihAVound care

Cathetefization

Resplratoiytherapy/CPT ^
Medication admiriistration/recdnciliation

Education and Support of family

• Worked and managed monthly schedule, hiring and training of nurses for ̂ mily of two chronically ill
children ifor eighteen years.
• Worked dlrecliy with physicians, social v/orkers. pharrnacistl patient and physicians, therapists and
agency cdprdinators

• Provided.nursing care for up to 3 patients per shift:
r Collected and Interpreted patient data )
• Administered medication and treatments

• Delivered.patient-education >
• Faciljtated the plan of care . „
• Formulated and evaluated health care plans

RN Pediatrics Block Time Chronically III
Patient assessment/Total care

March 1997 to March 2004

485/PatiiBnt clinical summary
Patlentassessmeht/Tota.l.cafe

GT/£ntera! feeds-

Skin/Wound care
Respiratory therapy/CRT y
Medicatlon-admihlstration/reconciliation

Education and Support orfamily

RN Staff Nurse

Sub;acute;,Uhi£ - Wilmington. MA ^
September 199,6 to May 1997

Job Specifications

Sub-acute Uhlt-;5.8 bed unit

Patient Assessment/Cafe

Medication ,Adhfiinistrati6n/lV Therapy/TPN
Sklh/Wpuhd Care
Education?Support"t6 "patleht/family
Medication prde'ring
• Worked directly vl/ith physicians, patient and physicians."therapists and pharmacists
• Collected and interpreted patient data
J Facilitated.the plan of care

• Administered medication and treatments

PrlmarV Chaixje Nurse/RN/Geriatric/Psychlatric
Simmons Nurising Home. Inc - Blllefica, MA
August 1995'to August 1996

Job Specifications:



^ fDocusign Envetope ID: CD3E7580-988WC81-eFF3.74BFEB2ED528

'Geriatric and Psychiatric Nursing Home
Mmary Charge RN/Supervlslon of staff/ScheduiIng
Patient Assessment/Care

Medication Administration

Diabetic Assessment 6t .Insulin administration
Respiratory Assessment/Care

Phjebotbmy

Skin/Wound Care

Education

Diploma in Nursing In Nursing
Lawrence Memorial School of Nursing/Regis College • Medford. MA
September 1992 to June 1995

Nursing Licenses

RN

Expires: January 2025

state: KIH

Skills

• Home Health

• RN

? Staff Nurse"

• PrImaryCa're'Experiehce

• English

• Nursing

• MedlcatlohAdmlnlstratlon

• Vital Signs (10+ years)

• Home care

•'.EMR Systems

• Patient monitoring

• Phlebotomy

• Supervising Experience

• Discharge plarining

• Laboratory-Experience

• Patient'Care

• Travel nursing

' Pediatrics

' Tube feeding
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• Care.plans

• Acute care

Certifications and.Licenses

RN

BLS Certification

CPR Certification
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NH Department of Health and Human Services >

KEY PERSONNEL
r

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

'  .y ' ^

name JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Margo Sullivan Executive Director $9,830.00 $75,621.00

Barbara Patry Finance Director $9,252.00 $71,175.00

Michelle Libby Client Services Coordinator $20,592.00 $42,900.00

Lauren Cosgrove RN Supervisor $28,860.00 $57,720.00

$0.00 $0.00
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Lori A.Wnvr

Cbamltdeaer

McUm A.'H«rdy
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DlVmor^ OF LONG TERMSUPPORTS and SERViCES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271-5034 l-SDd-852-334S Ext. 5034

Pm: 603-371-5166 TDD Access: 1-600-735-2964 winr^btiMb;gev

Apfi!2S,2P24

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State'House

Con^d, New Harhpshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services; Division of Long Term Supports
and. Services; to amend existlrrg contracts with the Coritmctors Itist^ below to continue to pro^e
IrvHome Care, Home Health Aide, and Nursing services, by exercising a oohlract reriewal op^n
1^ increasing the to^l pride limitation by $12:051,987.36 frcmi $12,^2,731.74 to $24,^.719.10
8^ by exteriding the corhpletion dates from June 30, 2024 to June 30. 2026, effective July 1,
2024, upon Oovernor and Coundl aii^oval. 59% Federal Funds. 41% (^rteral Funds.
Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current
Amount

Increaao

(Docrease)
Reytaod
Amount

G&C

Approval

Androsodggln
Valley Horr^
Care Seivices

Berlin. NH

157347 Coos County $1,259,1 e?.74 $^237,459.40 $2,496,649.14

O.

6/iZ9^2,
Item jW7

A1:

6/28/23.
item«62

. Area HqmeCere
Famliy Services,

Inc.

Portsmouth. NH

166931 Rockingham
County

$2,636,164.00

'  \

$2,621,216,00- $5,257,400.00

0:
6/29/22,
item #47

A1:
.6/28/23.
Item #62

Easter. Seals
Kiew Hampshire,

inc.

Manchester,' NH

177204

Hillsborough
(Manchester,

Milford,
Nashua) end

Strafford

Counties

$1,667,704.00 $1,537,689.92 $3,105,393.92

0:6«9/22.
Item #47

A1:

6/2'af23.
item #62

Lakes Region
.. Cofhrnunity
Service CoiMcl)

■ Laconla. NH

177251

Belknap,
Graftonand

Sullivan

Counties

$1,364,856.00 $1,2.32,096,00 $2,596,952.00

0:
6/29/i^,
Item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
Item #62
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'  ExceUenqr. Opyemor Chi1»topher T. Sunuhu
end the Honorabie Counc9

Pege 2 of 3

Visiting Nurse
Home Cere &

Hospice of
Carroll County

North Ccnway,
NH

225191 ^ CanoU
County

$310,600.00 ■

"1
V. • •:

$295.619.'72 $606,219.72 .

O:

6/29/22, •
itGni#47

A1:

^8/23,
Item 462

VNA.atHCS.
,  Inc. .

Keene.NH

177274 Cheshire
County

$1,477,584.00 $1,462,591.60 $2,940,175.80

O:

6/29/22,
item #47

A1:

6/28/23,
iterh #82

Waypohit

Manchester. NH
177166

Hlllsbofough
and

Merrimack

Counties

$2,902,934.00 $2,872,983.80

•

•• ^

•  *

$5,775.9'17.80

0:
6/29/22;
Item #47

A1;

6/28/23,
Item #62

Cornerstone

VNA

Rochester,'NH

230B81 Straffbrd
County

$283,624.00 $268,630.48

•

$552,254.48

O;

10/19/22,
Item #21

A1;-

6/28/23,
item #82

Lake Surrapee
Community

' Health Services

New London.
NH

174248

>1 ■"

Suiitvan
County $204,532.00 $234,816.00

♦  •j

$439,348.00 '

0:
10/19/22.
item #21

A1:
6/28/23.
item #62

North Country
•Home Health &

Hospice
Agency, Inc.

Uttleton.NH

154643 Grafton
County $178,272.00 $172,948.44 S351.220.44"

0:
10/19/22,
item#21

A1:
6/28/23,
item #62 .

The Visiting
Nurse

Association of.
Fr^kCn

Franklin, NH

154177
Belknap and.
Merrimack
Counties

$147,252.00 $115,936.00 $263,188.00

0:10/19/2
.2, Item
#21

A1:
6/28/23,
Item #62

-
•• Total: $12,332,731.74 $12,051,987.36 $24,384,719.10
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hOs ExceBency, Governor Christopher T.^Sununu
end (he Honor^le Couwi)

Page 3 of 3

Funds are available in-the followir^ accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, wHh the authority to adjust budget line iterns
within the pnoe limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTice,
if needed and jusHfiad.

■ Sec attached fiscal details.

explanation

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide In-Home Care. Home Health Aide,
ar>d Nursing services statewide to support older, isolated adults, age 60 and older and to adults
between the ages of 18 arSd 59 who have a chronic Illness or disability, to live as independently
as possible, safely, and with dignity. ^

The in-home services provided by the Contractors are:

•  In-Home Care services: Older /ynericans Act Title IH and Title XX programs,
inctuding household maintenance and housekeepir^; and meal planning and
preparation.

Home Health Aide servicfls:. Assistance with managing Individual personal care
heeds, including bathing and grooming.

•  Nursing senrices: Providing nursing services, conducting medical needs
evaluations, and developing a nursing care plan to support Individuals in their
homes. Nursing services include generalJioensed practical nurse or registered
nurse duties, including assistance with preparing and admlnsiterlng medications,
providing health evaluations, and developing health and wellness plans. "

Approximately 3,320 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing quarterly reports submitted by the
Contr^ors and by conducting site/desk reviews, as necessary 1:^ the Department

As referenced In Exhibit A of the original agreements, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory deltvery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The.-
Department Is exercising Its option to renew services for two (2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request; the Oepartrrient
wilt be unable to provide these services that support pjder, isolated adults, and adults Who have
chronic iliness or disability with living independently and safely as possible. ;

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numtwr #93.044, ,FWN #2201NKOASS &
230iNHOASS; Assistance Usting Number #93.667, FAIN.#2101NHSOSR; Assistance Listing
Number #93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC: Medicaid Enhanced FMAP-ARP.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requ^ed to support this program.

':; Respectfully submitted.

t-s-

LonVV: Weaver

Coirnniss loner

7ht Dtportmtniof HetUth omi Human Seruioti'ifi$tion U to fain eommuniiiu and fomilita'
;  in prouidinf opportunitiet far ciiiunt to oehitv* hutelth and indtpentUnet.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment ff2

This Amendment to the Home Health Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "DepartmenD and Androscoggin Valley Home
Care Services ("the Contractor"). '

I  r" • • •

WH6REAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2022 (Item #47). as amerided on June 28. 2023 (Item #62), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain servlces^based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in

, consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement'of the parties and approval from the Governor and E)(ecutive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree, to arriend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30,2026 " ^

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,496,649.14 -v
jV

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1. to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 58.59% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 8.32% Older Americans Act Title lll-B, as awarded on September 8, 2022 and
February 13, 2023, by' the Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB,

;  Supportive Services. ALN 93.044; FAIN 220.1NHOASS and 2301NHpASS;

1.1.2. 49.49% Social Sen/ices Block Grant, as awarded on October 1, 2021, by the Social
Services Block Grant, ALN 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR;

1.1.3. .51% Older Americans Act Title IIIB-ARP, as awarded on May 3. 2021, by the
Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB-ARP, Supporting Services, ALN
93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6; and

1.1.4. .27% Enhanced FMAP-ARP, as awarded by'Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services. . "

1.2. 41.41% General funds.,

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3. lead in paragraph only, to read:

3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per unit rale In accordance with Exhibit C-1. Amendment
#2, Rate Sheet.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, Rate Sheet, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-1,
Amendment #2, Rate Sheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

.■t

Androscxiggin Valtey Home Care S«rvtcc5 A-S-1.3 Contractqr Ipi)
RFA-2023-BEAS-0e.HOMEH-01-A02 Page lot 3 * Dale.
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendnfient shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval. •

■IN WITNESS WHEREOF., the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

*  ;06euJlo(>«»ll»y:

I  'ThSiMi4/25/2024 \ a ^
:  mMi«0<0OP«W-

Date ■ Name: Melissa Hardy

"  Director, dltss ,

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

•DoctfSlBMdby;

- . 1 r
4/24/2024

by;

7BlPI*l23B£aC4F2..

Date Name; wargo Sullivan
Title. Executive Director

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.3
RFA-2C23-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01 :A02 Page 2 ol 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OwuMgwd Vf.

4/30/2024

OocitttoMd Vy.

1400.'.

Date " Name: ' Robyn cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor end Executive Council of.
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: [ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:

Title:

Androscoggin Valley Home Gere Services A-S«1.3

RFA-2023-BEAS-06.HOMEH^1 -A02 Page 3 of 3

■  ̂
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Lori A. WMvtr

Isiecria Coffliaiitsloorr

M(amA;H«rdy
Director.

0 JUN1^1'23 W 1:31 RCU

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OFrHEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmSION OF LONG TERM SVPFORTS AND SERVICES

103 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORO.NH 03301
603-271:6034 i<800652-334S£xt'5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TOO Acccu: 1-000-735-2964 www.dbhA.oh:|ov

June 9, 2023

His Excellency/Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honora!;iie;Council '

StateHouse.
Cdncord, New Hampshire 03301

.  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Hurnan Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into amendments to existing contracts.wlth the CorTtractors listed below to
increase funding to continue In-Hpme Care. Home Health Aide, and Nursing seryioes by
increasing the total price limitation by $240,937.30 from $12^691,794:44 to $12,332,73174 with
no change .tp the contract completion dates of June 30, 2024, effective July 1, 2023, u^n
Governor and C^unql approval. 87.55% Federal Funds. 12.45% General Funds.

Contractor

Name*

Vendor

Cp^
Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Ambunt
(»C

Approval

Androscpggln
Valley Home
eke Services
(Berlin.'NH}

157347 Coos County $1,237,380.44 $21,809.30 $1i259.1B9.74
0:
6/29y^,
item #47

Area

HomeCare

Family
Services. Inc.

(Portsmouth.
NH)

166931 Rockirtgham
County

1

$2,621,184 $15,000 $2,636,184

t

0:
6/29^,
Item #47

Easter Seals
Now

Hampshire,
Inc.

(Manchester,
NH)

177204

Hiilsborough
(Manchester,
.Miifbrd,
Nashua) end
Strafford

Cbur^ties

$1,537,704 $30,000 $1,567,704
O:

6^^29/22,
Item #47

Lakes Region'
Community
Services

Council

(Laconia, NH)

177251

Beiknap,
Orafton end
Sullivan

Counties

$1,319,856 $45,000 $1,364,856
0:
6/29/22,
item #47
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His ExceDency, Governor ChrfstopKer T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Visiting Nurse"
Home Care &

Hospice of
Carrol) County

(North
Conway. NH)'

22S191 CarroD

County
6295.600 615.000 . $310,600

0:

6/29/22.
item tf47

VNA at HCS.
Inc.

(Keene, NH)

177274 Cheshire

County • 61,462,564 615,000 $1,477,584
0;
6/26/22,
item A47

Waypoint

(Manchester.
NH)

177166

Hillsbofough
and. ,
Merrimack

Counties

62,872.934 $30,000 62,902,934
0:

6/29/22,
item d47

Cornerstone

VNA

(Rochester.
NH)

230861 Strafford
County

6276,624 $7,000 6283,624
0;

10/19/22,
item #21

Lake Sunapee
Community
Health

Services

(New London.
NH)

174248 Sullivan

County *

ff

5171,032 $33,500 6204.532
0:

10/19/22,
Item #21

North Country
Home Health

& Hospice
Agency. Inc.

(Littleton, NH)

154643 Grafton

County
$164,976 $13,298 $178,272

0:

10/19/22,
Itemfd

The Visiting
Nurse

Assodatlon of

Frahkltn

(Franklin; NH)

ft

1Mt77 .
Belknap and
Merrlmack
Counties

6131,920 $15,332 $147,252
0:
10/19/22,
Hem #21

Total: 612,091.794.44 $240,637.30 $12,332,731.74

Funds are anticipated to be available in the foilowtng accounts for State Fiscal Year 2024,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the ̂ ure operating budget, with the
author^ to adjust budget line Hems wHhin the price (iniltation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal.details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding to support the continuation of
ln<Ham6 Care. Home Health Aide, and Nursing services statewide, as well as to provide
additional Title III American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to support post-pandemic
programmatic needs to provide these supportive services to our most vulnerable poputations.
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His ExceOancy, Governor Christopher T. Sunijnu
and (he Honorebie Coundl

P898 3of3

Approximately 3,320 irtdividudls will be served during State Fiscal Year 2024.

These in-home sonrices provide assistance with managing individual personal care needs,
as well as monitoring health and safely needs of Individuals. The additional Title III ARPA funding
will maintain the health and safety of Individuals by providing health and safety products that.the
Indiviclual can use; as well as by providing additional supports for the staff that are providing the
In-home supports and services. The other additional funding will support:

•  Ih-Home Care services: Title III and Title XX programs, including household
maintenance and houseKeeping; and meal planning and preparation.

'  • Home Health Aide services: Assistance with managing irydividual personal care
needs, including bathing and grooming.

•  Nursing services: " Providing nursing services, conducting medical needs
evaluations, and developing a nursing care plan to support Individuals in their

'* homes. Nursing services include general licen^d practical nurse or registered'
H  nurse duties, including assistance with preparing and administering medications,

providing health evaluations, and developing health and wellness plans.

The Department will monitor services by reviewirig quarterly reports sutjmitted by the
Contractors.- '•

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request the Department
will be unable to provide additional funding to support older, Isolated, and frail adults, age 60 and
older, and adutts between the ages-of 18 and 59 who have a chronic Illness or disability, wtiich
may lead to a lack of proper care for this population.

Source ofTederal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.044, FAIN 21^01 NHSSC6;
and Medicaid Enhanced FMAP-ARP.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional Genei^
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Loxi A^eaver
IntehmXommissioner

Tht DtporUntnt of HtoUhond Human Services'MisaiM is to Join eommunilia and fomiliee
in prouidinj opportunities for eiUteut to achieve health and independenet.
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05-9S-48-4810ia-7872 HEAUTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HH$: ELDERLY • ADULT SERVICES.

AV Homo Care •

Ffica1-Yea/ Class/Object . Class Title Job Number
Currcni Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
•-Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 103,890.22 S  - S 103.890.22

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts muliiple S 103.890.22 $ S 103,890.22

•- Subtotal !
$ 207.780.44 s 5 207,780.44

Area HomeCaro
■v •

Fiscal Year Ciass/Object ' Class Tilie Job Number
Current Modified

. Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budge!

2023 540-500382 SS Gontrads multiple $ 70.584.00 $ $ 70.584.00
2024 540-500382 SSConlracIs multiple S 70.584.00 $ S 70.584.00

• Subtotal $ 141,168.00 i $ 141,168.00

. Cornerstone -■

Fiscal Year Class/Object Oass TlUe Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 ' 540-500382 SS Conlrecla muttlpte $ 6.272.00 1 $ 6,272.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 6.272.00 $  • $ 6,272.00
Subtotal $ 12.544.00 • S 12,544.00

Easter Seals ;

Fiscal Year Clasa/Objed Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts '  multiple $ 66,516.00 $ $ 66,516.00
2024 540-500382 • SS Contracts multiple $ 66.516.00 S  r $ 66,516.00

.r • Subtotal % 133,032.00 :• $ ' $ 133,032.00

FrankllnVNA-

Fiscal Year Class/0l^ct Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget'
Increased

(Decreased) Arnoum
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ -7.200.00 S $ 7,200.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 7,200.00 S S 7.200.00

li , Subtotal % 14,400.00 $ $ 14,400.00

Lakes Region '

Fiscal Year Class/0b)6c( Class Title -Job Number
Current Modified

.  Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382' SS Contracts muliiple S 90.456.00 S 5 90,456.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple . S 90.456.00 , $ : ' S 90,456.00
•- Subtotal - $ 180,912.00 $  ; s 180,912.00

L4ike Sunapee
»  ••

♦ *

Rscal Year " Class/Ob)ect Class Tide Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple' S 33,384.00 $ S 33,384.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33.364.00 $ $ 33,384.00

Subtotal ... S 66,768.00 $ s 66,768.00

.. North Country HHH

Fiscal Year ^ Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
increased

(Decreased) Amourtt
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 76,532.00 $ $ 76.532.00

•

1,

.•
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2024 &40-S00382 SS Contracts muHote $ 76.532.00 $ $ 76.532.00
*

SuMolai $ 1S3.064.00 I $ 153,064.00

•

Vtsltinfl Nurse HCH ,

Fiscsl.Yeer OassXDbjed Class Title Job Number
Cunent Modified

Budget
bKreased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 S40-S00382. SS Contracts muRlple S 39.800.00 S S 39,800.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple s 39,800.00 S $ 39,600.00

Sublolal >< $* 70,600.00 $  . ■ . S •: 79,600.00

VNAatHCS

•"

•••

R»c«t Ye«r Class/Object Dass Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Deaeased) Amount
Budget

2023 &40-500362 SS Gonlreds multipte % 16,546.00 $  ••• S 16.548.00

2024 540-500362 SS Contracts multiple S 16,548.00 $ S 16,548.00

"  ' Subtotal S 33,096.00 $ $ 33.096.00

Waypoint

Fiscal Year Oass/Obiecl Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 , SS Contracts multiple $ 239.515.00 $ S 239,515.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts mulliple $ 239.515.00 S s 239,515.00
- Subtotal $ 479,030.00 6 s 479,030.00

Total 7872 $ 1.501.394.44 $ 1 1.501,394.44

=♦

05-g5^-481010-92SS HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT (60% Fed 40% Gen)

V AV Home Care
•

• •

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class tille Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Ocoeased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 514,800.00 $ : % 514,800.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 514.600.00 S $ 514,800.00

Sublolal S 1,029,600.00 6 % 1,029,600.00

Area HomeCore
•-

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title. Job Number
'Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130096 S 1,240,006.00 $ $ 1,240.006.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 1,240,008.00 $ % 1,240,008.00

■  , Subtotal $ 2,480,016.00 5 $ 2.460.016.00

Cornerstone

r
'

Fiscal Year Ctass/Objed Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 128,040.00 S S 128.040.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 128.040.00 S $ • 128,040.00

Subtotal .. % ■ 256,080.00 $  - $ 256,080.00

.*

Easter Seals
V

Fiscal Year

\

Ciass/Objeo Class Title. '  Job Number

»

Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 702.336.00 ■  S , S 702,336.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 702,336.00 s S 702.336.00

Subtotal $ 1,404,672.00 $  r •. 5 1,404,672.00
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Franklin VNA

Fiscal Year Ciass/Ot^ect Class Title Job Numt>er
Current Modifted

Budget
Increased'

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  50.750.00 $  - 7 $ 50.760.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 4  50.760.00 $  • -T- $ 50.760.00

Subtotal %  101.520.00 s 4 101,520.00

Lakes Reoion

Fiscal Year Class/(%jftc( Class Title Job Number'
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 , $ 569.472.00 S S 569.472.00

2024 . .  540-500382 85 Contracts 48130098 S  569.472.00 S S 569.472.00

11 Subtotal $  1,138.944.00 %. 4 1,138.944.00

y; Lake Sunapeo . ii-

Fiscal Year Ciass/Objed Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
increased

{Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S  48.132.00 $  • S 48.132.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts -48130098 S  . 48.132.00 $  i 4 48,132.00

2025 540-500382 SS Contracts mull'ipie $  • $  - 4

2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multipld S $'■: " . 4

2027 640-500382 SS Contracts mult^le s 4  • $

2028 540-600382 SS Contracts muttipte s S $  r-

2020 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ 4 ,

Subtotal S  96.264.00 4, 4 96,264.00'

North Country KHH

Fiscal Year Ciasa/Object Class Title Job Number
Curreni Modified

.Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Aniouni Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S " 1.956:00 S 4 1,956.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S  1,956.00 S S 1.956.00

2025 540-500382 SS Contracts muttipte $ *  $ 7 4  t

2026 540-500382 SS Contracts. muttipie $  ̂ $ $  .•^.-

2027 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S  • $ S

2028 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ - 4 • -7

2029, 540-500382 - SS Contracts multiple $  . - $ 4

Subtotal $  3,912.00 $  • 4 3,912.00

VIsitInn Nurse H CH
•T • •

'  Fiscal Year Claas/Obiect Class Title Job Numtter
Current Modified -

Budget
increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget .

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $; 108,000.00 $ S 108.000.00

2024 540-5W382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  108.000.00 $ 4 108,000.00

Subtotal $  216.000.00 4  > 4 216.000.00

VNA St HCS

Rscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
• Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budigat

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130098 $  714,744.00 $ S 714.744.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $  714,744.00 '• 4 • ^ $ 714.744.00

Subtota $  1,429.468.00 4 4 1.429.488.00

Waypoint
•

FiscalYear Class/Objecl Class Title Job Numt)ef
Current Modified

Bi^gei
.tncreased

(Decreased) Amouni
Budget
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2023 540-500382 ' SS Conlracts * 48130098 . $  1.196.952.00 $ $ . 1.198.952.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracis 48130098 $  1.196.952.00 $ $  1.198.952.00

Subtotal $  2.393.904.00 $ $  2.393.904.00

Total 9255 $  10.550.400.00 $  r. S  10.550.400.00

05-95^r481010-2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY • ADULT SERVICES,
GRANTS TO LOCALS. GENERAL FUND.MATCH FOR ARPA (85% Fed 15S Gen)

AV Home Care

Fiscal Year Cless/Objecl Class Title Job Number ■
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 S $ . $

2024 540-500382 SS Contra eta 46130619 s S 15,000.00 S 15.000.00

Subtotal $ $ 15.000.00( 15,000.00

Area HomeCare

Fiscal Year Class/Object. Class Tllle Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Oecreasad) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracis 48130819 $ •• $ - $ i

2024 540-500362' . 88 Contracts 48130619 $ S" 15,000.00 S 15,000.00

Subtotal % % 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00

Cornerstone

•

■

' r »

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Ci^ni Modified

Budget
Incraased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

■ 2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130819 $  8:000.00 $ . ... S 6,000.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 s $ .7.000.00 $ 7,000.00

Subtotal $  8.000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 15,000.00

Easter Seala

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amourti Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130819 S S - $

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130519 S  ■ --r s 30.000.00 $ 30,000.00

Subtotal $ $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00

Franklin VNA

Fiscal Year Cioss/Obleci ■Class Title Job Number
Current Modjficd

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130619 S  16,000.00 S 4* $ 16.000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130819 •  S s 14,000.00 % 14,000.00

Sublolal $  16.000.00 $ 14,000.00 % 30,000.00

..Lakes Region

Fiscal Year Class/Object
A  *

. Pass Tlilo Job Number
Current Modified

■Budget
Increased

(Deaeased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 S  1 .  S - 5
2024 540-500382 . SS Contracts 48130619 % S ' 45,000.00 S 45,000.00

'  Subtotal S S 45,000.00 • $ 45,000.00

.LakoSunapoo

Fiscal Year ■ pass/Object Pass Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Deaeased) Amotmi Butkldi

2023 . 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  6,000.00 S 5 r 8,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $ 7,000.00 $ .  7,000.00
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5 V  Subtolall (  8,000.00 S  7,000.00 » ISXO.M
%

North Counliv HHH

FiKal Year aass/Oi^aci Class TWe Job Number
Curreni Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

y

2023 540-500382 SS Conlracts 48130619 $  6,000.00 $ $ 8,0X.X

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ .*$ 7,oro.oo $ 7.000X

-  Subtotal '$ 8,000.00 %  7,000.00 .$ 15.000.x

. .Vieitinfl Nurse HCH * •

Rscal Yeer Class/OtHect Oass Title Job Number
Curreni ModiGed

'  Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  i S S •

2024 540-500382 SS Conlracts 48130619. $ S  15,000.00 s 1S.X0.00

•• Subtotal $ S  15,000.00 % 15,000.00

VNA at HCS

.. ..

-

'*• •

Fiscal Year Ciass/Obiecl Class Tlile; ^ .*■ Job Number
Current ModlGed

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 4B130619 $ S  f- $ -

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130619 ' S S  15.000.x $ .IS.XO.OO
Subtotal $ S  15,000.00 S 15,000.00

.Waypoint

Fiscal Year Qass/O^ed Class Title Job Nurttber
Curreni Modified

Budget
increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

.2023 -540-500382 SS Contracts 46130819 $ S S •

2024 540-500382 . SS Contracts 48130619 $ $  3Q,0X.X s X,XO.X

Subtotal $ $  30,000,00 $ 30.XO.X
. Total 2638 $  40,000.00 $  200,000.00 % 240.X0.X

05 95-93-930010-2606 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS:
HOBS ENHANCED FMAP-ARP (100% Fed)

'■

AV Home Care

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class TftJe Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
tncreased

(Decreased) Amouru Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ S

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  r $  6,809.30 $ 6,809.30
*. Subtotal 1 $  6,809.30 S 6.8X.30

FrankllnVNA _ .

Rscal Year Oass/Ob)ec( Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
. Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

. d

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ S  r. ,  s :•

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  1,332.x s 1,332.00

Subtotal • % " $  1,332.00 s 1,332.00

Lake Sunapoo i:
-. -

Fiscal Year Class/Ot^ed Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Oecressed) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts • 93009020 $ S $

2024 540-500382 SS Conlracts 93009020 $ $  ■ 26,500.00 S 26.X0.X

Subtotal ; .  S $ ^ 26,500.00 s 26,X0.00

•
•
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North Country HHH

Fi»cal Ytifif CiMsTObject Cie»» Title Job Number
Current ModlHed.

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ S . S

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $  c- % 6,296.00 S 6,286.00

Subtotal % S. 6,296.00 s 6,296.00

Total 2606 $  "■> $ 40,937.30 $ 40;937.30
♦ Grand Total S  12,091,794.44 s 240,937.30 $ 12,332,731.74
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DocuSl^n Envelope ID: S3538lOE-A8lO-4347-e26B-l4iE£3e661A76

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Home Health Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire/
Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Androscoggin Valley Home Care
Services ("the Contractor").

yVHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29.2022 (Item #47), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in conslderalion of certain sums specified; and

VVHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upKin written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In wnsideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to read:

05-95-48-481010-7872

05-95-48-481010-9255

05-95-48-481010-2638

05-95-98:930010-2606

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$1,259,189.74

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Sectionl, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by: ^

1.1. 58.86% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 8.25% Older Anf>ericans Act Title lll-B, as awarded on Se'pternber 8,2022
and February 13,2023, by the Adniinistration for Community Living. Title
IIIB, Supportive Services, CFDA 93.044, FAIN 2201NHOASS and
2310NHOASS.

1.1.2. 49.06% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on Octot>er 1.2021, by
the Social Services Block Grant. CFDA 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR.

1.1.3. 1.01% Older Americans Act Title IHB-ARP, as awarded on May 3, 2021,
by the Administration for Community Living. Title IHB-ARP, Supportive
Services, CFDA 93.044. FAIN 2101NH$SC6.

1.1.4. 0.54% Enhanced FMAP-ARP, as awarded by Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services.

1.2. 41.14% Genera! funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 3 through Subsection 3.1, to read:

3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per unit rate In accordance with Exhibit C-l, Amendment
#1. Rate Sheet.

3.1; Payment for COVID-19 discretionary funding shall be on a cost-reimbursement basis
for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in
accordance with the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-2, Amer^ent #1,
SFY 2024 Budget. j

Androscoggin Valley Home Care"Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials^
RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01-A01 Pa9e1ol4 . Dale
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DocuSisn Er>velOpe.lD:S35}eiOE-AaiD-4347-B2BS-14E£3B66lA76

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, to read; •

4.6. is assigned an electronic signature, Includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to dhhs.b6asinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Program Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 - •

6. Modify Exhibit C-1, Rate Sheet, by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Amendment Rate
Sheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1. SPY 2024 Budget, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

Androscoggin'Valtey Home Care Services A-S-1.2 Conlrectorlnilials
■6/9/2023"

RFA-2023-BEAS^HOMEH-01-A01 Page 2 014 ' Data
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023, upon Governor and Council approval.

>  '>i .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the. date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services-

5/12/2023

Date

OMMtitrn^ ky:

Nafne^MciTssa^iardy

Director, DLTSS

6/9/2023

Date

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

/—OMwSigiHk ky:

L/Wv SutLiv^u4, •
-.roifCii»£ec4Ft_ ■

Nameri^rgo sun i van

Executive Director

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.2

RFA.2023-BEAS-06-HOMEhW}1 -AOI Pago 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/12/2023

br

Date Nameif^obyn Guarinc

Title:
• Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Kneeling on: ; (date of meeting).

y.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:

Title:.

.Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services A-S-1.2

RFA,2023-eeAS-06-HOMEH^)1-A01 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment Ul, Rate Sheet

Adult In-Home Care - AV HomeCare Services

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2)23 Service Units

Aduft In-Home Care Unit Type

Totar#of Units of

Service

anticipated to be
delivered.

Rate per
Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 42:900 $12.00 $514,800.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour .5.000 $12.00 $60,000.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $38,384.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 214 $25.73 $5,506.22

Subtotal 50.513 $618,690.22

7/1/2023 through 06/30/2024 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be
delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested, for each

Service

Title XX Jn Home Services 1/2 Hour 42.900 $12.00 $514,800.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5.000 $12.00 $60,000.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aidie 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $38,384.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 214 $25.73 $5,506.22
HCBS ARP In Home Services 1/2 Hour 354 $12.00 $4,248.00
HCBS ARP Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 144 $16.00 $2,304.00
HCBS ARP Nursing 1/2 Hour JO $25.73 $257.30

♦ Subtotal 51.021 $625,499.62

lOverall Total 101.534 $1.244.189.7^

Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01-A01

Exhibit C-l/Amendment ̂1. Rate Sheet
Contractorlriitials:

Date:
6/9/2023
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Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1. SPY 2024 Budget RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compl9t9 one budg«i form for each budget period.
Contractor Name; Andmscoggin Valley Home Care Se/yices

Budget Request for: Home Health Services

Budget Period SFY 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
t

r  "'v

Lino Item .  Program Cost • Furxied by DHHS •

1. Salary & Waoes $15,000
-

2. Frinqe Benefits $0

3. Ccnsullanls $0

4. Eqi^pmenl

Indirect cosi rale cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.(a) SuppSes • Educational •

$0

S.(b) Supplies • Leb

$0

6.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

•  . $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

■  ' ' $6
'  1

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0
••

8. (8) Other • Marketing/
Communications

.  . W

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainlnq . •  $0

8. (c) Other • Other fspedfy below)

Other fplease specify)
$0

,

9. Subredolent Contracts so
•

Total Direct Costs 515.000
_•*

' • " A
Total indirect Costs •

TOTAL ^15,000

Contractor initials

Date
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L«(1A.SblblMnc

Commbsieocr

Mdlst* A. Hartfy
Director

JUN15'22p« 3J00RC^rD

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5034 1-600^52-3345 Eit S034

Fei: 603-271-5166 TOD Accm: 1-800-735-2964

r.dhb94)h.gov

Sj!^

June 6, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

> Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Ofvjslon of Lon^ Terrh Supports
and Sen/ices. to enter Into contracts with the Contractors listed below In an amount not to exceed
$11,347,242.44 for the provision of home health services, with the option to renew for up to four
(4) additional years, effective Juty 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Coundl approval, wNchever Is
later, through June 30. 2024. 5.8.6% Federal Funds. 41.2% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Androscoggin Valley Home
.  Care Services

(Berlin, NH)

157347 Coos County
$1,237,380.44

Area HomeCare Family
Services, Inc.

(Portsmouth. NH)

166931 Rockingham
County

$2,621,164

Easter Seals New

Hampshire, Inc.

(Manchester,,NH)

177204

Hillsborough
(Manchester.

Milford, Nashua)
and Strafford

Counties

$1,537,704

Lakes Region Community
Services Council

(Laconia, NH) 177251
Belknap, Grafton
and Sullivan

Counties

$1,319,856

Visiting Nurse Home Care
& Hospice of Carroll County

(North Conway, NH)

225191 Carrol) County $295,600

VNAat HCS, Inc.

(Keene. NH)
177274 ■ Cheshire County $1,462,584

Waypoint

(Manchester, NH)
177166

Hillsborough and
Merrimack

Counties
$2,872,934

Total: $11,347,242.44

/
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\

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Courtdl

Pegs 2 of 2

Funds are availabte in the foHowing accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of furtds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price dmltatidn and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

eXPLANAHON

The purpose of this request Is to provide statewide In Home Care Services, Home Health
Aide Services, and/or Nursing Services to support older, isolated and frail adults, age 60 and
older, to live as Independently as possible, safety, and with dignity, and to adults between the
ages of 18 and 59 who have a chronic illness or disability.

Approximately 6,226 indiyiduals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

In-Home Care senrices, through Title III and Title XX programs include, but are not limited
to, household maintenance and housekeeping; and meal planning and preparation.

In-Home Health Aide Services provide assistance with managing Individual personal care
needs, including bathing and grooming.

In-Home Nursing Services Incorporate providing nursing services, conducting medical
needs evaluations and developing a nursing care plan to support Individuals in their homes.
Nursing Sen/Ices include general licensed practical nurse or roistered nurse duties Inciuding, but
not limited to assistance with preparing and administering medications, providing health
evaluations and developing health and wetlness plans.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the quarterly reports submitted by the
Contractors. <

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from March 22,
2022 through April 26, 2022. The Department received 11 responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.2.,
of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four
(4). additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and Governor and Courtdl approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, older, isolated and frail adults,
age 60 and older, and adults between the ages of 16 and 59 who have a chronic lltness or
disability will not receive the appropriate level of care according to their needs; leaving them at
risk of serious injury, lltness or possibly death.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.044. FAIN #2201NHOASS;
Assistance Usting Number #93:667, FAIN #2101NHSOSR.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

ctfutly submitted,

V

Lc Shibinette

Conihiissioner
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Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

ProiectlOa >RfA^023-BEAS-06-HOMEH

ProJectTitle ̂ Homo Health Services

Maximum

Points

Available

An^sooggln

VaDey (AV)
Home Care

Area

HomeCare

& Famity

Services.
Inc

Easterseais •

Kiltsborough
Easterseais-

Slrafford

Home

HealUKare.
Hospica
and

Community
Services

Lakes

Region
Community
Services-

Belknap

Lakes

Region
Community
Services-

Graflon

Lakes

Region
ComnHmily

Services-

Suflivan

Visiting Nuraa
Homo Care 6

Hospica
Waypoint-
Htllsborough

Waypolnt-
Menlmacfc

Technical 1

Ej^ffence 01 30 28 25 26 26 29 21 21 21 23 30 30

Capadty 02

i

25 24 20 21 21 23 17 17 17 17 25 25

AWQty 03 35 33 34 31 31 . 22 15 15 15 10 34 34

SlafSrig 04 10 • 8 10 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 10 10

TOTAL POINTS 100 91 89 87 87 83 62 62 62 58 99 99

Rovlewer Name Tlile

^ Shawn Maf^n

^ 2^athIe2^G2J[_
3 Thorn O'Connor

Aj^waJ^sin^

Finance Admlnlatfatpf

Bureau o> Family Centered
Support Staff

6EAS Program Administrate
Program Ptanntng &

Review Specialisl
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Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Qass Title Job Number Budget

(

2023 540-500382 SS Conlracts multiple $  103,890.22

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,890.22

Subtotal $  207,780.44

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult Ih Home Care multiple $  514,800.00
2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  514,800.00

Subtotal $ 1,029,600.00

Grand Total $  1,237,380.44
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Area HomeCare Family Services, inc.

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AiTd SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS; ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget .

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  70.584.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  70,584.00

Subtotal $  141,168.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Numt>er Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $ 1,240,008.00

2024 543-500385 Adutt In Home Care multiple $ 1,240,008.00

Subtotal $ 2,480,016.00

Grand Total $ 2,621,184.00
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Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

05-95-48-451010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO
LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Rscal

Year
Class/0 bje^ Class Tllle Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Conlr'acls multiple $  66.516.00

2024. 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  66.516.00
1 Subtotal $  133,032.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  702.336.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  702,336.00

Subtotal $ 1,404,672.00

Grand Total $ 1,537,704.00
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Lakes Region Community Services Councii

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, AOMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object - Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  90.456.00

2024, 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  90,456.00

Subtotal $  180,912.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY • ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  569.472.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  569.472.00

Subtotal $  1,138,944.00

Grand Total $  1,319,856.00
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Visiting Nurse Home Care Hospice of Carroll County

05-95-48^1010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY ■ ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year v
Class/Object Class Tiue Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  39,800.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  39.800.00

Subtotal $  79,600.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLy - ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO
LOCALS. SOCIAL^SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  108,000.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  108.000.00

Subtotal $  216,000.00

Grand Total 5  295,600.00
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VNAatHCS. Inc.

05-95-46481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HNS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  16,548.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  16,548.00

Subtotal $  33.096.00

05-95-46-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  714.744.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  714.744.00

- Subtotal $ 1,429,488.00

Grand Total $  1,462,584.00
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Waypoint

05.95^-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO
LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget,

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  239,515.00

2024 .540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  239,515.00

Subtotal $  479,030.00

05.95.48.481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In.Home Care muUiple $ 1,196,952.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  1,196,952.00

Subtotal $ 2,393,904.00

Grand Total $ 2,872,934.00
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Subject: Home Hcallli Services (RPA-2023-BKAS-0$.HOMKH-01)

6037524317 p.3

I'ORM NUMBER P-37 (ventJon 12/11/2019)

McUfifl- i hw egrne^nt ond ult of its attaclwcnLs shall become puhlic upon cubmissioti ty Governor end
^uiive ̂uncil for «pprovat. Any informarion thar pWe, confidcniial vr proprietaiy muM
^^c'earty identified lo the agcmcy nud ai^tted to in writing prior to signing the tuntnicL

,  ACREEMKNT
1 he State ofNew Hompahirt: nnd uic Conunclor hcrehy munially ogixe « follows;

CENTRAL PROVISIONS
I. IDKNTmCATlON.
I.i Slute Agency Name

New Hampshiru Depanmeni of Health nad Human
Services

1.3 Coittr&ctor NtuTiv

Androsuoggin Volley Home Garc Services

1.5 Contractor Ph«»nc
Number

603-752-7505

\ 1.6 Account Number

05-95-4R-4R10IO-7872;
O5-<)5-48-48(0lU-y235

1 .V Contiucttng Cfficcr tbr State Agency

Robert W. Woorc, Director

Ml ConintclorSignoturc

1,13 SlB^Agp6cy Signature
~0«aitlpnMt br:

C/tnVttLL 6/^Sb22
The N.H. Departmcni of AdminiscnitioQ, D

Ry:

C

1.2 State Agency Address

I29PleasaiU Street

Conconl. Nil 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

795 Main Street

RcrllfwNll 03570

1.7 C4)mplcilon Date

6/.10/2n24

1.8 Price t.lmltation

SU37,380.44

i.lO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

M2 Nitmcand Title of Contractor SIgnolory

argo Su l livan

I.J4 NtmseandTitlcorSialcAgcacySignatnry

hristine Santanie11o
Associate Commissioner

iviKlnn of Personnel (ifo^iplhabh)

Director. On;

1.16 Approval by the AiUjrncyCeaerol (Form. Subruince and li.\ecution) (if nppUcahlc)

On: 5^10/2022
1.17 Appnival by the Governor a»td Executive Council (f applicable)

G&C liiu) numben C&C Mceitng Dole:

Page 1 014

Conimctor Initialsitials

Date
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0037524317 p.4

2. SCAVICKS TO BE PERFORMED. The Si^c i>f New
acting through the BgciK7 identified in block l.l

("Sioic"), engages contractor itkniincO in block 13
("C^nrractoO to pcrfofm, and the Contractor shall perlumv ihc
work or sslo of good.«. or hulh, idciiiifiod and more p&nicubHy
described in the attached CXITIBTT B which is incorporated
herein hy rcfcaiKC ("Services").

3. EFFECTTVE DATt/COMPI.ETIpN OFSERVtCES.
3.1 Notwiih.-nanding any provision of (his Agrccmta>i u> llic
cOMirary, and itubject to the .ippnivd uf ihc Oovtmor ond
llxecttiivc Council ufiho State of New Hampshire, if nppHcahlc.
this Agreement, and all ohligaiionji vf ihe parties; hereundcf, shall
bi:i.-unic ciTecHve on the date the Govcmur imrl F*cculive
Council uppruvc (hi.« Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is rcquinrd. in which tl>e Agrcomettt
Kh&ll become effective on the date the Agi'CCmcnr Is signed by
the Stale Agency us Rhown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the ContTuctor conmicitccs the Service* prior to (be
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Cunlmcror prior to
the Gna:livc Date .<liall be pcrfbrmcd at the sole risk of the
Clonlroctor. and in the event that (his Agreement decs noi become
cITcetivc, titc State Shail have no liab'liiy (0 drc Contmctnr,
incluJuig without liiniiatioi).. any obligation to pay ' itiv:
CoiUracior for" any coslx ineuned or Services perlhnncd.
Contmctor must contplcte oil Services by the Cumpleliuii Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDrnONALNATI.JRF. OF ACKEEMEIN I.

Notwithstanding any provision of Ihi.s Agaxtttcnl lo the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcrcundcr, including,
wiihoui linnialioii, the continuance of payments hcreunder, are
contiogcnt upon rhc avHilKhiltiy and continued appropriation of
funds affect^ by aay state or federal Icgiylniivi: or vxcuuUvc
action that reduces, cUminotes or oihenvisc modiGes the
appropriation or availability of riJiHlIng for iliis Agreement and
titc Scope ftir Services provided in bXi-llBjT B. in whnlc nr in
pan. In no event yholl \be State be liablo for .my paymentR
hcrctirvlur In cacu.ss of such available appropriated ftmds. In the
event of a reduction or tcrininntinn uf appropriated fUnds, the
State shall have the right to withluild payment until xuuh fund.*
hcvixnu avtiiilable. if ever, and shall Itavc the right to reduce or
terminate the Services ut.idcr this Agreemeot immediately ttpott
giving the (Contractor notice of such rcduciion or icmiitiuiiotv.

. The SiHiu shall not be required to transfer funds from any otbrx
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event tiinds In that Account arc reduced or unuvuilablc.

5. CONTRACT PftlCE/PRICF. UMrtATlONV
PAYMENT.

5.1 Tbc coutruciprice.-methnd ofpaymem, imd terms of payrocm
are identifted and more particularly described in RXHIRIT C
wliich is incnrpcratcd herein by reference.
53 Ttic paymenr hy the Rtatc of the controct price shall be tbe
only and complctu n;ioil.)ur$ement to the Contractor lor all
expenses, of whatever nature incurrvd by il»v Cvunnnor In the
perronunoCc hereof, and ahull be tliC only Aitd the complete

compensation to the Contractor fur the Services. The Stale ahull
have nu liability to the ContrHctur other thun the cunlmct price.
5.3 Thr. Stole reserve.* the right lo offset from nny nmimnLs
otherwise payable to the ConiTaciur under dils Agreement chose
liquidaicd fintounts required or permined by N,H. R5A K0:7
through RSa RC:7-c or any Other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any jim)v{.siim in Uiis Agreement lo the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected clxcunutoncca, in no
event shall the Kttal uf all payments outhoriaed, or actually made
iKfcunder, exceed the Price Limltatiim hci forth in block l.D.

6. COMPUANCe BY CONTKACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGiriATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORIUNIiy. V

6.1 In connection with the performance of .the Services, the
ContTHCior .shull conipty with all applicable statutes, lawx,
regulations, and orders of federal. sU)te. county or municipal
(inthoritie.s which impose any oblijpninn tir duly upon llic
Contractur, mcluding, but not linnred to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addilton, if diis Agreemeiu 1*
funded In ony part by monies of the United States, the Conlraciur
shall comply wiili nil federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rulo*, ivguladons nnd guideline.* o.i the
Stare or the Vnitcd .States }.*sue to implemcm these rugulaiiuiw.
The Contractor ahull tdso cuinply with all appllenblc inicllccmal
property laws.
6.2 During ilic term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against ctTiployccs or applicanis for employment
because of rncc, color, religion, crccd, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will ukc afRrnuirivu aciiun to
pt'cvem such discrimination.
ftX The Controcior agrees to permit the State or Onittd States
access to any of (he Contractor'^ huukx, rucunls and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance wirb all rules, regulations
and o.rdcr^, and the covenants, tcmts and conditioos of this

Agrccracot.

7. PEl«ONNKl^

^ 7.1 The Contractur .thall uL iu* own expense provide all peisonoel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor waminl}: that
oil persoonol engaged in the Services shall be qualified lo
perform the Serviucs. ftud sboU W property licensed and
otherwise autbori^cd to do so under oil applicable laws.
73 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this AgrccmcnL uud for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. (ho Ctintniciur Khull riul hiru, and
shall not permit ony subconrracior or other person, fiim or
vurpunitiuii with whom It is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Survicus to hiru, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the pruouremcnl,
adminixmiiion ' Or pcrfonuoncc of thi."; Agreement. ThI.*
provision shall survive termiDatioo of this Agruumcoi. ^
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block LV. or his or her
succeswr. xholl be the Stulu'o ruprcsaiiadve. In the eventnf any
dispute COfiCeming the interpretation of this Agruciiwnl, iliu
Contracting Officer's decision Shall be final for the State.

Poge 2 of 4
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». KVF.NT OFDEKAUr^T/RliMEUJK.V
8.1 Any one or mnre of the rollov».ang acts or oinijodonj Of the
(Joiunictnr shaU coustUuU; an event ofdefbuli hcrcimder f'Evciil
nfDefault"):
8.J.I loilun: to pcffomi the Services satisfactorily or on

8.1.2 fttilurc to submit any report required hcfcwider; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any nihcr covenant, tcnn nr condition of
this Agrcemeat.
8.2 Upon ihc occurrence of any Event of Defanir, the Slate may-
take any one, or in«jrc, or ail, of the following action.*:
8.2.1 give the Contractor u written notice tcpectfying the L'vcnt of
Default and requiring it to be remedied tviihin, in the abscise of
a greater or Iraser spcciHcatlm. yftime, thirty (30) day# from the
date of the nodce; and Ifihe Event of Default i>-not timely cured,
lermlnate this Agreement, effective rwo (2) days after giving the
(lontrocior notice of terminfltlon;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice jtpccilying the Event of
Dcfbult and suspending all payments lo be mode under this
Agrcemcfii and ordering thai ilic portion of iltc ccmrruct price
which would otherwise aceruc to tlK ConcrMlor during the
period from the date of such notice until such linie ns ihc State
dciermtTtcs that the Comn<elor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Comraelor;
K.2.3 give the Contractor a wrirren notice specifying the Event of
Default and sa off agairtsi any other obligations the Stale may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State sufTcrs by reason of
any Event orOefauU; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor u wrliicn notice spectlVing the Event of
Oeftult, treat die Agreement as breadtcd. icrmintitc the
Agreenicni and pursue any pf its lemeiliea at law or in equity, or
boih.

8.3. No failure by ibe .^laic to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Dcfnuli.shall be deemed a waiver of iu rights wiili
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Dcfauli No express 0»iliire to enforce ony Event of Defeult shall
be deuincd » waiver of the riglii of the State to enforce cocJi and
all of die provisions hereof upon any ftuther or other Event of
Ucfoult 00 ihu part of the Co'ntmcror.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding puragruph 8. the Slate moy, at iis sole
discretion, ccrtninntc the Agreement for any rcoson. in whftlc,or
it) part, by thirty (30) dnys uriilcn notice to the roniryLior that
the State is exercising it* option to tcmilnoic ihc Agrccmcni.
9.2 lo ilw event of an early terinloiiilon of this /Vgrccmcnt for
any reason other than Uie eumplelion of the Services, tbc
Contractor sholl, ut the Slate's drxcrction, deliver to the
Conuiiding OfTicer, not later than Ollecn (15) days after the cUui
of termination, o report ("Termination Report") ilc.<criblng in
detail oil Scrviccv perfuimcd, and the cvminiu price canted, to
and including the date of lerminiiiinn. The form, subject nmilcr;
coulcal, and number n(" copies of the Termiiioiiun Report shall
be iilenticftl to those ofany final Report described in the miached
EXIUBIT B. In nddiliun, at the State's discretion, the Conrrac'Or
shall, within 1.1 days of notice of early icnninatinn, develop and

Pagu 3

submit to the .Slate a Transidun Plnn for Kervicv-s under the
Agrccrnenr.

10. DATA/ArcKSS/coNrinENTiAi.rrv/
prrservation.
10. J As used in Ihi.* Agreement, the word **dsla" shull mean all
Infnrmotioii und Ihings developed or ubiained during ihr.
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but npr limited to, all siudics, reports,
files, formiil«e, surveys, maps, chart.*, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictori&l reproductions, drawing.*, analyses, graphic '
rcprcscmaiions, computer pmgrMtm, computer printnnis, notes,
lei^rs, memoranda, papers, uud dociuiicnts, oil whether
finished tir unnnished.
10.2 All dmo and Q\xy pmpcrry wWch has been received from
tbc Sute or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the prripeny of the State, ond
.ihaij be returned to ilic Sutc upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for at»y reason.
10.3 Conlidcntiality.ofdata shall be gnvcmcd by N.H. RSA
cliapicr 91-A or other exisiiug law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written appmval of the Sfotc.

Jl . CONTRACTOR'S RET.A-nON J O THE STATE. In the
performance uf rhis Agreement the Conlnichir is in all respects
un independent contractor, unil is neirher an pgciu m>r an
employee of (he State. Neither the Conioiclor nor any. of it.*
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authoriiy lu
bind the State or receive any benefits, wrvtitefs' eompensalion or
Otiwr emoluiricms provided by die -Suiiu to its employees.

12. AS.<iION.VIE.NT/DELEC:AIION/SimCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Coiilracior sHrU not assign, or otherwise transfer cny
iiiicrasl »o this Agreement wirhou' the prior written notice, vdut-h
shall be provided to ihc Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the .vssigAiuvui, and 8 written coasent of the Stale. For purposes
of tills paragraph, a Change of Control shall consriiutc
assignment. "Change of Confrol" means (u) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or .*cric$ ofidutcd transactionx In
which 0 third party, together with Ire offiliaws, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or rmirc of »be
voting .*liorc.* or suuiiar equity interests, ur combined voting
power of ihe Conirucfor, or (b) the sale oI'mII or substantially all
uf (be assets of Tlic Comraelor.
12.2 None of (he Services Shall be Subcunfractcd by the
Couirttolur without prior written nmiue and consent of the State.
The Slate is etitiiled to copies of all sUbcootracis and a.s.signmcnr
agrecmenw and shall-not be bound by floy pmvUions contained
in n subcontract or an osslgujiiuiil agreement to which it is not u
-party.

1.3. indemnification. Dniess otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Staii:, iix
officcra ujk] employees, from ond aga'n.« any ami nil claims,
liabilities aod costs for Oiiy purxnmtl injury or property damages,
patent or eopyrighi infringcraenr, or other claims os.*erted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise iiiit of (or which
may bo claimed to arise uut uf) the acts rir omissioo of ihv
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Cuniractor. or ®i»hcnntT»ciurs, including but nni limiicd to the
negligence, rectdo&A c ImcTitiunal conduct. The Stare 'shMll not
be liublv for ony costs inonred hy iliu Contractor onsing under
this poragreph 13. Notwithstanding the fonrgomg, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed iocoiiMitute o >vaivcr ofthe tovcrdgn
irrmmniiypfthe State, which immunity l.s licreby ccservcd to the
State. This covcmnit in paragraph 13 Ahall survive the
tcnnination of Ihis Agreement.

14. IN.SUKANCE.

14.1 The Conlroclor shall, at it* sole expense, obioin and
contlm»ou.<ly rmiiniftln in . force, and .fhnll rcquiru any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maincairt in force, tbc
fullu^viivg insurance:
14.1.1 comnKTciul general liability Insurance Hc*in>ti ell clelitiS
of bodily iojury, death or property damage, in emoimts of not
luss iluin SI ,OUO,UtKI per occunvnuu anvt $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; (uh) "■
14.1.2 Special cause ufloss coverage fbnn cbvcfing all property
subject tn Kubparagroph 10.2 herein, >n an snuumt not lesA than
80% of tlK whole replacement value of the proper^.
14.2 'Hk policies described in subpArngniph 14.1 herein shail bo
on policy Torma and endorsements upprova-d ^or n$c In the .State
of New Harapsbirc by the N.H. Dcparlment of Insuton'ec, and
issued hy in.«mrcrs licensed in the State u.f New Hnmpkhire.
14.3 The Contract«)r shsll furnish to the ContrBciIng OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her itueecjcsbr, a ccrtificatefs) of
inxurunec for oil insvuanCC required under this AgreemCnl.
Conrractor shall also rufiilsh to the Contracting bfflcer IdcndOcd
in block 1.9, or his nr her xueeesfior, ccrtiticotc(s) of insunmce
for fi ll renewal(s) of insiuance rcqin'rwl under ihl.t Agreement no
Inter ihan ten flO) doys prior to the expiration dale of wch
insurance policy. The ecrtificatcfs) of insurance and any
renewals thctrof shull be onachcd nod nre iheorpuruicd Iwrcin by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
KS. I Hy signing this H^*cnKnr. the Contractor agrees, cerliftes
and wxrrjintx that the Conlracior is in compliance with or exempt
from, thcrequifemems of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("iVoticcys'
Cvmu^iisatlOii").
15.2 Tn the extent the Contractor is subleci to the requirements
of N.Ll. KSA chnpiur 281 •A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or Bssigncc Lo .sucurc end muinlaiu.
paymcnl of Workers' Compcosatioo io connection with
activiries which the pcrxoti paiposcs ir> undertake purxuAnt to this
Agreentent. The Contmctor shall fr imish the Cimifuciinc Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workcra'
Compensaiiun in the mnnner described in N.ll. KbA chapter
28I'A and any appJiexblu rum:wal(:i) iliereof. which .shall be
nundicd ond Are incorporated herein by reference. The State
.Choi! not be responsible for poyment of any Workers'
Cuuipciuuitinn prcmlum.4 or for ony other claim or bunvfii fur
ContTdCtur, ur »ny Subcontracior or employee of Cootroceor,
which might arise,under applicable Stntc of New Hampshire
Workers* Compensation laws in conncctUm wiih the
performance of Oit SmvIccc iiivlcr this Agatmcni.

10. NOTICE, Any notice hy a party hereto to ihu other party
shall be dcctned to have been duly duUvcrcd or given at the litnc
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United iJnues
Post Office addressed to the panka oi the oddresscs given In
blocks 1.2 uikI 1.4, herein.

17. AMEN0MEN T. Thix Agavmcni may be amended, waived
or cliwhargcd Only by an instniment in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only nAcr apprdvai of such amendmcnU
waivrr or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New llxmpxhiru unless no such approval is required
under lite circumstances pursuant to Stoic law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF T>kW ANtl FORUM. This Agrecntcnt shall
be governed, inierpreted and construed in uccordancc, with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon uml
inures TO the benefit ofthc parties and their respective succcssora
and Asxignx. The wording used in this Agrainiicitt Is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intern, and no rule

yof cnnsmiClion shall be applied against or In favor of any parry.
Any Bciions arising Out of this Agreement shall be bruughl und
maintained In New Hampsliire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive Jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONKLICTINC terms. In llic event of a conflict
bciwcet. il»e terms of this P-37 form (as frwdified in EXHIBIT
A) ond/or artachments anti amendment thereof, the terms of the
P.37 (w modified in EXHIBIT A1 slull control.

20. THIRD PaRTTF-S, The pariicx hereto do not intend to
Ijcrtcnt any tliird panics and tJtis Agreement shall not he
consmicd to confer any Sucb beoefll.

21. HEADINGS, the headings throughout the Agreetneot arc
for reference purposes only, and tlic words contained therein
shall In no way be held to expbin. modify, nmplify or aid io the
IntKrprctailon. cmisu-uction or meaning of lite provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVIStOnS. AddiUonal tir niudlfyhig
provisions set forth in the attached iiXiUUIT' A arc incctpocetcd
herein by reference.

23. SEVERAJSILITY- Io the event any oflhe provisions of thi*
.Agreement arc held by a cuuri of competent Jurisdietton to be
contrary to any siate or federal law. the remaining pruvisions of
this Agivemem will remain in tuU force and efftci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thw Ayivcntenl, whichrmay be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shnll he
deemed an original, coostilutcs the .coUrc asrcemem and
undersuiiding hetwean the parties, and supersedes all prior
Bgrucmcnts (md unilur<itniiding.x wilhrespect to thx subject matter
hereof.

.Pngc 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Health Services

exhibit a

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provision^

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17. this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on Julv 1
2022 ("Effective Dale").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by addlno
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agr^ment for up four (4) additional years
from the Completibn Date, ooritingenl upon satisfactory delivery; of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of'the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12,3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and If applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreenrtents shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFA-2023.BEAS4b.HOMeH4)1 A-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Health Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The' Contractor shall provide Home Health Services in Ihls Agreement lo
Individuals who are not already receiving the same or similar services funded
through other programs. Other programs may include, but are not limited to:

1.1.1. New Hampshire's Medicaid Slate Plan.

1.1.2. Any of the Home and Community Based Care Waivers administered
by the Department.

1.1.3. The Medicare Program.

1.1.4. Services provided through the Veterans Administration.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide and administer the services in this Agreement In
accordance with applicable federal and state, laws and rules, and policies and
regulations adopted by the Department currently in effect, and as they may be
adopted or amended during the lerm of the Agreement, which Include, but are
not limited lo:

1.2.1. Title III of the Older Americans Act of 1965 as amended through P.L.
114-144, Enacted April 19, 2016.

1.2.2. New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 502, The Older American
Act Services: Title IIIB- Supportive Services, (frorn herein after referred
lo as NH Administrative Rule He-E 502).

1.2.3. Title XX of the United States. Social Services Block Grant (SSBG).
I

1.2.4. New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 501, The Social Services
Block Grant (Title XX) (herein after referred lo as NH Administrative.
Rule He-E 601).

1.3. The Contractor shail ensure services are available in Coos County.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement,^all references to days shall mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

f

.1.5. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall mean
Monday through Friday from 8 am lo 4 pm.

1.6. Adult In-Home Care/ln-home Care Services

1.6.1. The Contractor shall provide In Home C^re Services through the Title
III and Title XX programs to eligible individuals, which Include, but are
not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Services by individuals employed and supervised by a
home health care provider licensed in accordance with

RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P 809, Home
Health Care Providers or NH Administrative Rule He-P

RnA-202>e£A&-0&-KOMEH-01 B-2.0 Controdor Initials t)fO ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Health Services

EXHIBIT B

822, Home Care. Service Provider Agencies, as
applicable.

1.6.1.2. Cor© household rnaintenance tasks to support the safety
and well-being of individuals in their homes as defined In
NH Administrative Rule He-e 501. The Social Services
Slock Grant (Title XX) and NH Administrative Rule Hc-E
502, Older Americans Act Services: Title IIIB - Supportive'
Services. TiUe llici -and C2 - Nutrition Program Policies,
And Title KID - Disease Prevention And Health Promotion
Services

1.6.1.3. Light housekeeping tasks.

1.6.1.4. Evaluating clieni safety and well-being and making
referrals to other services when Indicated.

1.7. Home Health Aide Services

1.7.1. The Contractor shall be a home health care provider licensed in
accordance with RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P 809 in
order to provide home health aide services.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall provide Home Health Aide Level of Care Services
through the Title III to* eligible individuals as outlined in NH
Administrative Rule He-E 502, which Include, but are not limited to:

1.7.2.1. Receiving referrals from an individual's health care
. provider(5).

1.7.2.2. Performing evaluations of individuals' rnedical needs.
^  V

1.7.2.3. Developing service plans and Incorporating this
information Into the individuals! person-centered plans of
care.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall provide the following home health aide services
based on the Individual's need:

1.7.3.1. Services allowed within the Licensed Nursing Assistant
(LNA) scope of practice, pursuant to NH Administrative
Rule Nur 700; and

1.7.3.2. Personal care services, as described in NH Administrative
Rule He-E 801.22(b), when the individuars person-
centered plan contains documGntation that his or her
functional or medical condition necessitates the
performance of such tasks by an LNA and r>bt an
unlicensed provider.
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1.7.4. The Contractor shall coordinate home health aide services to ensure
no duplication of services when the indlviduai is also receiving home
delivered meals, otherTitle Ml services, or services at an adult medical
day program, in an assisted living facility, or. in an adult family care
home.

1.8. Nursing Services

1.8.1. The Contractor shall provide nursing services through Title III to
eligible individuals, which include, but are not limited to;

1.8.1.1. Providing nurslrTg services in an individuars home by a
home health care provider licensed in accordance with
RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P 809.

1.8.1.2. Providing the services by individuals who are licensed
practical nurse (LPN) or registered nurse (RN) working
within the scope of services allowed under the NH Nurse
Practice Act, RSA 326-B.

1.0.2. The Contractor shall provide the following nursing services based on
the Individual's need;

1.8.2.1. Receiving referrals from an individual's health care
provider(s).

1.8.2.2. Performing an evaluation of the individuaPs medical
needs. ' '

1:8.2.3. Developing a .nursing care plan and incorporating this
information into the Individual's person-centered plan.

1.8.2.4. Providing nursing services In accordance with the
Individual's person-centered plan as described in NH
Administrative Rule He-E 502 and as ordered by his or her
primary care physician.

1.8.2.5. Coordinating nursing services to ensure'that there is no
duplicate provision of services.

1.8.2.6. Ensuring thai LPN and registered nursing services are not
covered when provided for the purpose of nursing
oversight of authorized LNA services.

1.9. Service Administration

1.9.1. Access to Services

1.9.1.1. The Contractor shall assist individuals in accessing the
services In this Agreement by:
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1.9.1.1.1. Accepiing applications for services directly
from an individual and In accordance with
Section 19.2.. below; and'

»

1.9.1.1.2. Accepting referrals of individuals from the
Department's Adult Protection Program.

1.9.2. Client Request and Application for Services

1.9.2.1. The Contractor stiaii complete an Intake and application
for services in accordance with the requirements with NH
Administrative Rule He-E 501. The .Social Services Block
Grant (Title XX) and NH Administrative Rule He-E 502,
Older Americans Act Services: Title IIIB - Supportive
Services, TiUe I1IC1 and 02 - Nutrttion Program Policies,
And Title IHp - Disease Prevention And Health Promotion
Services and:

1.9.2.1.1. Complete Form 3000 Application provided
by the Department for Title XX In Home Care
Services.

1.9.2.1.2. Complete Form 3000 Application provided
by the Department, or complete a Contraclor
owned form that includes the same
information as the Form 3000 Application for
Title III In Horne Care Services, In Home
Health Aide Level of Care Services, and In
Home Nursing Level of Care Services.

1.9.3. Client Eligibility Requirements for Services

1.9.3.1. The Contraclor shall complete an assessment for eligibility
In accordance with the New Hampshire Administrative
Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502.

1.9.3.2. The Contractor shall determine whether a client, except for
those clients referred by the Department s Adult Protection
Program In Section 1.9.7.2., is eligible for services in this
Agreement using the Information collected during the
assessment and In accordance with the requirements in
the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2.

1.9.3.3. The Contractor shall provide notice of eligibility or non-
eliglbility to clients and provide services to clients for the
eligibility period in accordance with the laws and rules
listed in Section 1.2.
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1-9.3.4. The Contractor shall re-determine whether a client is
eligible .to receive services in accordance with the
requirements in the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2.

1.9.3.5. The Contractor may terminate services to a client In
accordance with the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2.

1.9.3.6. the Contractor shall obtain a service authorization for In
Home Care Services, In Home Health Aide Level of Care
Services only, from the Department once the client has
been^ deterrnined or re-determined eligible to receive
scrvi^s by submitting a completed Form 3502 "Contract
Service Authorization - New Authorization" to the
Department.

1.9.4. Client Assessments and Service Plans

-  1.9.4.1. The Contractor shall devolop, with input from each
individual and/or his/her authorized representative, a
person-centered plan to guide the provision of services In
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-
E 501 and He-E 502;

1.9.4.2. The Contractor shall monitor and adjust service plans to
rheet the individual's needs in accordance >wth New
Harnpshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502.

1.9.4.3. The Contractor shall provide servlcos to clients accordir^g
to the- individuals' adult protective service plan determined
by the Department's Adult Protection Program to prevent
or ameliorete the circumotsncos that contribute to the
individual's risk of, neglect, abuse, and exploitation.

1.9.4.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department, within 30
.. days of the Agreement effective date, 1^. p^tocols and.

practices to ensure that Individuals '■ who exhibit
problematic behavior due to mental health, or
developmental Issues or criminal histories receive

r. services.

1.9.5. person Centered Provision of Services

1.9.5.1. The Contractor shall incorporate the following Guiding
Principles for Pers'on-Centered Planning Philosophy into
all services provided under this Agreement:
1.9.5.1.1. Individuals and families are invited.

welcomed, and supported as full participants
in service planning and decision-making.
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I

1.9.5.1.2. Individual's wishes, values, and beliefs are
considered and respected.

1.9.5.1.3. Individuals are listened to; needs and
concerns are addressed.

1.9.5-1.4. Individuals receive the information they need
to make informed decisions.

1.9.5.1.5. Individual's preferences drive the planning
process, though the decision making
process may need to be accelerated to

respond to emergencies.

1.9.5.1.6. Individual's services are designed,
scheduled, and delivered to best meet the
needs and preferences of said individual.

1.9.5.1.7. Individual's rights are affirmed and
protected.

1.9.5.1.8. Individuals are protected frcrh e;(ploitatlon,
abuse, and neglect.

1.9.6.1.9. Individual's services plans are based on
person-centered planning and may be
incorporated into existing service plans or
documents atreadyv being used by the
Contractor

1.9.6. Client Fees and Donations

1.9.6.1. The Contractor shall comply with the donation
requirements for Title III Services. The Contractor:

1.9.6.1.1. May ask individuals receiving services for a
voluntary donation towards' the co^t of the
service, except as stated In Section 1.9.7.
Adult Protection Services;

1.9.6.1.2. May suggest an amount for donations in
1  accordance with ; New Hampshire

Administrative Rule He-E 502.12;

1.9.6.1.3. Shall ensure the donation- Is purely
voluntary, and must not refuse services if an
individual Is unable or unwilling to donate:

1.9.6.1.4. Shall not bill or invoice clients and/or their
families; and
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1.9.6.1.5. Shall ensure that at! donations support the
program for which donations were given.

1.9.6.2. The Contractor shall comply with the foe requirements for
Title XX Services. The Contractor: ^

1.9.6.2.1.- May charge fees to individuals, (except as
stated in Section 1.97. Adult Protection
Services), receiving Title XX services
provided that the Contractor estaDllshes a
sliding fee schedule and provides this
information to individuals seeking services.

1.9.6.2.2. Shall ensure that the sliding fee schedule
complies with the requirements of New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 501.

1.9.6.2.3. May not charge fees to clients, referred by
the Department's Adult Protection Program,
for whorh reports of abuse, neglect, self-
neglect and/or exploitation are under
investigation or have been founded or under
investigation.

1.9.6.2.4. Shall ensure that all fees support the
program for which donations were given.

1.9.7. Adult Protection Services

1.9.7.1. The Contractor shall report suspected abuse, neglect, self-
neglect. and/or exploitation of incapacitated adults as
required t5y NH RSA 161-F:46of the Adult Protection law.

1.9.7.2. The Contractor shall accept referrals of clients from the
Department's Adult Protection Program and provide them
with services described in this Agreement.

1.9.7.3. The Contractor shall Inform the referring Adult Protection
Service staff of any changes in the client's situation or
other concerns.

1.97.4. The Contractor shall ensure that the payment received
from the Department for the services required in this
Agreement to clients who are active reclplGnts of Adult
Protection Services, is payment in full for those services,

■ and must refrain from making any attempt to secure
additional reimbursement of any type.

1.9.8. Referring Clients to Other Services
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1.9.8.1. The Contractor shall identify and refer clients to other
services and programs that may assist the client, as
applicable.

1.9.9. Client Wait Lists

1.9.9.1. The Contractor shall ensure that all services covered by
this Agreement are provided to the extent that funds, staff
and/or resources for this purpose are available.

1.9.9.2. The Contractor shall maintain a wait list in accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E
502 when funding or resources are not available to provide
the requested services.

1.9.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure individuals with adult
protective needs in accordance with RSA 161-F:42-57. are
given priority, and:

1.9.9.3.1. If the Contractor has a waitlist for providing
contracted services, then APS referrals shall
be given priority on that waitlist.

1.9.9.4. The Contractor shall include at a minimum the following
Information on Its wait list:

1.9.9.4.1. The individual's full name and dale of birth.

1.9.9.4.2. The name of the service being requested.

1.9.9.4.3. The date upon which the individual applied
for services, which shall be the date the
application was received by the Contractor.

I  1.9.9.4.4. Ttie target dale of impiernenting the services
based on the communication between the
individual and the Contractor..

1.9.9.4.5. The date upon which the Individual's name
was placed on the wait list, which shall be
the date of the notice of decision in which the

individual was determined eligible for Tftte
XX services.

1.9.9.4.6. The individual's assigned priority on the wait
list, determined in accordance with NH
Administrative Rules He-E 501 and 502.

1.9.9.4.7. A brief description of the individual's
circumstances and the services he or ehe

needs.
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1.9.9.5. The Contractor shall prioritize each individual's standing
on the wait list by determining the individual's urgency of
need In the following order:

1.9.9.5.1. individual is in an institutional setting or is at
risk of being admitted to or discharged from
an institutional setting.

^  1.9.9.5.2. Declining mental or physical health of the
caregtver.

i  1.9.9.5.3. Declining mental or physical health of the
individual.

1.9.9.5.4. Individual has no respite services while living
. with a caregiver,

1.9.9.5.5. Length of time on the wait list.
1.9.9.5.6. When two (2) or more individuals on the wait

list have been assigned the same service
priority, the Individual served first shall be the
one with the earliest application date.

1.9.9.5.7. Individuals who are being served under the
Adult Protection Program", as mandated in
NH RSA 161-F: 42-57 Shall be exempt from
the wait list in accordance with NH
Administrative Rules He-E 501.14 (f) and
He-E 502.13.

1.9.9.6. The Contractor shed notify the individual in writing when
an individual Is placed on the wait list.

1.9.9.7. The Contractor shall make the wait list available to the
Department upon request.

1.9.10. E-Studio Electronic Information System
1.9.10.1. The Contractor shall use the Department's E*Studto

electronic information system for uploading reports to the
Department and receiving important informalion from the
Department concerning time-sensitive announcements,
policy releases, administrative rule adoptions, and other
critical information.

1.9.10.2. The Contractor shall Identify all of the key personnel who
need to have E-Studio accounts to ensure that information
from the Department can be shared with the necessary
staff.
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1.9.10.3. The Contractor shall ensure that their E-Studio account(s)
are kept current and that the Department Is notified when
a staff member is no longer working in the program so
his/her account can be terminated.

1.9.11. Grievance and Appeals Process

1.9.11.1. The Contractor shall maintain a system for tracking.
resolving, and reporting client complaints regarding its
services, processes, procedures, and staff that includes,
but is not limited to;

1.9.11.1.1. The client's name.

1.9.11.1.2. The type of service received by the client.

,1.9.11.1.3. The date of written complaint or concern of
the client.

1.9.11.1.4. The nature/subject of the complaint or
concern of the client.

1.9.11.1.6. The staff position In the agency who
addresses complaints and concerns.

1.9.11.1.6. . The methods for Informing dients of their
rights to file a complaint, concern, or an
appeal of the Contractor's decision.

19.11.2. The Contractor shall make any filed complaints or
concerns made by the client available to the Department
upon request.

1.9.12. Client Feedback

1.9.12.1. The Contractor shall obtain client feedback as required In
New Hampshire Administralive Rules He-E 50112 and
He-E 502.11

19.13. Support Services During an Emergency. Disaster or Crisis

19.13.1 The Contractor shall provide support services to eligible
individuals who are homebound in accordance with the
Older Americans Act during a declaration of emergency or
disaster, which may include delivery services for essential
needs.

1.9.13.2. The Contractor shall provide COVID-19 pandemic support
services, which may include, but not be limited to: ^
1.9.13.2.1 Disseminating information about.cbVlD-19

vaccines, and directing Individuals with
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questions to addttlonal sources of .
infomnallon. '

1.9.13.2.2. Addressing inequity In COVIO-19
'  vaccination access among older adults,

family careglvers, and aging network staff
and volunteers from communities defined by
race, ethnicity, geography, disability,
income, sexual orientation, genderjdentity,
and other factors.

1.9.13.2.3. Arranging and/or providing accessible
transportation to COVID-19 vaccination sites
for individuais and their careglvers.

1.9.13.2.4. Planning and organizing vaccination
activities.

1.9.13.2.5. Assisting older adults to receive COVID-19
booster shots, if necessary.

1.9.13.2.6. Providing Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) to staff and/or individuals served.

1.10; The Contractor shall provide'sufficient staff who have the skills to perform ait
services specified in this Agreement.

,1.11. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry
out all of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties In a timely fashion for
the number of clients arrd geographic area as Identified in this Agreement.

1.12. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have
appropriate training,, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the
responsibilities of their respective positions.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel end training records and
documentation of all Individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications are
current.

1.14. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan, and submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty (30) days of
the contract effective date that includes:

1.14.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key
personnel or other "personnel during the period of this Agreement;

1.14.2. A description of how additional staff resources will be allocated in the
event of inability to meet any performance standard;

1.14.3. A description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff '
replacements;
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1.14.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, In a timely
manner, staff replacements/additions with comparable experience*
and '

1.14.5. A description of the method for training new staff members performing
duties required under this Agreement.

1.15. The Contractor shall complete a criminal background check for each staff
member or volunteer will be intemcting with or providing hsnds-on care to

.  individuals in compliance with the requirements of New' Hampshire
Administrative Rules He-P 81fi. Adult Day Programs, Section 809.17,
Personnel, and He-P 822, Home Care Service Provider Agencies, Section
822.17, Personnel.

1.16. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by.the Department.

1.17. The Contractor Shalt facilitate revievirs of files conducted by the Department on
a semi-annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that may
include, but are not limited to:

1.17.1, Desk reviews: or

1.17.2. On-site reviews.

1.18. Reporting

1.18.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the provision of Home
Health services to the Departmenlto ensure program compliance. The
Contractor shall ensure:

1.20.1.1. The report is submllted on a pre-defined electronic form
supplied by the Department by the 15th day of the month,
following the end of each quarter; and

1.20.1.2. The report includes, but Is not limited to:

1.20.1.2.1. Expenses by program service provided.

1.20.1.2.2. Revenue, by program service provided, by
funding source. "

1.20.1.2.3. Total amount of donation and/or fees
collected from all Individuals as defined in
Section 1.9.6.

1.20.1.2.4. Actual pnlts served, by program service
provided, by funding source.

1.20.1.2.6. Number of unduplicated clients served, by
service provided, by funding source.
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1.20.1.2.6. Number, of Title HI and Title XX clients
<  served VA/Ith funds not provided by the

Department.

1.20.1.2.7. Unmet need/waiting list.

1.20.1.2.8. Lengths of time clients are on a wailing list.

1.20.1.2.9. The number of days individuals did not
receive planned serv)ce(s) due to the
8ervlce(s) not being available due to
inadequate staffing or other related
Contractor issue.

1.20.1.2.10. Explanation describing the reasons for
individuals' not receiving their planned
services in this Agreement.

1.20.1.2.11. A plan to address how to resolve the issues
in Sectionl.20.1.2.10.

1.18.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.19. Performance Measure

1.19.1. The Contractor shall ensure lhai all Individuals' plans of care contain
elements of person-centered planning for services in accordance with
NH Administrative Rules He-E 502.17 and He-E 501.21 and as
conflmied by the Department during a site review.

2. Exhibits Incorporated ,

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1998, and In
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms "of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
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3.1.1. The Contracior agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the right lo modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Llnguisfcally
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communlcatioh access

-  and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
rneanlngful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; Individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals'who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credite and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health end
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the Stale of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from Ihe Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contracior shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;
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EXHIBIT B

4.1.1. Books, records, documenis and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
-services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibillly (Including all foims required to determine.eligibiiily for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submilled to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for In the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except .such obligations as. by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of-the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Con^ctor.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by:
1.1. 58.8% Federal funds.

1.1.1. 5.5% Older Americans Act Title Ill-B, as awarded on April 27,
2022, by the Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB
Supportive Services. CFOA 93.044. FAIN 2201NHOASS.

1.1.2. 53.3% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1,
2021. by the Social Services Block Grant. CFDA 93 667 FAIN
2101NHSOSR

1.2. 41.2% Genera! funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subredptent, in accordance wiih 2 CFR 200.331.
2.2. The Agreement as NOn-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified In Exhibit C-1. Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the senrices were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is Submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs Incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each Invoice
that may include, but are not limited to. time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed,-dated and relumed to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.beasinvoicBS@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street
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Concord. NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified, in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget dass lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parlies, without
obletning approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified..

8. Audits

8i1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.90v if
any of the following conditions exist;

8.1.1... Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

. 8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor is a public company and required
-by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations .to
submit an annual Financial audit.

8.2. Jf Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant.(CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.rih.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part. 200, Subpart F of the Unifpnri
Administrative Requirements, Cost Prindples,- and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress' reports on the status of

1  implementation of the corrective action plan.

Ivo
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8.3. If Condition B or Condition C eidsts, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. In addition to, and not in any .way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, It Is understood and agreed by the Contractor ittat the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions'
and shall retuim to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have beert
disallowed because of such an exception.
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ixhibit C*1 Rate Sheet

Home Health Services ■ Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

^  Adufltn-Honie Care Unit Type

Total# of Unilsof

Service

anticipated to be
' delivered.

Rate per
Service

Tola! Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service
Tide XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 42.900 $1200 $  514.800 00
Tide IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 5.000 512.00 S  60.000.00
THIe IIIB Horne Health Aide 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $  38.384.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour - 214 $2573 $  5.506 09

7/1/2023 through OS/30/2024 iService Units i

Adull In-Home Care- Unit Type

Total# of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per
Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service
Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour , 42.900 $12.00 $  514.800.00
Title IIIB In Home Servtces 1/2 Hour 5.000 $12.00 $  60.000.00
Title 1110 Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 2.399 $16.00 $  38.384.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 214 $25.73 $  5.506.22
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geg.TJFI<?AnON REQARDINO DRUR-free workplace RFouiHFMPMTft

c ̂ ®9rGe3 to comply wfm th© provisions of
Ia- ^ Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^90. Title V. SubUtle 0; 41

ir fv fi tbrthar agraee to hav© the Contractor's rcpresenlative, as identified In Sections1.11 and 1.12 of the Qeneral Provisions oxecute thefoOowing Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US department of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - COMTRAGTORS

This C^ication is required by the regulations Implementing SecUons 5151-5160 Of the Drua^=rBe
Wortplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-890. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). The JantW 31

amer»ded and published ©s Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Rcgteier (pag^
21681-21891), and require certircatlon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractore). prior to award, thai they will malnmin a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.B30(c) of the
regulatJw provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grnntees and sub^ontraciorK) thai is a State
may cleci to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by Ihe cerllfteatlon. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed wiien the agency awards tlie grant Fafse
certlflcaUon or violation of the certification ehail be grounds for suspension of payinants. susoenslon or
tcrminaUbn of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Coniraclors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Servicos
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NK 03301-6505

1. The grantee certined that it win or will continue to provide a drug-free vw>rkptace by:
1.1. Publishrng a statement nolifying employees thai tha unlawful manufacture, dislribuUon,

dispensing, possesskjn or use of a controlled substance Is pfohlbited in the grantan's
workplace and specifying the actions that will bo leken ageinsl employess for violation of such

.  prohibiUon:
1.2. Estatilishing an onguing dnjg-fron Awarencsa program to Inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In U>e workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of malntslning a drug-free workplsce;
1.2.3. Arty available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; end

• 1.2.4. The penaliies thai may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violalions
occurring in the workplace:

1.3. Making it u requirement that each cmptoyfte lo l>e engaged In toe perfoffnance of the grant be
given b copy of too stetemcni required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement requirert by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under toe grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the SlSlemenl; and
1.4.2. Notify the cmpieyer In writing of his or her Conviction tor a violation of's criminal drug

statute o'ccurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying Ihe agency In wriling. within (on calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise reccMng actual notice of such convlclion.
Employers of convicted cmployeey must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ErtiltJil D - GeftiflcflSon reo^irifl Ffiw Vondoflniliob, JTK) ,
Workplace Raqukwents 7 1 > /
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Exhibit 0

has designated a central point lor Ute receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identlflcation number($) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the fbllowtng sctions. wnthin .10 calendar days of receiving notice urtder
aubperagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any wnpldyee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking apprc^atc personnel action against such en emptoyce, up to and including

termlrvation. consietent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
emended; or

1.0.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfacloflly In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabllilalidn proqmrri appro^ fnr such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or oiher appropriale agency.

1.7. Making b good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paregrapha 1.1. 1.2,1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6,

2. The granteo may inaert in' the apace provided bolow the site(s) for the performance of work done In
conneoUon with the Specific grant

Race of Performance (sirect address, city, county, stale, zip codo) (list each location)

Chuck Q if there are workplaces on file that ore not identified here.

vendor Name:

Date 7 hD^meiMargo s/miyanDate
TItJe:

ExN&il D - CenidCStlon rm^rdlrvg Onia FnM Vendor IniOBb.
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certification REGAftDING LQBBVIMft

Tl^ Ver^or l^noned in Section 1.3 of the Genoral Provisions agrees lo comply with tho provisions of
???? c"/? ?a« 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictiono on Lobbyino, and

4?" fuWer agmes to have the Contractor's representative, as idenllfiod in Sections i.i iand 1.12 of the General Provisions executo the following CortlHcatfon:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVtCES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy FamiCes under Title iv-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social SeMcea Block Gmnt Program under Title XX
•Medlcald Program under Title XIX
•Commirniiy Services Block Grant under Tltte VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV-

The undersigned cerOfies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai:

1. No Federal appropriaiea funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for infiuRncIng or atlempiing to influence an officer or employee'of any egency. a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress In
connection i^lh the awarding of any Federal contrect. continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of eny Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arxJ by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-conuaclor).

2. If any funds other than Fedi^al appropriatad funds have been paid ur will be paid to any person for
influencing or ellemptlng to Influenco an officer or ernployee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an offlMr or employee of Congress, or an emi^oyee of a Member of Congress in conr>ection with this'
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (8r>d by specific m^rtion oub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shaii compieto end submit Starxlord Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The underslgnod shall require that tho longuage of tt"a cortiflcotlon b« inctuded In the award
documant for sub-awards at all liorR (Including subcontracts, sub-grants. end contracts under grants
loan.s, end cooperative egreemenls) and tJial all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cer^ficaiion Is a material representation of (act upon wliich reliance was placed whan this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of tfiis cenlficaUon Is.a prerequisite for making or entorlnfi into this
transaclion Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall t>e subject to a civil penally of nolless than SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each Such failure.

Vendor Name:

Name: waj ^

Exhibit E - Certfflcattoft Regording Lobbyino Vendor Inhixlj /9K).
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CPttTIPICATlQN REGARDING DEBARMEMT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPOMSIBILfTV MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General provisions.agrees to comply with the provisions ot
Executive Office of the Prealdenl, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regardlnd DeDarment.
Suspenjlon. and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certlflMtioh set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily resutl in denial
of participation in thip covered-transaction. If-necessary. the prospective participant shaD submit an
explanation Of why It cannot provide the certifcaiion. The ccrtfication or explanation will t)e
consklerod In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an expianailon shall diaqualify euch person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certiflcelion in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which rallanoa was ptac^
Nvhen OHHS determined to enter Into this transaction, if it is later determined that the prosp^tive
primary participant Knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to. the Federal Govemmanl, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The-prospective primary parilcipam shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submillad if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
thai Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

6. The terms "covered iransactjon," "debarred." 'suspended.* "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "partldpan!." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal,' and
"voluntsnly excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings sat out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of tho rules Implementing Executive Order 1254G: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached deflnillohs.

6.' The prospective primary participant egrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared irteligiWe. or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further egrees by submitting this proposal thai It will include the
cteuse titled "Certlficaiion Regarding Det>armsnl Suspension. IneligibUity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lo^r tlor covered
transactiomi and in ell soUcileUong for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered/tr^nsactton may rely upon a certification of e prospective participant In a
lower tier covered trensacllon that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or hvoluhlarily excluded
from the covered tronsaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
. decide thc method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system Of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhKA F - Certific«llon Res>r4lno Dvbannenl, Su9p«nSiM Coiiuactor WtiOh
And Othvr Rvcponviblltly Milters
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Nw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servteee
Exhibit F

information of a jwrtidpant is not required to exceed that which is normelly possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary couree of business dealings.

10. Except for transacKons auttiortced under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction Knowingiy enters into e lowsr tier covered transaction with a person who Is
su^nded. debarred, metlgible. or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Irensactlon. In
addition to other remedies avaiiabie, to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
Tor cause Of default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary partiapantvcerUfles to the best of its krKwIedge and. belief, that It and Its

pnnclpaiS!
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, pfopoaed for debarment deciared ineligible, or

voluntarily «duded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency
11.2. have nol within a ihrBe«year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil Judgment rendered against mem for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Fedarai. Ststa or local)
tranBactlon or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate anlitrusl
slotutea or commission of embealement. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false staiements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminatly or civilly charged by a governmental entity
• (Federal, State or local) vnlh commission of eny of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (1Kb)
ofthlscertlficaiipn; and . o r \/\ /

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this eppllcatidn/proposdl had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) lermlnated for cause or default

12. Where ttw prospective primary partidpa^^t is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant'shall attach en explanation to this pfaposal (contract).

LOWER TtER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it end its principals:
13.1. are rtol presently debanrad. susper^ded, proposed for debarment, declared ineligibte, or

voluntarily eluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier partidparrt is unable to o^fy to ony of (he above, such

prospective partldpani Shall attach an explanation to this propoaai (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'CertificaUon Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Inellgibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered TransacUons." without modificattan (n ell lower tier covered
trar^saetlons and In all solicitations for lower tier covered trenssctions.

Contractor Name:

At
m

vanName:Ma%_ „ . ..

Exnibit F - Certificstton Rse^InO Debarment, Svapension Canlractor InlUaJi
Antf Other RespqnalWItyMWoro ^
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CERTlFlCATiON OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contrector identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identlfl.ed In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followlnQ
corliflcation:

.Contractor will comply, end will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any appllcabiB
federal nondiscrimination requiremehts, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42.U.S.C. Section 37890) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
reqijires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Oppor^nhy Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets AcL Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohtoits recipients of federal financial
arwlKlance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of FedereJ nnanclai
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to empbyment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americens vvtlh Olsabillilcs Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and locet
goyernmenl services, public accommodations, commercial fadliliefi. and Iransportabon: .

. the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.16B3.1685-86). which prohibits
discrirnlnation on the basis of sex in federaiiy assisted education programs;

- the Age Dlscfimlnation Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 0106-07), vrhtah prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment dlscfimination;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 31(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - GJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Juelioe Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Execulivs Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for falth-bascd and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559'. which provide fundamental principles end pollcy-maKIng
criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); ond Whlstleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Aulhorlxatlon
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlstleblower Protections, which protects emptoyees against
reprisal for certain whistle bbwing aclivltles in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material represeiitation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency swards the grant. False certification or violation of the certiflcatton shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspenston or
debarment '

C«nncii0an tfCar^Uxn vrfBi >«gui>««Nr(9
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In the ovant s FodOfal or Stato court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process bearing on the grounds of race, cofor, religion, nadonel origin, or sex
against a i^plent of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the offico for Civil Rights, to
the appllceble contracting agency or division wtthln the Department of i-leetth and Human Services, end
to the-Oepartmeni of Heeiih and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by slgnelure of the Contrector'e
representative ee Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisicne, to execute the followrno
certification: ®

1. 8y signing and sul>mlttlng this proposal (contract) tha Contractor ogrees to compty wltti the provlsiorxs
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Da.. • jjl^NSmS: >4a rgo ̂  11 ̂ an

Exhibit Q
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubRc Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco SmoKc. also known as the" Pro-Children Act of 1fl04
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enliiy and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heslih, day care, Gducatlon,
Of library serviCGS to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or locel govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences. tecHities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuB in the imposttion of a dvil monetary periaity of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Impoaltion of an adminfstraUve complldnco order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Controctor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the Genoral Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By Rignhg and Bubmitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, -known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contradof Name:

Date Name; Mac

Title:

cuoHHsmom

Exhlfal H -Cs/tincstlon ReflflhSIng
Enyltonmenlni Tobecco ̂ pX«

Page 1 of 1

CpntntdgrliiUlstu
.  1

' Date

JW

m'ISL



Oocusign Envelope ID; CD3E7580-98B6-4C81-BFF3-74BFEB2ED528

DocuStof) EnveiOpO ID; 9B86CO53^F93r47E4-A9C4-632P4330DF62
r,.. «wvvnr»»«io.e^.Mj>iO^O^CflWJflVAM2B4

New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTARILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGRggMg^T

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 erxl
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually IdGrtlfleble Health Informallon. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health infonmalioh under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal/Regulations.

b- 'Business Assodale" has the meaning given such term in seciion 160.103 of TIUo 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

"Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the torm "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Auomnatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "date aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f* "Health care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

9- "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlii, SubtiUe 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as Ihe term "Indlvldua)" In 45 CFR Section '160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501 (g).

1  'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually idGnliflabie Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HjPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Hurnan Services.

k- "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Seciion 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

ExhlWll . ' Cu. initials
Health Insumtiwj PortnWIty Act ^ /
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I. . "Rfloulred bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term Tequired by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Deparbnenl of Health and Human Services or
his/her dcslgnee.

n. 'Secufity Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Infomialion at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendrnenls thereto.

•  0. "UnfiQcured Protected Health Information- means protected health informetioo thai is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indectpherable'to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American Nallonai Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Ports 160,162 arid 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

AcL

(2) Business Aaaociate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.' Business Associate shaii not use. fiisrtose. maintain or transmit Protected HealUi
Information (PHI) except es reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy end Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: •
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. • For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was'
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreerr>ent from such third party to notify Business
Associate.- in accordance with the HjPAA Privacy. Security, and. Breach Notification
Rules of any broaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtelned
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH) in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Eritlty has .an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriaie relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

ryto
3/2014 ExhIbU I Contr,ic(or Inlllai*
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity nolifies the Business Associate thai Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, me Business Associate
shall be tiound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional r^estrlctions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and ActMtles of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify ihe Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
efter the Business Associate becomes aware of any use .or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have en Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Assodats shall ImmBdiatGiy perform a risk assessment when It becomes
• aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

limited to:

o  "Rie nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiere and the likelihood of re-ldentlficatlon;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

G Whether the protected health intormaiion was octualiy acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

. mitlgaied. .

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

0. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secrclary for ^
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business assodates that receive, use or have
eocess to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhfclt I Convoctor Inllkib
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.  pursuant to this Ayreemeni. with riQhts erf enforcement and Indenihincotlon from such
business associates who shall be Qovemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P'37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make evaiiabie during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms .of the Agreement.

g. . Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vmtten request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In d Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Enllly, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under; 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written requesl from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHi or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associste shall make such PMl available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 154.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures-as would be required for Covered Entity lo respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
1.64.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assodaie shall make available
to Covered Entity such information, as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting.of disdosuras with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. .

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonvarded requests.. However, If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy end Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond lo the indlviduars request as requlred by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soqn as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destray, as sj^cified by Covered Entity, an PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection vyflh the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PH) has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protGCtions of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes Utal make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business K ̂
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Associate maintains such PHI. Jf Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that Ihe
Business Assoclale destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) QPIiaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitationCs) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordancG with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to Ihe extent that such change or limitalion may affect Business Associate's

-  useordrsclosureofPHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.S06 or 46 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly noiify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition lo Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement toe Cover^ Entity may immediately terminate toe Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business.Assoclate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit t. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe spacifisd by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation lo the Secretary.'

(6) Miscellaneous
A

Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othervwse defined heroin,
shall have the same meariing as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended lo include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HjPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C- Oaia Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI prodded by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that eny amblguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Segreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per8on(&) or drcumstanre is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affoct other terms'or ,,
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
lerms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable. '

\
Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use ar>d disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and (hdemntfication provisions of section (3) e ar>d Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health ;)nd Human Services

I  ̂
Representative

Christine Santaniello

Name of Authorized Representative

Associate comaissioner

Title of Authorized Representative

6/10/2022

Date

>Name of ttwdontrector ̂

jlgnaturY^ Mhorized Representative
Margo Su1 Hvan

Name of Authorized Representative

^

Tltlft Of Authorised Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I . . .
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The FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUMTahil mr ANO TRANSPARENCY
AgT IFrATAI

The Federal Funding Accountabilrty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prtma swardees of individual
Federa^ grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on

and associated firaWier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the

•ic n^.? " $25,000 but subsequent grant modlfJcaUons result in a total award equal to or over$25.000^e aw^ i$ subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award
Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the

Depar^nt of HeaHh and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following Information for any
sutiaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting rBqufrementS"
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Furrding.agency
4. NAfCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award litte descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

- 7. tj3eet(on of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
0. Unique Idenlifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More then B0% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment Is made. '
The ̂ntractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provtslona of
The Fedara) Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation InfonmatJen), and further agrees'
to have the Contractor's representative, as Wentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provialons
exacutetthe following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the Nh
Department of Health and Human Services end to comply wtth all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Date

Contractor Name:

a  /
Name:

Tille:

EidillillJ-CoitificalJortReBafdJngtheFedtril Funding Coniractoi iniiitib tw,
AecourtobJCty And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompUaftco a / f /, ,

cu«»«niei7i5 Pas* 1 or2 Date U>/0
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FPPMA

As the contractor iUanlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responds to the
below listed ques6ons are true and eccuretc.

1, The DUNS number for your entity Is:

1. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
reeeive.(i) 00 percent or niore of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperalive agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. arxf/or
coopareiivo agreements?

NO YES

3.

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop hero

If the answer to ̂ 2 above i$ YES. please answer tt^e following:

Does the public have access to Information about the compcnBstion of the executives In'your
business or organizetlon through periodic reports filad under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES '
\

If the answer to d3 above is YES. stop here
V

]f the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the foaoswing:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organiratioo are as follows: .

Nome:.

Name':

Name:

Narrte:

Name:

Amount

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

■ Amount

ninDHHynona

ExMbft J - CtdlRcaUon rUginling (he Federal Kurtdins Coniraaor Inttlab.
Accoumibilhy And Tmmpwency Act (FFATA) Comptance

PogoZoTZ Dote.

iw,
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. DefiniUons

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this documenl:

control compromise. uri3uthori2ed disclosure

^.h unauthorized access, or any similar term referring (opersons other man authorized users and for an other than
potential access to personally Identifiablemorrna H>n. v^ether^ f^ysicol or electronic. With regard to Protected Hegith

Zo shall have the same meaning as the term -Breach" In section164.402 of Title.45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. Computer Secuniy incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
^cident in ̂ lon two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Hailing Guide, Natlonal lnstltule of Standards arid Technology. U.S. Oepartmenl
of Commerce,

3. "^nfide^ai information" or "Confidaniial Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
awistanTC benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Healih Information and
Personally Idenltfiabte Information. orniauon ana

Confidential information also Includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of perfoiming contracted
services - of whi^ coUection. disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited lo
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
InformatK^ (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN)
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

r

4. "Erid User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee.
associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives

DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. Incidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unairthorlzed access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of date; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or sofiware characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include Ihe loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of physical or Glectronic

Vb.L.«update 10«a/18 Con.n«ta.lnltal. ̂
DHHS tnlomiaUon
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DHHS Information Security Requlilements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data ai risk of unauthorized
accees. use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of. New Hampshire's Department of Informaiion
Technology or delegate, as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State,'to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequateiy secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. " ^

8. "Personal Information" {or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's idenlily. such as their name, social security number, peraonol
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information whfch Is linked
or linkable to 8 specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Heelth information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health lnformalio'n"-|n the HiPAA Privacy Rule, at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shali mean Ihc Security Standards (or the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health information" means Protected Health tnfotmatlon that Is
not.secured by a technology standard that renders Prot^ted Health .Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organlzetlon that is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIE5QF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confldontial lnformatiori.

1. the Contractor must not use, disclose, maihiafn or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintai.n or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. Lmi upci^tM iwt)8/t8 ExWbit K Cortrooor Initials
DHHS IntorrnaUOft * / f
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. In response to e
subpoena, etc., without f.rst noUfying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or objea to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derlvaUve there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the te.rms of this Contraa.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are nol indicated in this Contract. »

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspectbig to conflrrn compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, if End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data betiween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeabie In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices, End User may not use computer disks
Of portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to recGlve such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. Fije Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such es Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerHfied ground
mail within the continental U.S. and whert sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is arhploylng portable devices to transmit
Confidential Date said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

0. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not trensmit Confidential Data via an open

VO. LDSi update 1(VO9/10 EWitixK Conuttcloriniilii(!i
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wireless networtc. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9 Remote User Communication, if End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit ConfldentlBl Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile d©vlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
traiismitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer.Prolocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

■  structure the Folder and access privilsges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders arxJ sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion-cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ell
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

r  . '

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

■ The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In \whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must; ^

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connacHon with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also a'pply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage-capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabllilies are In .
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for conlractor provided systems.

3. The Conlractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Conlractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of ConfidentlBl Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes end
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the. latest anil-viral, antl-

•  hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

iro
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-delection and firewall protection.

•  agrees to and ensures its complBte cooperation with the State'sChief infOfmation Officer in the detection of ony security vulnerability of the hostirva
infrastructure. ^

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Informalion on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor win maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, eleclronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall t>e rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with indusiry-acceptod standards for secure deletion and "media
sanftization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publicalion 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizallon, National institute of Standards arid Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor win document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide, written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and valWated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements" will be jointly,
evaluated by. the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the lerrnlnatlon of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specifiod, within thirty (30) days of the termination ■ of this
. Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy'all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data Of files, as .follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2, The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Departn^nt
confidential informetlon throughout the Informalion llfecycle, where sppllcabie, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

S o( 0 omIv
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■  s 3. The Contraclor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department contidentia! information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities arc In place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate ot NH systems and/or
Department confldGntial information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any coro functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or procwscs that defines specrfic security
expectaiions.^end monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contraclor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign arid comply with all applicable
Slate of New Hampshire and Department system acce-ss and authorization poildes
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 8y5tem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the-Contractor and any applicable sut>-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compllar«» with the
agreement.

e. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagen>ent between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of'New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security,Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

/KO
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. 7 m.?

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulations regarding .the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
man the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including
but r\ot limited to, provisions of the Privacy.Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C § 552a) DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.' x

13. Contractor agrees to establish and malntain appropriatc administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to H. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of Now Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Pfocuremenl a! https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Infonmallon Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to mafntain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the' State's Piivacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer,
security lr>cideni. or suspected breach which affects or Includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems thai connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Gontracl^to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection wth purposes identified In this Conbact.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemanted to protect Confidcrrtia! Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at atl-times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI." PI. or
PR arc encrypted and passworci-prolected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If sncrvoted and being
sent to and belr^ received by email addresses of parsons authorized to
receive such information.

V5.l.ajltjpcJal«nyoB/l0 Exhibit K Cof\hactorlniiials jm.
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e. limlt dlsdosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area ttiat is
-physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, eic.).

g. only authorized End Users may transrnlt the Confidential Data, including any
derivelive files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section (V above.

h. In all ■ other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined. by a rlsk-basad
assessment of the circumstancBS involved.

i. urxjerstand that their user credentials (user name and passsword) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential inform^ion secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through

. a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversigM and compliance of theifxEnd Users. DHHS
reserves the right to' conduct onsite" inspecliona lo monitor compliance wHh this
Contract, indudihg the privacy and security requiremerils provided In herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

Th© Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handlirtg and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with A2 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligaliOAS and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how ttie Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information Is involved in inddenis;
3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

vs. L031 update 1(V08/10 , ConlmctorlniiW,
DHHS Inrormatlon

Securtty Rftqirircments
p»g««ors ''S'®

JW-
jdljii
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Socurity Requirements

5. DBtermin© father Breach nolificatlon is required, and. If so. Idenltfy appropriate
Breach noW^tion melhods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incldente and/or. Breaches thai Implicate PI must be addressed and reported as
applicable, m accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer.

.OHHSlnformatronSGCUfltyOfr1ce@dhhs.nh.90v

ContrActnrlr^tlats
VS. UkJ update 10fl)9/18 Exhibit K

Dl'iHS intormotion
Security^ RequinHnen b

Pc^ 94>i 9 Date iJu
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment#3

This Amendment to the Home Health Services contract i? by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2022 (Item 47), as amended on June 28, 2023 (Item #62), and most recently amended
on June 12, 2024 (Item #30A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and •

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: [

$5,841,965.80

2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1., to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 58.38% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 8.77% Older Americans Act Title lll-B, as awarded on September 8, 2022,
February 13, 2023, and September 24, 2024, by the Administration for
Community Living, Title NIB, Supportive Services, ALN 93.044, FAINs
2201NHOASS, 2301NHOASS, and 2401NHOASS;

1.1.2. 49.17% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1, 2021, by the
Social Services Block Grant, ALN 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR: and

1.1.3. .44% Older Americans Act Title IIIB-ARP,. as awarded on May 3, 2021, by the
Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB-ARP, Supporting Services, ALN
93.044, FAIN2101NHSSC6.

1.2. 41.62% General funds.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, lead in paragraph only, to read:

3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per unit rate in accordanc^e with Exhibit C-1, Amendment
#3, Rate Sheet through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #2, Rate Sheet.

4. Modify Exhibit C-1, Amendment #2, Rate Sheet, by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit C-1,
Amendment #3, Rate Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

\

Waypoint A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date 3/20/2025
v7.12.23

r—Initial
wt
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to November 1,2024, upon Governor
and Council approval.

I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/24/2025

DocuSigned by:

■1323A2404C»OF49S..

Date Name; Melissa Hardy
Title:

Waypoint

2/24/202S

Director, DLTSS

-Signtd by:

llUayv^ Ix.
—2EeDBA2«4O9F4S0..

Date Name: Borja Alvarez de Toledo

president and CEO

Waypoint A-S-1.3

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A03 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoGuSignMi by:

3/1/2025 ' [ "

Date Name: Robyn cuar-ino

Attorney ,

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was-approved-by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Waypoint A-S-1.3

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A03 Page 3 of 3
V, 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment tt3, Rate Sheet

Adult In-Home Care - Waypoint {Hillsborough County)

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being

Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 77.380 $12.00 $928,560.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 10.476 $12.00 $125,712.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1,810 $16.00 $28,960.00
Title IIIB Nursino 1/2 Hour 300 $25.73 $7,719.00

Subtotal 89,966 $1,090,951.00

7/1/2023 through 06/30/2024 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

.  delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 77.380 $12.00 $928,560.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 10.476 $12.00 $125,712.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.810 $16.00 $28,960.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 300 $25.73 $7,719.00
HCBS ARP In Home Services 1/2 Hour 0 $12.00 $0.00
HCBS ARP Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 0 $16.00 $0.00
HCBS ARP Nursing 1/2 Hour 0 $25.73 50.00

Subtotal 89.966 $1,090,951.00

7/01/2024 through 06/30/2025 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 58.035 $16.00 $928,560.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour- 7.857 $16.00 $125,712.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.747 $16.58 $28,965.26
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 632 $64.50 $40,764.00

Subtotal 68.271 $1,124,001.26

7/01/2025 through 06/30/2026 Service Units

In Home Services Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

-  Total Amount of

Monthly Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 58.035 $16.00 $928,560.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 7.857 .  $16.00 $125,712.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.747 516.58 $28,965.26
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 632 $64.50 $40,764.00

Subtotal 68.271 $1,124,001.26

Overall Total 316.474 $4,429,904.52

Waypoint

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A03

Exhibit C-1, Amendment «3. Rate Sheet

Contractor Initials:

r—Inittal
wt

2/24/2025
Date:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanian. Secrctao' of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Sccrctar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number: 0006775282

^5^

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixc_d

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of September A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanian

Sccrctar)' of State
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WAYPOINT
Help Along the Way

rorpifty

CHILD AND FAMtLY SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, MARK C. ROUVADS. Board Chair, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT.

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Agency duly held on 12/4/18:

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters Into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, and any of its
agencies or departments.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into
the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO of the Agency.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Date j I Mafk C. Rouvalis
i
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/31/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

contact Stephanie Peffer

(603)669-3218 (603)64M331

ADDRESS-' fTianch.certstgcrossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A
Philadelphia lr>demnlty Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Waypoint >

Po Box 448

Manchester NH 03105

INSURER B Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURERC
Travelers Cas. & Surety Co of America 31194

INSURERD

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All 25-26 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS.
POLICY EFF

(MWOO/YYYVt
POLICY EXP

[MM/OO^YYYITYPE OF INSURANCE
moc
'USD

SDBff

MB POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
INSR
LTR .

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrwica)

PHPK2570618 07/01/2024

MED EXP (Any ona pef»on)

07/01/2025
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY n jIct n LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER; Professional Liability

PRODUCTS - COMPiOP AGG

Each.lncldent$1M

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

3,000.000 - agg

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa actidenH

1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2570610 07/01/2024 07/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per aecWenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer accMenil

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH (XCURRENCE
4,000.000

PHUB869967 07/01/2024 07/01/2025 AGGREGATE
4,000.000

X RETENTION S 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICERTMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandetory In NH]
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

H R01710HCHS2025-01 {3a.) NH 01/01/2025 01/01/2026
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYES
1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1,000.000

Fidelity & Forgery
105912196 04/01/2024 04/01/2027

Limit

Deductible

500.000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Remarks Schedule, mey be ettached If more spece is required)

DHHS: State of NH, Division for Children, Youth & Families are listed as additional Insureds with respects to the CGL as per written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DHHS: State of NH Director Division for Children. Youth

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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WAYPOINT
Kelp Aloiig the Way

Fomtrly

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

MISSION STATEMENT:

Empbvvering people of all ages; through an array of human services: and advocacy

HEADQUARTERS

toll fr^(800);6<l0.6186

fl6'l.Chestnu{lStreet
PO Bo)U448
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Help Along the Way

s.. V
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MARCUM
ACCOUNTANTS a ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

Waypoint

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Waypoint, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2023, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Waypoint and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted jn the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Waypoint's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated
financial statements are available to be issued.

MarcumLLP /. 9 Exeaillve Park Drive / Suite 100 / Merrlmack, NH 03054 / Phone 603,882.1111 ./ marcumltp.com
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS arid Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Waypoint's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates niade by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waypoint's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2023 and 2022 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
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generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements of Waypoint as of and for the year ended December 31,
2022, were audited by Melanson, whose report dated May 10, 2023 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 20,
2024 on our consideration of Waypoinfs internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over finahcial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the, effectiveness of Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Merrimack, NH

May 20, 2024
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

{with comparative totals as of December 31, 2022)

2023

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2023

Total

2022

Total

Asseb

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for

credit losses ofSI 1,667 and $300

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

'I'otal Current Assets

$  5.649,783

70,644

1,141,771

1.649,265

88,258

198,073

$ $  5,649,783

70.644

1,141,771

1,649.265

88,258

198,073

$  712,445

76,756.

801,732

1.274,880

587.001

8,797,794
-

8,797.794 3.452.814

Noncurrent Assets

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

Property and equipment, net

Operating right-of-usc assets, net

16.966,133

9,675,555

293,239

4,428.622 •

2,165,143

21.394.755

2,165.143

9,675.555

293,239

18.568,769

2,020,741

10,10.5,143

334.034

Total Noncurrent Assets 26,934.927 6.593,765 33,528.692 31,028,687

Total Assets S 35,732.721 $  6,593,765 $' 42,326,486 $ 34,481,501

Linhilitics and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued pa)Toll and related liabilities

Other liabilities

Current portion ofbonds payable

Current portion of operating lease liabilities

Refundable advances

$  185,519

713,461

58,649

180,000

172,933

316,902

$  ■ -- S  185,519

713.461

58.649

180,000

172,933

316,902

S  246,312

891,489

205,887

175,000

175,381

443,742

Total Current Liabilities 1,627,464
-

1,627.464 2,137,81 1

Noncurrent Liabilities

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion
Deferred loans - NHHFA

Interest rate swap agreements

3,175,167

124,897

1,250,000

380,838

3,175,167

124,897

1,250,000

380,838

3,355,167

160,212

1,250,000

399.935

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,930,902 4,930,902 5.165,314

Total Liabilities 6,558,366 - 6,558,366 7,303,125

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

29.174,355

6,593,765

29,174,355

6,593,765

21,485,716

5,692,660

Total Net Assets 29,174,355 •  6,593,765 35,768,120 27,178,376

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 35,732.721 $  6,593,765 $ 42.326,486 $ 34,481.501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements.
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
{with summarized comparative totalsfor fhe year ended December 31, 2022)

2023 ^

Without Donor With Donor 2023 2022

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

Support and Revenue
Supporl:
Government grants $  8,404,728 $  1,207,675 $  9,612,403 $  9,800,690
Contributions 1,387.432 ^2.331.849 3,719,281 2,840.961

In-kind contributions 77,736 -- 77,736 48,536
Special events:
Gross revenue 22,449 415,806 438,255 616,955
Less cost of direct benefit to donors (120,158) .. (120,158) (153,690)

Net special events revenue (97,709) 415,806 318,097 463,265
Revenue:

Ser\'icc fees, net 8,084,807 — 8,084,807 6,200,380
Rental income 15,641 .. 15,641 -

Other income 119,368 .. 119,368 40,684
Net Assets Released From Restrictions:

Program releases 3,538,472 (3,538,472) — —

Fndowment releases 80,643 (80,643) -

Fndowmcnt Transfer to Support Operations 868.594 - 868,594 842.559

Total Support and Revenue ^22,479,712 336,215 22,815,927 20,237,075

Operating Expenses

Program ser\'ices 17,015,721 .. . 17,015,721 15,261,737

Management and general 3,382,989 -- 3.382,989 2,816,820
Fundraising 465,528 .. 465.528 795.129

Total Operating Expenses 20.864,238 20,864.238 18.873.686

Change in Net Assets From Operations 1,615,474 336,215 1,951,689 1,363,389

Nonoperating Activities
'

Investment income (loss), net 2,573,760 420,488 2,994,248 (4,096,650)
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap 19,097 - 19,097 593,622
(la)ss) gain on the sale of asset" (4,136) " (4,136) 241.592

Change in beneficial interest ~ 144,402 144,402 (413,854)
Interest income 297.174 .. 297,174 4,744

Endowment transfer to support operations (868,594) " (868,594) (842,559)
Employee retention tax credit, net 4,055,864 4.055,864 --

Transfer of assets from Richie McFarland

Children's Center - - • - 2,521,803

Total Nonoperating Activities 6,073,165 564.890 6,638,055 (1,991,302)

Change in Net Assets 7,688,639 901,105 8,589,744 (627,913)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 21,485,716 5,692,660 27,178,376 27,806,289

Net Assets, End of Year $ 29,174,355 $  6,593,765 :$ 35,768,120 S 27,178,376

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements.
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2022)

2023

Program

Ser\'ices

Management

and General Fundraising

2023

Total

2022

Total

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages $ 9.649,650 $  1,634,614 $  309,418 $  11,593.682 $  10,719,413
Employee benefits 1,723,526 176,591 37,744 1.937,861 1.525,300
Retirement plan 119.524 35,604 5,325 160,453 121,399

Payroll taxes and other 990,399 127,664 23,934 1,141,997 1,026,086
Subtotal personnel expense 12,483,099 1,974.473 376,421 14,833,993 13,392,198

Professional fees:

Accounting 75 45,570 - 45,645 51,130
Ugal 6.784 70,873 - 77.657 18.661

Contracted services 418.189 406,788 52,603 877,580 1.179,448

Subtotal professional fees 425,048 523,231 52,603 1,000,882 1,249,239

Assistance to individuals 1,300,225 551 45,000 1,345.776 1,150,805
Communications 191,563 47,124 6,242 244,929 230,090

Conferences, conventions, meetings, and
trainings 125,001 39,610 8,667 173,278 185,314

Depreciation 369,348 198,363 6,964 574,675 499,935
Insurance 118,173 63,652 2,282 184.107 97.877

Interest 286,008 40,704 5,449 332,161 251,392
Membership dues 29,654 16,084 - 45,738 56.711

Miscellaneous 52,471 113,285 5,414 171,170 81,163
Occupancy i 827,313 70,603 12,193 910.109 799.844

Printing and publications 14,402 48,572 59,996 122,970 126,413
Equipment rental and maintenance 188,633 212,005 1,127 401,765 341,559
Supplies 149,564 12,586 2,190 164.340 159,595
Travel 455,219 22,146 1,138 478,503 405,241

Total Expenses By Function 17,015,721 3,382,989 585,686 20,984,396 19,027,376

l^ss expenses included on the
Statement of Activities:

Cost of direct benefits to donors - - (120,158) (120.158) (153,690)

Total Expenses Reported on the

Statement of Activities ^ 17,015.721 $  3,382,989 $  465,528 $ 20,864,238 :S  18,873,686

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023
(wUh comparative totals for the year ended December SI, 2022)

-

2023 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets S 8,589,744 S (627,913)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 574.675 499,935
Disposals of fixed assets 36,625 242,906
Amortization of operating right-of-usc assets 212,58! 173,740

Contributions restricted for endowment (34,963) (71,249)
Donation of closely held securities (750,000) _

Realized gain on investments (308,748) (171,631)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (2.155,130) 4,768,167
Change in beneficial interest in trusts (144,402) 413,854
Change in interest rate swap (19,097) (593,622)
RMCC fixed assets and beneficial interest _ • (1,332,247)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable (340,039) (151,075)
Grants receivable (374,385) (635,646)
Contributions receivable (88,258)
Prepaid expenses 388,928 (275,337)
Accounts payable (60.793) (44,066)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (178,028) 292,661
Other liabilities (147,238) 142,188
Refundable advances (126,840) (217.195)
Operating lease liabilities (209,548) (172.182)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,865,084 2.241.288

Cash Flows from investing Activities 1

Purchases of investments (561,345) (571,135)
Proceeds from sole of investments 949,237 932,262
Purchase of fixed assets (181.713) (3,070,755)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) investing Activities 206,179 (2,709,628)

Cash Fiows from Financing Activities
Contributions restricted for endowment 34,963 71,249
Proceeds from line of credit 5,505,906
Principal payments on line of credit (5,505,906) _

Payment of long-term debt (175.000) (224.833)

Net Cash Used in Financing Aclivitic.s (140.037) (153,584)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 4,931.226 (621.924)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 789,201 1.411.125

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year s 5,720;427 s 789.201

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow information:

Cash paid during the year for interest s 332,161 s 251,392

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Investing Activity:

RMCC fixed assets and beneficial interest s
--

s 1.332,247

As reported in the Consolidated Statement ofFinancial Position, /-

cash balance consists of:

Cash and cash equivalents s 5,649.783 s 712.445
Restricted cash 70.644 76.756

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash s 5.720.427 s 789,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 1 - Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in 1850, with a mission to
empower people of all ages through an array of human services and advocacy. Waypoint
adheres to the highest standards of practice and is the only organization in New Hampshire to
be accredited by the Council on Accreditation.

Waypoint has historically been the first service provider to respond to the state's most pressing
needs - responding to child labor of the 1900s, child abuse in the 1940s, the spike in youth
homelessness in the 1960s, human trafficking in the 2010s, and continues that trend today.
Each year we serve an average of 7,500 individuals, children, and families across New
Hampshire. Nearly 90% of our clients live in poverty or with very low incomes.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and fall under four core care areas:

Family Preserva tionand Strengthening

Intensive home-based programs in partnership with the Division of Children, Youth, and
Families to restore positive family functioning for youth and families involved with the child
welfare and juvenile justice systems as well as voluntary services for families that are at risk
to stabilize families. Programs are delivered in the home, schools, or community, and include
mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a complex system of family
stabilization and preservation programs. Waypoint empowers families with the skills and
resources they need to provide for their children and become self-sufficient.

Earl y Childhood and Famil y Support

Education and support to improve parenting, strengthen families, prevent child abuse, and
neglect, and ensure the healthy development of children are provided in homes and through
Family Resource Centers throughout New Hampshire. This includes home visiting services
that support families and support and therapy for infants and toddlers with, or at-risk of,
developmental disabilities and delays. Waypoint also operates a childcare center (the
Children's Place and Parent Education Center) providing a unique combination of educational
and family support. Young children starting life at a disadvantage receive critical services to
ensure a good beginning and to optimize their chances for life-long success.
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 1 - Organization (Continued) •

Homeless Youth and Young Adults

A continuum of care designed to support youth and young adults (12-25) in exiting
homelessness and finding long-term independence and stability. Services feature street-based
outreach, basic needs fulfillment at drop-in centers, crisis intervention, educational and
vocational advocacy, housing, and case management. Waypoint operates the only low-barrier
emergency shelter specifically for adults aged 18-24 who are experiencing or are at-risk of
homelessness. ,

Homecare

in-home support for seniors and adults with disabilities so they can maintain their
independence safely in their community, and family-strengthening support and resources, for
children with chronic health condition and their families. Waypoint provides services delivered
by personal care service providers, nurses, and LNAs in homes that help with everything from
cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders, mobility, and help with daily
tasks.

Waypoint provides additional support for children, families, and individuals through a strong
advocacy program, established in 1971. The combination of advocacy and direct service
practice uniquely positions Waypoint to serve the best interests of New Hampshire children.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and presenting
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Bas!S of Financial Sta tementPresenta tion

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United"
States of America (GAAP).
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Change IN Accounting Principle

ASC 326, Current Expected Credit Losses

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) issued Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 326, Current Expected Credit Losses, which changed how
entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments
that are not measured at fair value through net income. The most significant change in this
standard is a shift from the incurred loss model to the expected loss model. Under the
standard, disclosures are required to provide users of the financial statements with useful
information in analyzing an entity's exposure to credit risk and the measurement of credit
losses. Financial assets held by the Organization that are subject to the guidance in FASB
ASC 326 are trade accounts receivable.

The Organization adopted the standard effective January I, 2023. The impact of the
adoption was not considered material to the consolidated financial statements and primarily
resulted in new/enhanced disclosures only.

Principles OF Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypoint and Child and Family Realty
Corporation, commonly controlled organizations. All inter-organization transactions have
been eliminated. Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to
as "the Organization".

COMPARA TIVE FINANCIAL INFORMA TION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2022, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash AND Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or
less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instruments
invested for long-term purposes, including endowments that are perpetual in nature, are
excluded from this definition.

10
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WAVPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable AND Credit Policies

At the end of each reporting period, the Organization estimates the current expected credit loss
(CECL) per ASC 326. The Organization utilizes the loss rate methodology to determine
historical credit losses. The loss rate method estimate is derived from a review of the
Organization's historical write-offs as a percentage of average accounts receivable. The
estimate is adjusted for management's assessment, of current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts regarding future events, and any other factors deemed relevant. The
Organization believes historical loss information is a reasonable starting point for calculating
the expected allowance for credit losses, as the Organization's programs have remained
consistent since inception. Based on economic indicators, including 2023 and general overall
economic conditions, the Organization is not anticipating a change in the historical credit loss
rate from what it has been in the past.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially
met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable contracts and grants,
which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain
requirements have been met or performed. The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable
is based on historical experience and a review of subsequent collections. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at
net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected in future
years are initially recorded at fair value using present value techniques incorporating risk-
adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset. In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in contribution
revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable
contributions is based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Contributions are written off when deemed uncollectable.
Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

11
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation.
Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized gains and
losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its endowment. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the individual endowments based on the
relationship of the market value of each endowment to the total market value of the pooled
investment accounts, as adjusted for additions to or deductions from those accounts, and taking
into consideration donor restrictions related to the treatment of investment earnings.

Beneficial Interest Held IN Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial interest in
trusts is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the underlying trust
assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as to use and are reported as
increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended in accordance with restrictions.

' The value of the beneficial interest in the trusts is adjusted annually for the change in its
estimated fair value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. The assets in the trusts will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property AND Equipment, Net

Properly and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair
value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50 years. When assets
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any
resulting gain ,or loss is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets
are expensed. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When
considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the
fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in 2023 or 2022.

12
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases

The Organization is a lessee in several noncancellable operating leases, for office space and
equipment. The Organization determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at
inception of a contract and when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The
Organization recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use (ROU) asset at the commencement
date of the lease. The lease liability is initially and subsequently recognized based on the
present value of its future lease payments. Variable payments are included in the future lease
payments when those variable payments depend on an index or a rate. The Organization
generally does not have access to the rate implicit in the lease and, therefore, the Organization
utilizes a risk-free rate as the discount rate at the lease commencement date for all classes of

underlying assets. The ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the
amount of the remeasured lease liability (i.e., present value of the remaining lease payments),
plus unamortized initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less
the unamortized balance of lease incentives received, and any impairment recognized. Lease
cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease

commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the
Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. The Organization recognizes lease costs
associated with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which are
generally accounted for separately. The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of
assets, to account for each separate lease component of a contract and its associated non-lease
components (repairs and maintenance) as a single lease component. For. arrangements
accounted for as a single lease component, there may be variability in future lease payments
as the amount of the non-lease components is typically revised from one period to the next.
These variable lease payments are recognized in operating expenses in the period in which the
obligation for those payments was incurred.

IlS'TEREST RA TESyyAP

An interest rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest rate risk on bonds payable. The related
liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and
unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

13
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I^etAssets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
or grantor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations
and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. The Board has
designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for a Board-designated
endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity while permitting the Organization to expend the
income generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor-
imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

The Organization recognizes revenue from contributions and grants that were initially
conditional, which became unconditional with restrictions during the reporting period, and
for which those restrictions were met during the reporting period, as net assets without
donor restrictions.

Revenue Recogn/tion

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and grants,
which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has
incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received
prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

14
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Re venue Recognition (Continued)

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an unconditional
promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give—
that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return—are not
recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors,
and contribution income for the excess received when the.event takes place.

Revenues derived from providing program services are recognized as the services are provided.
Program service fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they relate. All other
amounts paid in advance are deferred to the period in which the underlying event or rental takes
place. Due to the nature and timing of the perfomiance and/or transfer of services, certain contract
liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.

Dona ted Ser vices and In-Kind Contrib utions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and
fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the
value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by
GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if (a) the services create or
enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by
contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair value of the services received.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when
placed in service or distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as
an expense at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the
use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is
reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift, and the
expense is reported over the term of use. ^

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

15
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WAYPOINT
I

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Functional Alloca tion of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated Statement of Functional

Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

The consolidated Financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed
to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include salary and
benefits, which are allocated based on time and effort estimates, and occupancy costs and
depreciation which are allocated based on personnel count at the location.

Measure of Opera tions

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes
in net assets from operating and nonoperating activities. Operating activities consist of those
items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and services and include the
Organization's annual endowment transfer to support operations. Nonoperating activities are
limited to resources outside of those programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring
gains and losses on sales and dispositions, investment income, changes in the value of
beneficial interests and interest rate swaps, and erhployee retention tax credit net of applicable
expenses.

Income Taxes

Waypoint has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as an organization described
in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution deductions, and has been
determined not to be a private foundation. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt
from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the IRC as an organization described in
Section 501(c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
(Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose.
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

The Organization accounts for uncertain tax provisions under FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes,
which provides a framework for how entities should recognize, measure, present, and disclose
uncertain tax positions in their financial statements. The Organization may recognize the tax
benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the
position. Management has reviewed the Organization's reporting and believes they have not
taken tax positions that are more likely than not to be determined to be incorrect by the IRS
and, therefore, no adjustments or disclosures are required. The Organization is subject to
routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods

'  pending or in progress.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash deposits with financial institutions
believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits. To date,
no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with
receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in
the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Although the fair value of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the
Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the
long-term welfare of the Organization.
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial statements.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date
under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly
to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable
inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

•  Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
are accessible at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that'is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific
to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy is based
upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and does not necessarily correspond to
the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.
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Note 3 - Liquidity and Availabiutv

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, were comprised of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Restricted cash not available for general expenditure
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less:

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in
less than a year

Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending
policy rate and appropriation

Closely held securities

Board-designated - ERTC funds
Board-designated endowment

Less:

Board-designated endowment annual spending
policy rate and appropriation

Total amounts not available to be used within one year

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year

$  5,649,783 $ 712,445
70,644

1,141,771

1,649,265

88,258

21,394,755

2,165,143

32,159,619

70,644

6,593,765

76,756

801,732

1,274,880

18,568,769
2,020,741

23,455:323

76,756

5,692,660

(1,515,563) (1,133,668)

(73,998)(73,998)

750,000

4,261,566

16,173,416

(899,141)

14,896,850

(868,594)

25,360,689 18,590,006

$  6,798,930 $ 4,865,317

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by the Board
to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is restricted for specific
purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual in nature are not" available for
general expenditure. •
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Note 3 - Liquidity and Availability (Continued)

The Board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by the
Board. Although there is no intention to spend from the Board-designated endowment (other
than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the Board's annual budget
approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,500,000 revolving line
of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

Note 4 - Investments

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis, consisted of the following at December
31,2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Mutual funds

Closely held securities

Total

Fair Value

Hierarchy

$ 20,644,755 S 18,568,769 Level!

750,000 -- Level 3

$ 21,394,755 $ 18,568,769

During 2023 and 2022, the Organization recognized $2,463,878 and $(4,596,536),
respectively, of net gains and (losses) on investments. Of those amounts, $2,155,130 and
$(4,768,167) were recognized as unrealized gains and (losses) on investments of equity^
securities held at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Under the terms of the Organization'sjline of credit agreement (Note 7), the Organization has
agreed not to pledge the mutual funds as security on any other debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of investment
income from mutual fund investments for operations with any remaining interest, dividends,
or appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees is a
percentage of the average total endowment value over the previous 12 quarters, with a 1%
contingency margin with Board approval. In 2023 and 2022, the approved rate was 5.00%.
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Note 5 - Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of four funds that are administered by the New
,  Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide assistance to

children attending camp and for capital improvements to the camp, and to support the Early
Supports and Services program based in the Stratham office. The fund's resolutions provide
that distributions from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the fair market value of the funds, which approximates the
present value of future benefits expected to be received, was $1,245,254 and $1,152,876,
respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts. The assets
are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value of these beneficial
interests is determined by applying the Organization's percentage interest to the fair value of
the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage

Trust Interest 2023 2022

Greenleaf 100% $ 353,987 $ 335,096
Spaulding 100% 324,126 300,889

Cogswell 50% 241,77-6 231,880

Total $ 919,889 $ 867,865

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair value, which is estimated as the present value
of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in Note 2, the valuation
technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no obsers'able market
transactions.
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Note 6 - Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net was comprised of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

'  2023 2022
Land and land inprovements $  958,884 $  958,884

Buildings and inprovements 1 1,072,089 10,995,856

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 657,629 962,064

Vehicles 68,761 68,761

Software 465,730 503,924

Constmctbn in progress 82,075 15,220

Assets lield for sale (Canp Spaulding 2,069,677 2,069,667

Subtotal 15,374,845 15,574,376

Less accumulated depreciation (5,699,290) (5,469,233)

Total $ 9,675,555 $ 10,105,143

In March 2023, the Organization entered into a purchase and sales agreement to sell the Camp
Spaulding asset held for sale. The sale is expected to close in 2024.

Note 7 - Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank, which is
payable on demand. The line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative
pledge on all investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall
Street Journal prime rate (8.5% at December 31, 2023), adjusted daily. At December 31, 2023
and 2022, there was no outstanding balance on this line of credit.

Note 8 - Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the "Authority")
sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue, Series 2007, and
loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds
and to finance certain improvements to the Organization's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds
were issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the
Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement")
with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counterparty") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the
interest rate risk associated with the Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement
requires the Organization to pay the Counterparty a rate of interest per annum equal to the
product of (a) .68 multiplied by (b) the sum of Term SOFR, plus 2.75%".
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Note 8 - Bonds Payable (Continued)

Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset the Organization's
payments of variable rate interest to bondholders. Counterparty credit worthiness and market
variability can impact the variable rates received and paid by the Organization, with the
potential of increasing Organization's interest payments. As a result, the cost of the interest
rate swap for 2023 and 2022 is added to interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in 2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the swap in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-year holding period,
the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest rates increase
above those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and as an unrealized gain in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate
the Organization is paying on the swap is below market expectations of rates during the
remaining term of the swap, fhe swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss
in the Consolidated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on
the date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate
the Organization is paying on the swap is above market expectations of rates during the
remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value changes in the swap
transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the
end of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization recorded
the swap liability position of $380,838 and $399,935, respectively. During 2009, there
occurred a' downgrading of the credit rating of the Counterparty to the letter of credit
reimbursement agreement, which triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in
whole and a temporary conversion of one hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank
purchase mode under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it
became evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization
elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase mode.
This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series 2007 Bonds bear
interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of the term secured overnight
financing rate (SOFR) plus 275 basis points. The bank purchase mode commenced on July 31,
2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration date was extended by the
Counterparty and the Organization had the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode.
The Series 2007 Bond documents require the Organization to comply with certain financial
covenants. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization was in compliance with these
covenants.
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Note 8 - Bonds Payable (Continued)

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds payable:

Year Amount

2024 $ 180,000

2025 195,000

2026 200,000

2027 205,000

2028 220,000

Thereafter 2,355,167

Total $ 3,355,167

Note 9-Leases

The Organization rents ̂ property and equipment under non-cancelable operating lease
agreements with monthly payments ranging from $1,430 to $4,500. The leases expire at
various dates through May 2026.

While all agreements provide minimum lease payments, some include payments adjusted for
inflation or variable common area maintenance charges. Variable payments are not
determinable at the lease commencement and are not included in the measurement of lease

assets and liabilities. The lease agreements do not include any material residual value
guarantees or restrictive covenants.

The components of operating lease expense that are included in the Statement of Activities for
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022
Fixed lease cost $ 213,799 $ 176,300
Variable lease cost 38,797 57,396

Short-term lease cost - 14,000

Total lease cost $ 252,596 $ 247,696
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Note 9 - Leases (Continued)

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had the following cash
and non-cash activities related to operating leases:

2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts included In the

measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 213,799 $ 176,600

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Lease assets obtained m excliange

for lease liabilities:

Operating leases $ 168,666 $ 507,774

Weighted average lease term and discount rate at December 31, 2023 and 2022, were as
follows:

2023 2022

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 1.86 2.14

Weighted average discount rate « 1.36% 1.04%

Future payments due under operating leases as of December 31, 2023, were as follows for the
years ending December 31:

> Year Amount

2024 $ 175,923

^2025 102,400

2026 23,750

Total lease payments 302,073

Less imputed interest 4,243

Present value of lease liabilities $ 297,830

Note 10 - Refundable Advances

Refundable advances totaling $316,902 and $443,742 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, primarily include grant funds received in advance from the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services for community-based voluntary services and
American Rescue Plan Act funds. Revenues will be recognized as the conditions of the grants
are met.
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Note 11 - Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Deferred loans at December 31, 2023 and 2022 were comprised of the following:

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority (NHHFA) dated June 7,
2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of interest, and
is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in Dover, New Hampshire. In line
with the regulatory agreement related to the note payable, the Organization has remitted to
NHHFA funds to establish an operating and replacement reserve. The balance of this reserve
is reported as restricted cash on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The
restricted cash balance related to this note as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $30,255
and $33,336, respectively.

Note payable to the NHHFA dated May 22, 2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000,
does not require the payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real
estate located in Manchester, New Hampshire. In line with the regulatory agreement related to
the note payable, the Organization has remitted to NHHFA funds to establish an operating and
replacement reserve. The balance of this reserve is reported as restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The restricted cash balance as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 related to this note totaled $40,389 and $43,420, respectively.

Note 12 - Endowment Funds

Types OF Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established for a variety
of purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Board-Designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Board of Trustees had designated $16,173,416 and
$ 14,896,850, respectively, of net assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment
fund to support the mission of the Organization.
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Note 12 - Endowment Funds (Continued)

Types of Funds (Continued)

Donor-Designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Unifonn Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual endowment funds, absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the
Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment,
and (c) accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added. The remaining
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as perpetually
restricted is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are

appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard
of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. in accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds: (I) the duration and preservation of the various funds,
(2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic
conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return
from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization,
and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the
sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund, and (b) any
accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The Organization complies with UPMIFA and
has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with prudent
measures required under the law. The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at
December 31, 2023 or 2022.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total return
(income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal of the fund and,
at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current operations and programs.
The withdrawal from endowment funds in support of current operations is expected to remain
a constant percentage of the endowment funds, adjusted for new gifts to the endowment fund.
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Note 12 - Endowment Funds (Continued)

Investment Policy (Continued)

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is sought
where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are cyclical and,
therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through investment styles. Asset allocation

parameters have been developed for various funds within the structure, based on investment
objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed on a total
return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is defined as dividend
or interest income plus realized and unrealized .capital appreciation or depreciation at fair
market value.

Spending Policy
I  /

The Organization's spending policy rate is a percentage of the average total endowment value
over the trailing 12 quarters with a ,l% contingency margin with Board approval. This includes
interest and dividends paid out to the Organization. In 2023 and 2022, the approved rate was
5.00%.

Changes in Endowment NetAssets

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2023 and changes in
endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2023 were as follows:

With Donor Restrictions 'lotal

Without Donor Purpose Ckiniuhlivc . Perpetually Endownicni

Rcstrblbns Restrbted Apprecbtbn Restricted Total Net Assets

Endowm^tl net assets, beginning or>'ear S  14,896,850 $  1,133,668 $  788,401 $  1,749,850 S  3,671,919 S  18,568,769

Contributbns .. .. .. 34,963 34,963 34,963

Appropriations front cndow-mcnt (868,594)
-- (80,643) -- (80,643) (949,237)

Tcntporary appropriatbn for

purposc-rcstrbted net assets • t (381,895) 381,895. -- --
381,895

--

ins*e.stnicnt income, net 2,527,055 - 420.488 " 420,488 2,947,543

Bndowineni net assets, end ofyear $  16,173,416 S  1,515,563 $  1,128,246 S  1,784,813 $  4,428,622 S 20,602,038
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Note 12 - Endowment Funds (Continued)

Changes in Endowment NetAssets (Continued)

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2022 and changes in
endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Wihoul Donor Purpose Cumuhthr Perpetual))' ErxloH-merc

Restrctbns Restrbied Apprecbtbn Restricted Total Net Assets

Endownrnl net assets, beginnini'orj'ear S  18.842,135 S  1,678,535 S  1,327,16) S  1,678,60) S  4,684,297 S 23,526,432
Contfijulbns ^ -- " .. 71,249 71,249 71,249

Appropriations from cndowTOcnl (842,559) " (89,703) .. (89,703) (932,262)
Tcnporai)' appropriation for

pirpose-restricted net assets 544,867 (544,867) -- .. (544,867) ..

Imcstinera bss, net (3,647,593) - (449.057) .. (449,057) (4,096,650)

EndOMntcni net assets, end of^rar S  14,896,850 $  1,133.668 S  788.401 $  1,749,850 $  3,671,919 $  18,568,769

Note 13 - Net Assets

NetAssets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions were comprised of the following at December 31, 2023
and 2022: -

2023 2022

Undesignated net assets $ 8,739,373 $ 6,588,866

Board-designated ERTC funds 4,261,566

Board-designated endowment 16,173,416 14,896,850

Total $ 29,174,355 $ 21,485,716
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Note 13 - Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following at December 31, 2023 and
2022:

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
2023 2022

Camp $  7,689 $  59,441
Family support 124,891 77,825
Family resource center 341,896 236,029
Homecare 231,618 151,410
Other projects 104,158 12,544
Runaway and homeless youth 698,184 581,804
Tlie Children's Place 7,127 14,615

1,515,563 1,133,668

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:

General operations 189,575 158,281
Camp operations 386,004 252,769

Other purposes 552,667 377,351

1,128,246 788,401

Original gift restricted by donors for:

General operalbns 136,529 136,532
Camp operations 581,042 ,548,183

Other purposes 1,067,242 1,065,135

1,784,813 1,749,850

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:

Beneficial interest in trusts 2,165,143 2,020,741

Total $  6,593,765 $  5,692,660
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Note 13 - Net Assets (Continued)

NetAssets With Donor Restrictions (Continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the donors as
follows for the years ended December 3 1, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Satisfectbn of purpose restrictbns:

66,451 $ 46,947

Runaway and homeless youth.
- - p •

2,450,535 1,918,666

Family support 181,1 15 233,742

Homecare 456,292 339,340

Family resource center 158,981 234,362

Other projects 143,893 150,258

ITie Children's Place 81,205 42,806

3,538,472 2,966,121

Restricted purpose spend ing-rate

distributions and appropriations:

General operations 17,039 15,259

Other purposes 63,604 74,444
J

80,643- 89,703

Total $  3,619,1 15 $  3,055,824
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Note 14 - Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

The Organization received the following contributions of nonfinancial assets for the years
ended December 3 i, 2023 and 2022:

Rewnue Recognia:d»

rood

Siq^pHes

Sloragc

To^-s

Services

Items for assistance to

individuais

Total

2023 2022

44,631

5,399

2,617

10,841

14.248

27,599

11,751

4,057

4,055

Utilization in

Programs/Act Kities

Valuatbn Techniques

and Inputs

Tamily Prcscr\'ation &

Strcntlicning. Ilomcearc, and

l lomelcss Youth & Young

Aduhs.

Administratbn, Fan%

Prcscr\'ation& Strcnthcning

U.S. retafl prices ofidentical products isihg
pricing data under a 'like-khd' nielhodobgy

considering tlie good's conditions and utility Ibr

use at the time ofconlribution.

U.S. retail prices ofidentical products using

pricing data under a 'like-krd' methodology
and Homeless Youlli & Yoiuig considering the good's conditions and utility for

Adults.

297 Homeless Youth & Young

Adults

777 Family PrescrN-albn &

Strcntlx:ning

Family Prcservalbn &

Slrenthcning

lEarly Childhood & Famiy

Support aixJ Homeless Youth

& Young Adults

use at the lime ofconlribiflbn.

Valued at tlic estimated fair \aluc based on

current rates for simdar sloragc space.

U.S. retail prices ofidentbal products using
pricing data luidcr a 'likc-kitKl' melhodobgy
considerbg the good's conditbns and utdity for

use at the tine ofconlributbn.

Contributed profcssbiwl servbcs arc v-ahicd at

the estimated fair vahic based on current rates for

scnflar ser\Tccs.

U.S. retail prices ofidentbal products using

prbbg data iindcr a 'like-kind' mcthodobgy

considering the good's conditbns aiKi utilily for

use at the line ofconlributbn.

$  77,736 $ 48,536

There were no associated donor restrictions with the above contributed nonfinancial assets.
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023

Note 15 - Employee Retention Tax Credit (ERTC)

The Employee Retention Tax Credit (ERTC), ekablished as part oftheCoronavirus Aid, Relief
and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), enacted March 27, 2020, amended by the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (CAA), enacted on December 27, 2020, and further
amended by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), enacted March 11, 2021, provides for
financial relief to eligible employers through refundable tax credits. The ERTC is a refundable
tax credit against certain employment taxes equal to 70% of eligible wages and certain health
insurance benefits up to $28,000 per employee and $ 10,000 per quarter through September 30,
2021. Eligible employers can get immediate access to the credit by reducing employment tax
deposits they are otherwise required to make.-Employers are eligible if they operate a trade or
business during January 1, 2021 through September 30, 2021 and experience either: I) full or
partial suspension of the operation of their trade or business during this period because of
governmental orders limiting commerce, travel or group meetings due to COVlD-19, or 2)
decline in gross receipts in a calendar quarter in 2021 where the gross receipts of that calendar
quarter are less than 80% of the gross receipts in the same calendar quarter in 2019. For the
year ended December 31, 2023, the Organization recognized $4,736,776 of ERTC as income,
net of $680,912 of applicable expenses.

Note 16 - Assistance TO Individuals

Assistance to individuals was comprised of the following for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Payment to parents of foster children

"Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness

Gift cards provided to fomilies during holiday season

Food for at risk youth

In-kind assistances

Other assistance such as medical, chikJcare,

transportation, and family activities

Total

13,317

388,607

45,000

100,322

77,736

720,794

79,831

259,436

50,000

36,872

48,536

676,130

$  1,345,776 $ 1,150,805
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 17 - Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined contribution
plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective participant contributions to
upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution is permitted by employees up to limits imposed by
the IRC and other limitations specified in the Plan. Contributions made to the Plan by the
Organization for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $ 160,453 and $ 121,399,

respectively.

Note 18 - Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that employs
an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of Trustees. The attorney Board
member does not personally perform the legal services. For the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, the total legal expense paid to related parties was $55,702 and $10,190,
respectively,

Note 19 - Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of New
Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate resources via grants is dependent
upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire. An economic
downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the
Organization's services.

Note 20 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 20, 2024, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
V

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023

Famil)'

Presrrvslion &

Stfcnglhening

Early Childhood A Homeless Youth A

Fiimih' Support Young Aduhs Advocacy

Pcnonnel EtpcnJcs:
Sabries and ̂ ^9ges
Employee benefits
Rettretnent plan

Payroll trues and other

Subtotal personnel e.-^>ense

Prtjfessional fees: '
Accounting

Legal

Other piofessional fees
Subtotal professional fees

Assistance to indniduab

Conminicalions

Conferences, conventions.

meetings, and trainings
Depreciation

Insurance

Interest

Memfcership dues
Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Priming and publications
Equipinent rental and maintenance

Supplies

Travel

Total

Carm

Total

Program

Services

Management

and

General Fundrabing

.1.276,308 S

668.164

44..T66

333.426

4.322.264

3.406.625

636.824

47.3CM

348.753

4.439.806

1.727 J59

3I4.7W

16.143

172.439

1,081.739 $

99.446

8.358

123.588

157.419 $

4388

3353

12,193

2330.545 1313.131 177353

S  9.649.650

1.723.526

119.524

990399

12,483,099.

1.6.34,614 $

176.591

35.604

127.664

1,974.473

309.418

37.744

5.325

23.934

376.421

2023

Total

11.593.682

1.937,861

160,453

1.141.997

14.833,993

-
-

75
-

-
- 75 45.570 _ 45.645

- -
-

- .  - 6.784 6.784 70,873 77.657
30.150 190.276 175.23! 5.532 17.000 - 418.189 406.788 52.603

30.150 190.276 175P06 5.532 17.000 6.784 425.018 523.231 52.603 1.000,882

281.676 — '389.772 628.737 37 3 1J00.22S 551 45.000 1.345,776
53.962 49 18.090 1.629 57 191,563 47.124 6.242 244,929

8.0% 44.336 2.246 271 2.143 67.907 125.001 39.610 8.667
75,495 99.794 176.CM7 12.968 4J02 542 369.348 198.363 6.964 574.675
32.624 38.202 29.342 12.176 964 4.S65 HX.173 63.652
59.073 78.086 134,755 10.147. 3.523 424 286.008 40,701 5.449
• 6,075 10.961 5,930 6.023 665 _ 29.654 16,084
9.227 20.721 10.471 a032 20 _ 52,47! 113.285 5.414 171.170

212.555 133.492 457.554 12.513 3.775 7.424 827.313 70,603 12.193
2.055 8J03 2.465 1.624 55 - 14.402 48.572 '  59.996 'l'-'970v

92.750 56.765 38.234 421 34 429 188,633 2I2.0O5 1.127 401.765
25.468 56.629 62,830 3.362 1.275 - 149.564 12.586 2.190
230.603 144.066 54.165 26.351 34 _ 455.219 22.146 .  1.138

$  5.456.544 S 5,765.071 S 4.058.021 J 1,434,678 S 212.975 S 88.432 $ 17.015.721 i 3.382,989 S 585.686 S 20.984,396

See independent auditors' report.
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WAYPOINT

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Family Total Manageireni
Preservation Early Childhood £ Homeless Youth & Program and _ 2022

& SirenetheninE Famih- SuoDori Youns Aduks l4oirKcaie Advocacv Camp Services General Fuitdtais Inc Total

PmonncI B^cnscs:
'

Salanes and J  2.933,799 S  3.187,125 $  1,135.714 S  1,385.070 $  127.338 $ - S  8.769.046 J  1.441.503 S  508.861 $  10.719.413
Employee benefiu sos.oos 48U85 174.838 158.266 4.709 - 1.324J06 156.284 44.810 1,525,300
Reliremeni pbn 29,154 39.168 11.168 I0.7(M 1.840 - 92.034 20.467 8,896 I21J99

Payroll lant and other 298J23 323.621 107.985 134,635 9.505 - 874.069 IIZ764 39.253 1.026.036

Subtotal peiaonnel e.'^nae 3.766,2»4 4.031.299 1,429.705 1.688.675 143.392 - 11.059.355 1.731,018 601,825 13.392,198

Profeasional feea:

Accounlin)! - - 75 - - - 75 51,055 _ 51.130
Legal - 1.656 -

-
- 388 2.044 16,617 _ 18.661

Other proretaional feoi 35,039 222,122 339.713 9.155 42.550 - 648.579 370,654 160.215 1.179.448

Subtotal professional fees 35,039 223.778 339.788 9.155 42.550 388 650693 438.326 160,215 1.249.239

Assistance to IndK'iduals 324,486 374.691 400.529 349 _ 16 1,100,071 717 50,017 I.IS0.S05

Conaninkatioiu 63,405 , 51.845 50.477 17.468 1.136 12 I84>44 32.935 ' 12.811 2.V).090

Confereneea, convenliotts.

meetings, and trainings 20.785 48.452 6.601 1.868 8.183 46.929 132.818 49.868 2.628 185.314
Depreciation 59^24 100.813 110.836 48,113 1.579 - 320,71$ 170.620 8,600 499.935
Insurance 30,297 22.469 22.800 3.272 713 - 79.551 15,79t 2.532 97.877

Interest 44,070 74.891 67.022 35,742 1.173 - 222.898 22,106 6.388 2SU92

Menisership dues 825 7.870 13.656 5,704 50. - 28.105 26,169 2.437 56.711

Miscelbneous 9,455 21.098 6,366 1,156 - - 38.075 34.413 8,675 81.163
Occupancy 242.992 148.368 285.994 50,155 1.259 4.229 732.997 54,952 11.895 799.844
Printing and publications 4,873 17,729 4.446 267 2.373 - 29.688 29.232 67.493 126.413

Equipment rental and iminienance 79.252 26.162 50.974 I>tl 37 - 157.766 174.987 8,806 341.559

Supplies 23.1-10 62,896 50.656 6,989 134 77 143.892 12,963 2,740 i  159.595
201.207 98.119 39,421 41,827 190 380764 22.720 1.757 405.241

Total
$  4.905.435 8  5.310.480 $  2.879J2I S  1.912.081 $  202.769 $ 51.651 S  I5J61.737 S  2.816.820 S  948.819 S  19.027.376

See independent auditors' report.
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MARCUM
ACCOUNTANTS a ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees

Waypoint

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenf Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial
statements of Waypoint, (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 20, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing"of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Merrimack, NH

May 20, 2024
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MARCUM
ACCOUNTANTS a ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Trustees

Waypoint

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Waypoint's (the Organization) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, Waypoint complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
(Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Require
mentsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.
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Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts, or grant agreements
applicable to the Organization's federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance '

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material, noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. "Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

1

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
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compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or cornbination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important.enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not.designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of'
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Waypoint as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated May 20, 2024, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used.to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional" procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

fiOiAMrL Ll-P
Merrimack, NH

May 20, 2024
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WAYPOINT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Federal Agtaey
duster

Pus through Agency

Pro«r»m Title

Federal

AL

Number

Piss Through
ldentif>ing

Number

Passed

Federal Thiough to

Evnenditures Subrecinient

$  4.000 S

13.500 _

17.500

17.500
-

20.000

44.500 _

64.500
-

685.714
-

99.941
-

212.881 _

172.336 _

485.158
-

331.696 43.745

124.529

456.225 43.745

1.709.097 43.745

136.176 33,190

8.642 _

144.818 33.190

43.003 .

400.000
-

10.000
-

16.548

426.548 _

469.551

8.818

8.818

1.500

500 -

2.000
-

178.627 109,934

180.627 109.934

U.S. lieparfment irfHoming anil Urban Devetopmem

CDBG - EniitJernent Grants Cluster

Fused Through the Citj orKUnchester
Cooimunity Development Biocl. Cranls/Entillefflent Grants

Fused Through the Cit)'orRochesier

Community Development Block GrantuHntitiemeni Grants
Tout Community Development Block Gnnts/Entitlemeni Grants

Total CDBG • EntiiJefflent Grants Cluster

•  Fused Through the City of Manchester
ftmergency Solutions Grant Program

emergency Solutions Grant Program

Total Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Direct Federal Program

Economic Development Initiative, Community Project Funding
and Miscellaneous Grants

Direct Federal Program
Continuum ofCare Program

Pused Thtou^ the State ofNevr liampshire
Continuum ofCart Program
Continuum of Care Program

Total Continuum ofCare Frttgram

Direct Federal Program
^'outh Homelessrteu Demonstration Program

Fused Through the State ofNew Hampshire

^'ouih Homelessiteu Demonstration Program

Total Youth liomelessneu Demonstration Program

Total U,S, Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Depanmen! of Jusliet
Pused Through the NH Department ofJustice

Children of Incarcerated Parents

Pused Through the Manchester Police Department

Comprehensive Opioid. Stimulant, and Other Substances Use Program

Total U,S, Department of Justice

V.S. Deparlment n/Trmsury

Pused Through the Cii)' ofManchester
C0V|D-l9CoionaviruS Relief Fund

Pused Through (he State of New Hampshire
C0VTD-i9 Cotottavirus State and Local Fiscal Recover)'Funds

Pused Through the County ofRockingham
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recover)'Funds

Pused Through the County of Merrimtck

COViD-19 Coronavirus State and l,ocal Fiscal Recover)'Funds

Total COVlD-19 Coronavirus State and l^ocal Fiscal Recovery Funds

Total U,S, Department of Treasury

U.S. Hepamntnl of Small llialnas AJmlnlaralion
Pused Through Merrimack Valley Di)' Care

COVID-19 Disaster Assistance Loans

Total UJi, Department of Small KusinrM Administration

U.S. ileparlmmt ifFducaiion

Pused Through the City ofManchester
Education for Homeless Children and Youth

Education for Homeleu Children and Youth

Total Education for Homeless Children and Youth

Pused Through NH Department of Education

Education Stabilization Fund

Total U,S, Department of Education

M.2I8

l42iS

M.23I

I-I.23I

14.267

14.267

14.276

14.276

21.019

21.027

21.027

21.027

S4.I96A

t4.l96A

2II02J-M

Unknovtn

211423

611024

N/A

N/A

05.95-12-423010-7927

05-93-42-123010-79270000

N/A

05-95-12-123010-79270000

202IFCC0I

Unknown

6II32I

Unknown

Unknown

Unknown

02370156^

2470149

06-56-56-562010-24920000-102-500731

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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WAYPOINT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

FfiUnJAfmcy
Ckaui

ttruufdi Agervy

Plenum T«fc

Federal

AL

Ntsifiet

Pea Hmntih

ldenri-f«

Nintvci

Fedora!

Kovendaian

PaaeJ

^Thut^ In
.9ubreerrrS

UX IttfminmM Hnbh nAllmimn SerrUn

A^niOlWa
PuKd Thrauih Oie MH Dtpanmeni of Health and Human Smicet

Special Propani for ibc Apa(. Title III, Pan fi, Graut for
SuppcnKe Seriicaand Senior Coam 91IU4 05-95-48-18101(^9255 44.349

-

'  TonlApngOusis 44.349 _

Paacd Thniugh the Cil) ofMancheser 1

Compreheiuixc Conununiiy Mental Ikakh Scnicet for

Chlldien uiih Smoui Emoiiona] Diiiiiibancc) (SED) «,1IN 6H;9ShKfit22l(M>IMro3 155.025 14,435
Ceniprchaisvc CoRinnmity Mental Health Servtcea for

Childrm with Serious Emotimal Disturbaocea (SEDi 9,',1W 5H79SM082210«2 11,293 -

Tola] Comprehoiiit e Canununily menial Heallh Serxiees for
ChilAeii uiih Serious Bmoiionil Disurteiees <SEO| 166.318 14.435

Passed Through Note Hanpihiie Childm's Tnui
li\|ury Piexcwkn and Cootrel, ComRamh) -Baaed Piopsms 9,Vl,Vi SS-2n22-DeiSdll-NEWHA-0l-803 72,789 -

Paiaed Through Neu-Hampahiit Children's Tnui
Heallh Depirunen Response to Public Health or Heallbeare Crisis 9J.19I SS-20::-DeHS-0|.NEWHA-01-SO,l 70.713 _

Paiaed Through the NH Division ofConnnunily and Publie Heallh
CONTD-IO Health Depanmau Response 10 Public Heallh

orHcalihcare Crisis 9J.39I 05-954)9.901010-5771 172.835 _

Tout Heallh Depanmau Response to Public Heallh

OS Heallhcare Ctiss 243.548

Direct Pcdual Piujpaiii

Trinsiiicnal Living for Hcanelets Youth 93.550 /  N/A 479,568 -

Passed Through the NH Division ofDCYF ;
MaiyLec Allen Pnanoiing Safe and Stable Foniltes Propsm 9,V}J<i O5-O95-O42-l2l0IO-2973IXOO-l02-5O07,14-l2IO73n6 95,213

1

Paaaed Through New Honpdiiie ChilteiY Trust

Mat) Lee Alien Ptosacling Safe aid Sable Families Piogm 93.JJ6 SS-2fl22-t»lS<l 1 -NEWHA-Oi-SnS 20 959 -

Total MaiyLee Allen Promoting Safe and Sable Families Propam 116,172 -

Direct Fedoal Prupani
Education and Prevention Grans lo Rethiet Seuial Abuse of

Runaw^', Hcsixless and Street Yotdh 9JJJ7 N/A 296.642 -

Passed Through ihe NH Division of DCYF

Temporary Assistance for Need) Families 9J.J$8 <l5-O95-IH5^5ri|(H'|46irjKI-5<i2-5(mS9|-45(i30206 4'«>.S34 _

Passed Through Ihe NH Dii ision of Rcociotnic Housing Siabilh)

Tcsnpoiity Assistanec for Needy Fonilies 93.551! 05-95-42-I500IO-6I460000 ' 75.n(fi -

Total Tanporary Assiasncc for Needy Famllia 571,5,14 _

Passed Through Nevr HampAire Children's Trust

Communily Based Child Abuse Prevention Grant 93.390 109INHBCAP I9.»t _

C0\1D-1 u Conunimiiy Based Child Abuse Prevouion Cm 93.390 2n01-NHBCC6 • 20 075 -

Total Communily Based Child Abuse Prevention Gran 39,279 -

Direa Federal Program
Basic Cenia Grant 93 623 hfA 171,676 -

Passed Through the NH Division ofDCYF
Stephanie TtMs Jones Child Welfare Services Propam 93.W3 (j54)954M2-i2IOin-2968fM«-l02-5frt)7J4-42l06802 12,150 -

Passed Through AmosLcag Heahh
Adoption Opportunities 93 652 0595-9050.902010-7017 1,24) -

Passed Through the NH Division ofDCYF
FostaCvcTitle IV-E 93 6511 O5954U2-t2l0ll>-2958 126,689 -

Passed Through the NH Divisaon ofCommunily Based Care
Social Services Block Cm 93f67 05-9593-9Jn0l(V7858 164.249 _

Passed TIeough the NH Division of DCYF
Social Services Block Cram 93(67 054I95-(M2-I2I0I(>-29(6UXSI-|(I2-)II0734-42KI&6(I} 226,370 so.rno

Passed Through the NH Depantnent of Heallh and Human Serv ices
Social Serv kes Block Gran 93(67 0595-4S-48l0l(L9255 462,622 _

Passed Through the NH Div ision of l,ong Term Supports and Serv ices

Social Services Block Grant 93,(67 059593-9.100IO-7858 I7I,.1II6 -

Total Social Services Block Grjnl 1.0:4,627 30,000

Passed TTnugh the NH Division of Community and Public Health
Maiemal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Viiilbg Grant 93.S70 1  0595-«i-9(i20l0-245l 103,513 _

Maternal, Infaiu and Early CMIdhocd Home Visiling Grant 93.870 05955O-9020I0-5S96 940.768 -

Total Maicnul. Infsni and Early Childhood Home Visiling Grant 1,014,2*3 -

Passed Thnufh the NH Division Long Tom Suppais end Servica
Matemsl md Child Hetlih Sovices Block Gran lo Ihe Sisies 93,591 059593-930010-519I 19,2,17

Pasaed Throu^ Ihe NH Division of DCYF

Matonal aid Child Health Soviccs Block Gran lo the States 93 994 ^,ll54N5-O9li.9(J2III(K5l9(XXXfl-l(i2-51lO73!-9«(rM0O9 15.740 _

Total Mamul and ChlU Heath Services Block Gran 34,977 -

Medtcaid Cluster

Paaaed Through the NH Division of Long Term Supports and Serv lea

Medical Asisuncc Prognm 9.t.778 ^  DnLnown 155,91,1
-

TtMsl McdicsidCltisia 155,91,1
-

Talal EX, Departitseut ef Health and liuauu ServIres 4.601,757 44.435

Tulal Federal Etpendllures i  7,114.668 %  111.301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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WAYPOINT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Waypoint, (the Organization) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2023. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Require
mentsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of Waypoint, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Waypoint.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

Note 3 - De Minimis Cost Rate

The Organization has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 4 - Donated Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) (Unaudited)

During the year ended December 31,2023, the Organization did not receive donated PPE from
federal sources.
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WAYPOINT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEIVIBER 31, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Sta tements

Type of auditors' report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FederalAwards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Type of auditoi-s' report issued on compliance for major
federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

COVlD-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds
Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home
Visiting Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

Yes n/ No

Yes n/ None reported

Yes y No

Yes y No

Yes y None reported

Unmodified

Yes y No

Assistance Listing Nijmber(s)

21.027

93.870 I

$750,000

y Yes No
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WAYPOINT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None.

Section III - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None.

Section IV - Schedule of Prior Year Findings

There were no findings in the prior year.
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Janet Ackerman

Melissa Biron, Treasurer

William Conrad

Helen Crowe

Rob Dapice

Jane E. Gile, Secretary

Emily Hammond

Marc Lubelczyk

Marilyn T. Mahoney

Holly P. Mintz

Zach Palmer

Mark C. Rouvalis, Chair

Jennifer Stebbins, Vice Chair

Waypoint Trustees
2024
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Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

Profesalohal Profilo

•  A seasoned, leader wllh more than 18 years of serdor level norv-profit management experience.
•  Strong business aciirhen with emphasis on developlrig processes to ensure the alignment of

'Strategy^ bperatlons, and outcomes Nvlth a strength based approach to leadership devetopmerit
•  CoIlaborativB leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervision

and conflict resoiution.

Professional Experience

}Naypoint,formei1yChl}dendFQmHyS6rvlcesofNewHampshim ~
Manchester, NH Decombor 2013-Present

- Prosldoni and CEO

■  Responsible for program planning and development, Insuring that Waypolnt meets the community
needs.

•  Advance the public profile of Waypolnt by devebping Innovative approaches and building productive
reiatioriships with government, regional and national constituencies.

•  Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with, the regtonal Boards
•  Responsible foral! aspects of financial planning, sustaJnabliily and oversight pf Waypolnt's assets
•  VVdrk^th Development staff and Board of Directors to design and Implement all fundralslng

. activities. Including cultivation and solicitation of key Individuals, foundattons and corporations

Riverside Coniinunlty Care,
bedham, MA 2009- 2013

DIvfsfoh Direcior, Child and Family Services
•  Responsible for strafegte vision, planning and Implementation of the programrnatlc, operational and

financial sustalnabliity of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.
•  In partnerahip with The Guidance Center, Ina's board of directors, played leadership role in

suGcessfulVmerglng with Riverside Community Care, through a process that Involved stralegfc
planning, analysis and, selection of a viable partner.

•  Provide supervision tb managers using a strength tesed approach and a collaborative coaching
model to leadership development.

The Guldahco Center, Inc.
.Cambridge, MA 1998-2009

- Chief Operating OWcer -2007 - 2009
•  Hired Ini'tialiy as pirector of an Intensive home-based family pr^ram and through successive

prbmotbhs became responsible for all "operations in the organtzatlon.
•  Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new

initiative's.
•  Developed strategic" relationships with state and local funders, and partnered with convnunlty

agencies to support the healfhy growth of children and families.
/

/

Private Practice in Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain 1992 -1998
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Unlveraldad Pontiflcia do ComJUas

Madrid, Spain 10G1-1998

^AtiJunct Faculty
•  Taughtgraduate level courses In Family and Couples Therapy program
•  PracUcum program supervlson Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live

supervision in the treatment of mul(i-problem fellies.

Centro Mddico-^stcopedagdglco
Madrid, Spain 1994 -1997

r-CIinlceU Coordlnator/Dlroctor of Training.

•  Member of a multl-disdpiinary team that prwldad as&o&ament and treatment to famiiles victimsOf
terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.

ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment),
Madrid. Spain 1991- 1894

" Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
• ' Provided evaluatiori and treatment for chemically dependent adults and thelrfamllies.
~ Senior Family Theraplsi, Couples and Family Thqrapy Program
•  A/Vorkedas.a family therapist In the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles River Health Monagcmoht
Boston, MA 1989-1991

~ SeniorFamily TherBplst, Home Basod Family Treatment Program.

Education

Graduate Certificate of Business

Unlvers^ of Ma^chusetts, Lowell, 2000.
(Waster's Degree in Education
Cqunselirig Psycholo^ Program Boston University, 1989,
,B.A. In Clinical Psychology
Universidad Pontiflcia de Comlllas; Madrid, Spain. 1988

Publications

2009 Ayers.S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Communlly Bas^ Mental Health v/fth Children and Families. In A
R. Roberts (Ed.) ,Soc/a/IVo/ter'sDes/r/?efertwoe(2'«'ed.),N6wYorfcOj^rd University Press, 2009.

2006 Topical Disous^dn: Advancing Community-Based Ciinlcal Practice and Research: Learning In the
Field. PiBsented atthe 19"^ Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children's Mental
Health:. E)0ancfing the Research Base, Februeiy 2006, Tampa, FL

2001 Lyman, D.R.; .Sieget, R.; Alvarez deTpIeclo. B.; Ayers, S.; Mi)<ula,J. hhw to be little and stUl think
big:- C/eatlng a grass roots, evidence based sy^m of cam. Symposium prasented at the •14"'
Annual Research Conference in Children's Merits Heallh, Research and Training Centerfor
ChDdren's Mental Health. Febnrary 2001, Tampa, FL

2006 Lynian.D.FL. B. Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecology of hterislve community based Inteivendon. In
Lfehtburri, A., P. Sessloiis. Handbook of Communify Based Clinical Rraotce. Oxford University
Press, 2006," England.

2001 Lyman, p.R., B, Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk Actors end trealmBnt outcomes In a strategic
intensive famHy program. In Newman, .C, C. Uberton, K. Kutash and R prledman, (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-68. Research
and Training Cc^erfor Chlldron's Mental Heallh, University of South Fio'rida, Tampa, FL

1994-98 Research'papers and professional presentafions jn peer renewed Journals in Spain

Languages

Fluent In Spanish, French and Italian.
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COLLEEN Wl. IVES

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive v/ith a fo™idable of
administrator with strategic planning, business s^e who achieves exceptional,

and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

community-based services.

a'SSs of program delivery including; gsca, and personnel management, quality assurance and
program development

and affordabie hoLising sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Cont™t ,. , gt^tegic objectives through oyersight.of the day-to-
.  Report to principals with overall responsibiatyte ach^^g l^^ei as

■ s """""""
best practices,

throughout New England.

K^nd facilitate customized corporate -^a^in« ^ -"'jn

.  Transformed climate of Sn-site Internal and external analv^is of 11 retail

psychorogy anos ay ^-qlleeN M. IVES • Page 2
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord. NH« 2001-2005 .. u ^
Statewide nonprofit ottering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other communltyrbased
services.

Acting Executive blrector&Chief Operating Officer - . ̂ ^
Led in+emal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraslng and
m'arketing. Transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
leamlng that benefited the organization and,Individual employees. Evaluated operational results andfaalitatod
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and internal mformation flow. Developed short- and
lonq-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management^evel employees, staff of 90. and $1.3M. annual
operating budget Held.complete performarice management authoHty as well as autonomy to engage in private
and state/federal contracts. ^ ^
-• Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration,, successful applications for ne^

competitiye grants, Initiating a comprehensive development / fundralsing plan, and increasing the fee-for-
service lines of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400. to 3.000+ individuals within three-year penod by re^ructunng existing
programs, developing new programs and Increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

•  Establj^ed foundation for 36-month capacity building plan to enhance Infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting fulLorganlzational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

.  Expanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunlly through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational cultures and business pracllces, including human resource policies, management
teams and,compensation/benefits. .

•  Recommended, designed and Implemented Internal controls arid operating procedures.for ail departments
(Human Resourdes, Finance,. Public Relations/ Deveiopmerit, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employm.ent Services). ^ #

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by .irnplementing state ot
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH» 1992-2000 ^ v/ fi™i
Statewide organization, providing Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

/

Managed professloriaj staff of 8 to deliver services that Included 15 statevyide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises in State and Federal buildings.
•  Awarded $1.i2IVl 3-year federal grant to provide peer supportservlces in ISIocations across the state
.  Led Department to highest rank in standards and benchmari<s among 7 other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atrposphere by Integrating 4 distinct statevflde programs Into a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders In the statewide network of social

and human services and employment arenas.
■  )

EDUCATION

Doctorato In Human and Organizational Systems
Masterof Arts in Human Development

'  Fielding Graduate UnK/ersity. Santa Barbara. California

Master of Arts/CAGS In Rehabllltatlori Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy j
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts
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DEMISE A. BENNETT

WORK EXPERIENCE

Director of Finance

04/2023 to Present

Waypoint

464 Chestnut Street. Manchester. NH 03101

Responsible for managing all aspects of the Accounting Department. Create and maintain agency budget of $20 million.
Work with directors and senior management on finances for the agency. Responsible for recording the Investment activity
as well as overseeing the real estate holding company. Review and approve all outgoing contract billings.

Controller

09/1993 to 04/2023

Waypoint n

464 Chestnut Street. Manchester. NH 03101

Oversaw the Accounting department Including payroll, a/p & a/r. Assisted senior management In preparing the annual
budget for a $20 million agency. Prepared month end financial statements for all programs. Met with Directors to review

financlals monthly. Responsible for all outside audits.

Office Manager
07/1990 to 02/1992

TRW

Bedford, NH

Managed regional sales office. Assistant to regional sales manager.

SKILLS

Budgeting - 10+years

Financial Reporting - 10+years

Month End Closing - 10+years

Responsible for all audits - 10+years
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EDUCATION

Southern NH University
Bachelor's

Business Management

Manchester. NH

09/1985 to 05/1988

Southern NH University
Associate

Accounttng

Manchester. NH

09/1983 to 05/1985
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Waypoint

NAME JOB TITLE

•• • ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

; CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Borja Alvarez de Toledo President and CEO $0.00 .$195,000

Colleen Ives COO $0.00 $127,338.

Denise Bennett Director of Finance $0.00 $125,000

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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Lori A. Weaver

Comml^oaer

Melim A. Hardy
Dimtor

STATE OrNEW HAiyiPSHlRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TEAM Sl/FPOJRTS AND SERVICES

lW>LEASA^r^ STREET, concord; NH 03301
603^271-5034 1;S00^:334S Ext 5034

rax: 603-271-5166 TOD Acccai: 1-800-73^2964' wirw.dbha.ob.gov

April 26.2024 , *

His Excellency, Governor. Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cpuncii

State'House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the D^artment of Health and Human Services/Division of Long Term .Supports
and Services; to amend existing contracts with the Contractors Jlsted t^low to continue to provide
In-Home Care, Home Health Aide, and Nursing services, by exercising a contract renewal option
by increasing the total price Jimitation by.$.12;b5i,987!36from $12,332,73174 tb $24i384;710:^^
and'by extending^he cornpietion dates from June 30. 2024 to June SO, 2026. leffeiiye July 1.
2024, upon .Governor and Council approval. 59®/p Federal Funds. 41 % General Funds.

Contractor.
Narne

Vendor

: Code
Area Served Current

Amount
IncroMe

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

o&c

Approval

Andrpscoggin
Valley Home
Care Services

BeriifiiNH

157347, CoosCounty ■$1,259,189.74 ' $1,237,459.40; ^.496,649.14

0:.
6/29^2,
item ,i>47

A"1;
6)28/23,
item:'#62' ,

AreaHomeCare
'Family Services,

Inc,

Portsmouth, NH

166931 Rockingham
County

,$2.6^.184.00 $2,621,216.00 $5,257,400,00

0:
6)29^.
item #47

A1:
6/28/23.
Item#62

Easter Seals
New Hampshire,

inc.

Manchdsteri NH

177204

Hillsbprough
(Manchester,

' Miiford,
Nashua) and

Straffb'rd
Counties

•1

$1,567,704.00 $1,537,689.92 $3,105,393.92

0:6/29/22,
item #47

a1 ,
6/28/23,
item #62

1 Lakes Region
Comrnunity

Services Council

• Laconia, NH

17725i,
BeiKnap.

Grafton arid
Sullivan
Counties

$1.3a4;856.00 ' $1,232,096,00 $2,598,052.00

0:
6)29/22.
item #47

Ai>
6f2B/2Z.
Item #62
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Xls Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
8r>d the Horwrabie CouncH

Page 2 of 3

Visiting Nurse
Home Cere&

Hospice of
Carroll County

North Conway,
NH

225191 . Carroll
County

$310,600.00 $295,619.72 $606,219.72

;o:

6/29/22.
item #47

A1;

^8/23,
item 062

VNA.at HCS.
.  Inc. .

Keene, NH

177274 Cheshire

County
$1,477,564.00

• x"

$1,462,591,60 $2,940,175.60

0:

6/29/22,
item 047

A1:

6/28/23,
item 062

Waypoint

Manchester, NH
177166

HillstMrough
and

Merrimack

Counties

$2,902,634.00 $2,872,983.60 $5.775,9'17.80

0:

6/29/22;
Item 047

A1:

6/28/23,
Item 062

Gorneistone
VNA

Rochester/NH

230661 Straftord

County
$283,624.00 $268,630.46 $552,254.48

O:

10/19/22,
item 021

A1:

6/28/23.
item 062

Lake Sunapee
Cornmunrty-

- Health'Services

New London,
NH

174248 Sullivan

County
$204,532.00

•»

$234,816.00 $439,348.00

0:

10/19/22.
Item 021

A1;

6/28/23,
item 062 -

North Country
Home Health &

Hospice
Agency. Inc.

Littleton. NH

154643 Grafton

County
$176,272.00 $172,948.44 $351,220.44

0:

10/19/22,
item #21

A1:

6/28/23,
item 082

The Visiting
Nurse

Association of

Fr^klln

Franklin. NH

154177
Beiknap and.
Merrimack

Counties

$147,252.00

y-

$115,936.00 $263,188.00

0:10/19/2

2. item
021

A1:

6/28/23.
Item 062

•
- Total: $12,332,731.74 $12,051,987.36 $24,384,719.10
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His ExceHency, Governor CruislopherT. Sununu
er^ (ha Horwrable CouncD

Page 3 of 3

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be 'available In State Fiscal Year 2026. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between statefiscal years through the Budget Office,

.  If needed and justified.
•

'  See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATIOflJ

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide In-Home Care, Horne Health Aide,
ar^ Nursing services statewide to support older, Isolated adults, age 80 and older and to adults
between the ages of 18 and 59 who have a chronic illness or disability, to live as independently
as possible, safely, and with dignity.

The In-home services provided by the Contractors are: ■>

•  In-Home Care services: Older Americans Act Title III and Trtle XX programs,
including household maintenance and housekeeping; and meal planning and
preparation. *

: • Home Health Aide services: . Assistance wHh managing Individual personal care
needs, including bathing and^groomlng.

•  Nursing services: Providing nursing services, conducting medical needs
evaluations, and developing a nursing care plan to support individuals in their
homes. Nursing services iridude general licensed pradical nurse or registered
nurse duties, including assistance with preparing and admlnsilering medications,
providing health evaluations, and developirig health and weliness plans.

Approximately 3.320 Individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.
The Department will rnonitor services by reviewirtg quarterly reports 8ubmitte(il by the

Contractors and by .ix^nducting site/desk reviews, as necessary by the Department.
As referenced In Exhibit A of the original agreements, the parties have the option to extend

the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The.
Department is exercising Its option to renew services for two (2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Departmerrt
will be tjnable to provide these services that support older, isolated adults, and adults who have
chronic illness or disability with living independently and safely as possible.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.044, FAIN #2201NHOASS &
230iNHOASS; Assistance Listing Number #93.667, FAIN.#2101NHSOSR; Assistance Listing
Number #93.044. FAIN 2101NHSSC; Medicaid Enhanced FMAP-ARP.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully subrnitted.

LonVL''Weaver
CoiMmissioner

Tht Dtparlmtniof Health and Human Senjioa'Miuion u to join comtnunUies and families'
,  m prowding opportunities for aUxens to achieve health and independence.
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0MM»4«t01».Ta7] HEALTH AHO SOCUL EERVJCES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC8. HH8:"EL0eRLY. AOULT
SERVICES. 0BANT8 FOR SOCUL SVC PROP. AOMIN ON A0a<0 8VC8 0RANT8 (S0% PH *0% 0««i}

AVHorm'Cara

FtoeM

Ymc
CiMMOetM CMdTtlt .JMNunMr

CuR«nM»*M InerMsM

(D«crt«Md) AflWUM

2023 S40400382 SS C«ntrtcit rrUi)c4o - $103 090.22 $0.00 $103,890.22
2024 M(L4003«2 SSConiractt rruCUolt t103.«90.22 $0.00 $103,890.22
202S S40400U2 SSContracu muKpti ' $0.00 $103,929.70 $103 929.70
202S &4(V6OO302 SS Conftctt mAticitt ' $0.00 $103,929.70 $103,929.70

'■ SuMcKtl $207,780.44 $207 850 40 $415,039.84

Ant Horn*
Ctn

FImM
Ym/'

i^i40e^ OMtTUl Jot Mmbar
Cunan ModJM

OudB^
IneruMt

(OMrMMt) AnMwn OudB*

2023 540-500382 SSCcrmctt nutielt $70.584.a $0.00 $70,584.00
2024 540400382 A.S Caftnnt rruruolt ' 170 584 00 $0.00
2025 540400382 SSConrtcu mutticM $0.00 S70.592.00 ■ $70,592.00
2020 540-500382 SSConcnas mjlifDit $0.00 $70,592.00 $70 592.00

.  SUAMtl $141,158.00 $141,184.00 $282,352.00

Comtntont

FIkM
Yw

CUtMOCftd dnifai jMNumotr CurrM MoMM
6ud9«l

Incnstao
(OKTiitM) Mneunl BudpM

2023 > 540400382 SSControeu - fltiliol* ■ $8.272.0( soot $6,272.00
2024 540400382 SS Controcti nuHWa $8,272.00 soot .  $8,272.00
2025 5404003S2 SS Convtcu nxii/pio $0.0( $8,287.24 $8,287.24
2028 540400382 SSCcntroctt — rtxAilol* $0.00 $8 287.2- $8,287.24

- SuWotM $12.544.0( $12,534.41 $2507848

Cttitr Stilt
r.'.:

«•

FItcN
,Y#t« cu*HOe)Ki OulTkM JeONUMtf CwnsrtModIM

BuOpM
Incnasid

(Dtcrimd) AnawM Bwdeat

2023 540400362' SSConrtcti muttioU $80,518.00 SO.OC $88.51800
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 'miilolo $88,518.00 $0,00 $88,518.00
2025 540400382 SSContraeU -tniOElt $0.00 $60.508.M $88,608.98
2026 540-500362 SSCcAtracii muhiDls $0.00 $0SS06.6e $88 508.98

SutMotti $133,032.00 $133,017.92 $288,049.92

FruikUnVNA

• r.
•

•.

FbeN"
YU(

OttfOt^ - CtotsTiiit Joerwnbtf *
CwTMModCM Incraasac

pacraisaC) Anauni V,BudO«
•

2023 540400382 SS Contract* tnuMpit $7.200 00 SO.OC $7,200.00
2024 •540400382 . S.S Conrad* rrultlDit $7 200 00 $0.00 $7.20000
2025 540400382 SS Contracts nulilcit $0.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00
2028 540-500382 SS Contracts mitfol* ' • < $0.00 $7,200.00 17.200.00

SutMoial $14,400.00 $14,400.00 $28,800.00

Ltkt Rtglen

FtocN
Yttr

CUtiTIOi Joonjfliotc CurrtmM'tanM
BuBQW

.Inuassao
(Dacraasad) AfMiat Oudpil

2023 540400382 SSConraeu RMUpl* $90,456.00 $0.00 $90,458.00
2024 540400382 S.S ConOaas ffluttlcls $90 458 00 $0.00 $90,458.00
2025 540-600382 SS Convacts mutiiel* $0.00 $90,484.00 $90,444.00
2028 540400382 SSContnd* muMoit $aoc $90,484.00 $90,444.00

Subtotal $180.91200 $180 928.00 $381,840.00

Uk4 Sufuptt 1

•

"

'FbctI
Y«« CtntA}b|*ci etas* no* JoONkmMt

CwwtUedUM
euOgM

•ncaasaa
(Oaeraisad) Amount OudpM

2023 540-500382 SS CcntracU mulilelt • $33,384.00 $0.00 $33,344.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contract* nuhlDl* $33 384.00 $0.00 $33 384.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts midoi* $000 $33 392.00 $33,392.00

■ 2028 -540400382 SS Contracts multlQla $0.00 ' ■ $33,392.00 ■  $33392.00
SutMMal $86,708.00 $88,784.00 $133,552.00

North Country
HHH ■•T-- •

FlK4(
Ym>

Cl4tMO0)Kt ClUI Tdi JoONumOfr CtnMUa«AiC
BuOtai

tnervisad
Oacrsasad) nnaiM Buopu

<. 9^
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W23 S40400393 SSConVKU rwRiglt S78.&32.00 to.oo 176.53100

J024 $40-300382 SS Contr*ci« rruNol* »7«.U2.Da 10.00 S76.S3100

202S S404003M SSConneu ruKjcIt SO.OO S70.S22.22 S7e.S2122

?026 S40-800382 SSConraca SO.OO $70,522.22 $70,522.22

Subio(«l tlSS.OM.OO 1153.044.44 $306,108.44

Vltfting Nun*

n»cM

Y4«
CiMiiOe(«a Cliit TM joaNwntar

CunanI Medlllaa InerMMd

(Dk/hmiO Amount
e(i«a«

2023 540-500382 SSContraca rruUota $39,800.00 $0.00 $39,800.00

2024 540-500382 SSConnea' muttic4c $39,600.00 $0.00 $39,800.00

202S 540-500382 - SSConraci* ■mjltlola $0.00 $39 809.86 $39,809.86

2026 540-500382 .SS Contracts mjltlola $0.00 $39,809.86 $39,809.86
SuOiout $79,600.00 $79,819.72 $159,219.72

Y*w
CUuTU* Humbar

CunartMaoUM
BuOQat

tncm»M '

(OacraiuC) runounl .'.BudBS;.

2023 640-500382 SS Contracts rrulilpsa 518.548.00 $0.00 $16,548.00
2024 540800382 SSConcraas rnuAiMa 516.548.00 $0.00 $16,548.00

2025 540800382 SS Contracts nxMDlt 50.00 $10.54380 $16,543.80

2026 540-500382 SS Contracts rrUtlpia $0.00 $10,543.80 $16,543.60
SuMoial • $33,098.00 $33,087.60 $68,183.60

WaypcM

FlSCJl
Ytar

CUsiA3eMa
1

CMS ru» jobNuBOar '
Cvrani Modiflod

Oudgai
McrMsad'

(Dacra4»*d) Amoin

2023 540800382 - SS Contacts mJtfcta $239,515.00 $0.00 $239,515.00

2024 ' 540-500382 SS Contracts multfoia $239,515.00 $0.00 $239,515.00
2025 540-500382 SSContraca rrxSliota $0.00 $239,531.90 5239.531.90

2020 540800382 SSCencracis rrUilpla 50.00 $239,531.90 $239,531.90
Subtotal . $479,030.00 1479.063.80 $958,093.60

Total ' $1,601,394.44 .$1.$01.$t3.M $3,062,917.10

HEALTH ANO &OCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS, HKS: ELDERLY-AOULT

AV Homa Cart
-•

—

FltM
Ymi

ciauroe)ac2 CUstTUt JobMMitbat
Currant Uedliiad

Dud04i .
lACAisad

(Dae(a«»ad) runatn

2023 540-500362 SS Centracit 48130098 i$S14.B00.0a $0.00 $514 800.00

2024 543800365 Adull In Homa Cara 46130098 $514,800.00 $0.00 $514,800.00

2025 543800385 . Atluti In Homa Cara 48130098 $0.00 ssi4.eoo.oo $514,600.00
2026 543800385 A8uti In Homa Can 48130098 $0.00 $514,800.00 $514,800.00

Subtotal $1.029.600.n $1.029.900.00 $2,059,200.00

Araa Homa

Ctrt -

Flita
Yatr

CJniroetM ctasi.rai 3B»Nu(n»at
CurrtAMetUM

Oudfat
■nerMtad

(Oaaaasad) Amouia 6udoai

2023 540800382 SSContraca 481)0098 r $1,240,008.00 $0.00 Sl.240.006 00

2024 543-500385 AOuli In Horn* Cara 48130098 $1 240.008.00 $0.00 SV240 008.00

2025 543800365 AOull In Homa Cara 48130098 $0.00 $1,240,010.00 $1 240.019.00

2026 543800365 AAit In Homa Cara 48130098 $aoo $1,240,010.00 $1,240,018.00
Subtotal $1480.018.00 $2,480,032.00 $4,960,048.00

ComtraSona
>,'■

.

F\ttM
Yaar

Cussrot^aci CaisTUa -MbNumbar
Caram uediaad

Budaai
lAcraaud

<Daetuaad) Ameuni
Oudp*

2023 540800382 SS Contracts 48130098 $128,040.00 ' $0.00 $126,040.00
2024 543800385 Aduti In Homa Cara 48130098 $128,040.00 $0.00 .$128,040.00

2025 543800365 AduQ In Homa Cara 48130008 $aoo $126,048.00 $128.04800

2026 543800385 Adun In Homa Cara 48130098 $0.00 $128 048.00 $128.04800
Subtotal - $256,080.00 $258,009.00 $51217800

Eaaiaf SaaJa
•

FhtH
YMr

CMVOC^ CtoHTU* JM Nwnbar
Cunani MMOad

Budaai
Mcraiiad

(Daaaatcd) Amawv
Oudati

2023 540800382 SSContraca 48130098 $702,339.00 $0.00 5702,33800
2024 543800385 Aduli In Homa Cara '48130098 $702,339.00 $0.00 $702,339.00
2025 543-500385 Adull In Homa Cara 48130008 $0.00 $702,339.00 $702,339.00
2026 -543-500385 . Adull 1 n Homa Cara 48130098 $0.00 $702,339.00 $702,339.00

Subtotal ; $1,404,072.00 $1,404,972.00 $2,606,344.00
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FnAMInVNA

PkcM

row
' O*«woo»oa ' cmmtu* JcONwnow

C«nonMe«AM

DuOgot
IncrooMO

(Docrt'noO) Anoun ' Bu4a«

?trJ3 ML6003a2 SSCcnbocU 4dl)00M tS0.760.0C SO.OO S50760 00

2024 t4>5003a5 AduR th Homo Coro MISOOM S50.760.00 SO.OO S50 760.00

202S &43-5003&5 AMI M Homo Coro 4«i)oooa to.oo S50.76a.00 S50.766.00
2020. 54M00M5 AMI In Homo Cwo 401300M '  SO.OO SSO.7Aa.00 S50.7e6.00

SubMUi SIOI.S20.00 SI01.536.00 S2O3.0S6.00

L*k* ft*clon

FlwW

Yu>
ClnOt<4q OmTte JeeNuntar

Cuntnl MedGM InematM

(DaCfMMtf) AflWI
BuOgrt

2023 $40400362 SS Cemrtetj 46130066 3566.472.00 SO.OO SS69472 00

-2024 543.500365 AMI In Hema Cw* 46130098 '  $$69,472.90 S0.00 tS6» 472.00

.2025'' 64^500365 AMI InHom* p«r« 46130098 ' SO.OO 5525 564 00 $526,584.00

2029 W3-500M5 AMI mHem* Cam 46130008 so 00 tS2a M4 0A S52S.5S4.00

SubtOlM $1,138,944.00 S1.061.168.00 S2.190.112.00

L«k»SuntpM

Fbcrt

YtW
■ ClUtAMlM CMilTIIH...; . JoliNMneof

Cwnont UoOtftM .

DuOgrt
incro4t*0

(D0O44S44} AnMUM

>•

OuOpM

2023 540400362 SSConncu 46130098 S48.132.a SO.OO -  $48,132.00

2024 543400385 AMI In Homo Cw* .46130096 $46.13100 SO.OO $48.13100

2025 543400365 AMI In Homo Csro 46130098 SO.OO $84,016.00 $84,016.00

2026 54340038S AMI In Homo Cvo 48130096 $0.00 $84,016.00 $64,018.00

Subtotal $98,284.00 $188.03100 $264,298.00

North Counify
HHH

Fto«rt

Ytar
ClMUOti|«a CIMiTd* JMNumbw '

C«inMUo«S4«

0u0g4(
lncmot«4

(D0C<4IUd) AlMUO '.eud[^'',

2023 540400382 SS Conuod* 48130098 $1,956.0(1 SO.OO $1,958.00

2024 543400385 AtMi In Home Cofo 46130098 $1,956,001 ■ $0.00 $1,956.00

2025 543400385 AMI In homo Coo 46130096 $0.« $9,952.00 $9,952.00

2028 543400385 AMI In Homo Cot 48130096 SO.OC $9,952.00 $9,952.00

'  Subtotal $3.9l2.0C $19,904.00 $23,818.00

VIoUInQ NufM
HCH

Flt4rt

Yaw
a4*aA>b(4d CMtlTU* JebNumbw

CurrwoMoObM InWMMtl

(DoCtMSOd) AffiMI
BuSgrt

2023 540400382 SS Centrocta inAtfplo $108,000.00 SO.OO $108 000.00

2024 543400385 Adud m Homo Cora 48130098 $108,000.00 $0 00 $106,000.00

2025 543400385 AMI In Homo Cora 48130096 $0.00 $108,000.00 $108 000.00

2026 543400385 Aduh In Homo Cora 48130096 $0.00 $108 000.00 $108,000.00

Subtotal $216000.00 S216GOOOO $431000.00

VNA ot HCS

FI»C«

voor
OualOotKi ^  <3u'irbi= AoeNvmM'

iCurraMUMSM*
BudOM

mcrnaaad

(040*4*0^ Afucvrt

2023 54D400382 SS Contracts 48130098 $714,744.00 $0.00 S7l4.744.00

2024 543400365 -AMI In Homo Cam 48130098 $714,744.00 $0.00 S7t4.744.00

2025 543400385 AtMi In Homo Cara 48130098 $0.00 $714 752.00 S714.752.00

2028 543400385 AiMt In Homo Cara .48130098 $0.00 $714,752.00 S714.7S2.00

Subtotal $1,429,488.00 - $1,429 504.00 S2.858.992.00

Wiypoim

•FltC4l

Yaar
ciat*»e*ea -  Oasi TkM . JeeNumbar

CuraniWertAM

Oudgw
kicmaaad

[Daeraiaad) Ameial
'Dul9«

2023 . .540400382 SS ConVacts ' 48130098 Si.198.952.00 $0.00 31.190.95100

2024 643400385 AMI In Homo Cara 48130098 SI 196952.00 $0.00 ' SI.196.952.00

• 2025 543400385 A<Mt In Homo Cam 48130098 SO.OO $1.198 900.00 $1,190,980.00

2028 543400385 AfMt In Homo Cara 46130098 SO.OO $1,190,980.00 si.iQo.ooaoo

Subtotal 'S2.393.004.00 S2.393.920.00 $4,787,024.00

TotsI sie.ssa.4oe.oo Sie.tS0.464.00 tl1.100.8«4.00

OMMI-MIOIMSM HEALTH AND SOCiAL SERVKES. OEPT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, KHS: ELDERLY. ADULT

SERVKEE. CHANTS FOR SOCUL SVC PROO, GENERAL FUND MATCH FOR ARPA (H% Fod UM Own)

AV HomoCtro

Ftscil

Yaar
Clist«b|ad CMsiTU* JteNumbar

CunMMo«iM

OudoM

InctMMO

Pacraaiad) Amour* •

2024 540400382 SS Contracts 48130619 $15,000.00 $0.00 ■ $15,000.00



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

SuWomj tl5.000.00l tO.OOl 'tl5.000.C0l

A/«t HOM

FIkjI

YU(
OMWOttW CttliTU* MfATMr

OrrWIUoOftM

Btid9«
lACrMtM '

(DacnMM) AJDOUM
6u09«

2034 540^U3 SS Contrto* 45150016 tl5.000.00 to.oo $15,000.00

SuWCKtl $15,000.00 $0.00 $15000.00

Com«r«»A«

' n*c«t '

Vut
autiO»ita CiMI RM MNWUmt

1

C«nMWMH«4 MntMd

(OkctkMtf)

2033 'S40.500302 SSConcrtcU 40130016 to.ooo.oc $O.CO $0,000.00
3024 S40«X)3S2 SSCerWKU 40130016 $7,000.00 taoo $7,000.00

Sotxouf $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

E«tt*rS4l>t

FluK
V*w

CiaiW06|«ct CMttTM JMNumMr
Cwi«n w«atflM

OMO*

kKf*«Ma

(0*(r»aM41 AmwiM
•

2034 WO-SOOMJ SSConnei 44130016 $30,000.00 to 00 $30,000.00 '

$30,000.06 $0.00 $30,000.00

PnnHlnVNA'

Find'
V«w

cu(*«eiwi '■ CiMiTU* 30$ NunMr
CumM MMOM

Bud9«(
IncrMMd

(D*(/*tM4) Anoutt ' BudgM

2023 $4&«»3e2 SSConffKl* 45130010 $15,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00
3034 5404003S2 5$ Conlr»eti 45130616 $14,000.06 $0.00 $14,000.00

Subtolsl $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

(.•k* Rkglon '•

FlKll
Y«W CUwAOttM Ctttt TCM 4eONun*v

Cum Me«9M
BudgM

incfMMd
(pKrcMM) A/noum OudQM

3024 $40^382 SSC«ntrKti 45130016 $45,000.06 $0.00 $45,000.00
SuMoUl $4s.ooo.a $0.00 $45,000.00

L«kt Sun«pM,

FbcN
rt*! Oiu«t4M CUltTdl Mb'NumMr CtmnMo«flad

DudgM (Dm/muO) AnowM Dudg*

2033 &40«)0352 SSContTKU 45130616 ta.ooo.a $0.00 $5,000.06
2024 540^352 SSCennea 45130016 S7.000.OC $0.00 $7,000.00

Subiot*! $15,000.06 $0.00 $15,000.06

MorthCMmry
HHH

Filed
Yaar

OuiTOetMt OiitTU* MMtenMr OmMModM
'  BudM*

lrie/MM«
(D*crMM5) Budgd

2023 540-500352 • SSComricu 45130616 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
2024 540-500382 SSComraat 45130618 $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00

&ub(o(d $15,000.00 '  taoo $15,000.00

Vlttting Nurt*
.KCK .

Filed
Yiir

CUiNOtfwl ClutTdi . JMNumbw CurrwiUedUM
DudpM

kcniMd
AffieuM D<^

2023 540400353- ' S5C«ntr*et» 45130616 -■$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3034 540400352 SSConoactt 48130016 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

SuWMM $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

VNA kt HCS

Fhed '
YM(

CUtdO«$Kt CUll TUi Jee,N>anM< CwrMMMtM
Oudpd

MCTMIM

(DmtmiM) Anouni OuOgm

.3024 54O400352 SSCerWMts 4513C616 $15,000.06 $0.06 $15,000.00
SuHMti $15,000.00 $0.00 $15000.00

•r.

Wtjrpolnt
.

Fteed
YMt

t

ClaiiTOtlMl C^TIM JMNunMt.
CurrMMMOid

Du46«< '
inoMMd

puOMMd) AriMwnt Ou^

2024 540400352 SS COAVKU .45130016 $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00
.V Subtoul $30,000.00 $0.00 $30.000.X

• To(d $240,000.06 $0.06 $340,006.00

- 't
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HEALTH AND WCIAL SERVICeS. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN #VC3. HH8: DfV OF

AV H«m« Or*
f.

*

FbcM

Ym
Ca*u/04*() CUmTB* MNumMr

Cwram UedlfM

Dueefi
InctiMd

(0*cr •*••<) Amount
BtMgM '

2024 102-5CC73I Conuacu tv Progrcm Svi
- 03009020 ta.B00.3a 80.00 86.600.30

Subuu SO.809.30 80.00

FruMlnVfW

PtocN

VMT
CU«WO«f*cl CbttTlo* JeUNkvnbar

CWTWI IbloiMM

Bm09*i
lncr«***4

{0*Cr*«Ma) Amount Duae*

2024 102-400731 Coniracu tor Program Svt
03000020

11.332.00 ipM 81.332.00

S<*lo(a< St 332.« 80.0C 81.332.00

Laki Suntp**
..

n»(«

Ymt
CtouTU* Job HumMr

Currvn Ue«ft*d

Sudgw
'  lncr*ti*o

p*Cf*iM^ Amount euda*t
►

2024 102-500731 Conirtai for Program Sv«
03000020 S20.800.00 ■' , 80.00 826.800.00

Subtotal 820,800.00 80.00 826 500.00

Noftli Gauntry
■  HHH

•

Fbcjl
Ym<

CUuAIHta OiuTIM JeeNumMr
CwT«* tMdUM

Budg«t
IIK/tllOd

pofoitM) rvnovra BuapM

2024 • 102-800731 Covracti for Program Svi
03000020 86.299.00 80.00 86.206.00

Subtotal . 86.206.00 80.00 86 706.00
Total 840.*37.3e '80.00 840.037.36

1 1 Grand Tot ill ••• 1 812.332.731.T4l 813.0I1.087.)* l24.3U.7tO.IOl

.

•

♦

k. 'i
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^  Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Home Health Sen/ices contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2022 (Item #47), as amended on June 28, 2023 (Item #62), the Contractor agreed to perfomi
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:
I

$5,775,917.80

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 58.47% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 8.29% Older Americans Act Title lll-B, as awarded on September 8. 2022 and
February 13, 2023, by the Administration for Community Living. Title IIIB,
Supportive Services. ALN 93.044, FAINs 2201NHOASS and 2301NHOASS;

1.1.2. 49.74% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1. 2021, by the Social
Services Block Grant. ALN 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR; and

1.1.3. .44% Older Americans Act Title IIIB-ARP, as awarded on May 3, 2021, by the
Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB-ARP, Supporting Services, ALN
93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6.

1.2. 41.53% General funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, lead in paragraph only, to read:

3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per unit rate in accordance with Exhibit C-1, Amendment
#2, Rate Sheet through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #2, Rate Sheet.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Rate Sheet, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-l, Amendment #2, Rate
Sheet which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2, Rate Sheet, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Amendment #2, Rate
Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Waypoint r A-S-1.3- Contrarf(^^nitj|^^
RFA-2023-BEAS-0&-HOMEH-07-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date

Mt
..r Initials
4y
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July-I. 2024, upon Governor and Council
^pproval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/30/2024

X  OoeuSlgnvd by;

Melissa HardiDate Name: Menssa.Haray
Title: Director, dltss

Waypolnt

■OocuSlgntd by:

4/29/2024

C—OocuSlgntdby:
— Tparwt*

Date Name: sorja Alvarez de Toledo

president and CEO

Waypoinl A-S-1.3

RFA-2023.BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A02 Page 2 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

OocuSign Envelope ID: 48D1B5e4-S306-4B6C-937E-B48848B3B134

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: Robyn C

<  DeevSlpn*^ by:

4/30/2024

uanno

Title: Attorney

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

Waypqint A-S-1.3

RFA-2025-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Ejihlbit C-1. Amentfrnent ff2. Rate Sheet

AduU In-Home Care - Waypoint (Hillsborough County)

7/1/2022 ttirouah 08/30/2023 Service Units

Adult ln4{om« Care Unit Type

Total 0 of Units of

Servlee

anticipated to be
delivered.

Rate per
Service

Total Amount of

.FuRdlng'belng
Requested for each

Service

TtUe XX In . Home Services 1/2 Hour 77.380 $12.00 $928,560.00
Tiuo IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 10476 $12.00 $125 712 00
Trde IIIB Home Heaim Aide 1/2 Hour 1.810 $16.00 $28,660.00
TrtJe IIIB NursctK] - 1/2 Hour 300 $25.73 $7,719.00

Subtotal 89.666 $1,090,651.00
■;

7/1/2023 ttirouah 06/30/2024 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care UnltT^e

Total 0 of Units of
.Service

anticipated to be
deltvered.

Rate per
Service

Total Amount of
Funding being

Requested for each
Service

Tftle XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 77 380 $1^00 $928 560.00
rrtio IIIB In Homo Services 1/2 Hour 10.476 $12.00 $125,712.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.810 $16.00 $28,960.00
Title IIIB NtasinQ 1/2 Hour 300 $25.73 $7,719.00
HC8S ARP In Home Services 1/2 Hour 0 $12.00 $0.00
HC8S ARP.Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour ■■ 0 $16.00 $0.00
HC8S ARP Nursina 1/2 Hour 0 $25.73 $0.00

Subtotal 89 666 $1 090 951 00

7/01/2024 throuqh 08/30/2025 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total 0 of Units of
Service

anticipated to ba
delivered.

Rate per
Servica

Totti Amount of
Funding being

Requested for each
Servica

Tide XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 58C35 $16.00 $928,580.00
Tide IIIB In Home Services : 1/2 Hour 7.857 $16.00 $125,712.00
Tide IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.747 $16.58 $28,965.26
Title'IIIB Nurstrxi 1/2 Hour 120 $64.50 $7,740.00

Subtotal 67.759 $1,090,977.26

7/01/2025 throuqh 08/30/2026 Service Units
Total 0 of Units of Total Amount of

Service Monthly Furvdlng being
anticipated to be Rate per Requested for each

In Home Services Unit Type delivered. Service Service
TiUd XX In Home Services .> 1/2 Hour 58.035 $16.00 $928,560.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 7 857 $16.00 $125 71200
Tide IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.747 $16.58 $28,965.26
Title IIIB Nurstnq 1/2 Hour 120 $64.50 $7,740.00

Subtotal 67.759 $1.090977.26
OverallTotai • 315.450 $4 363.656.52

Wiypotni
ltfA-202»EA»»-HOMEHe7-^

£xMbtt C-X AmnAnoit Wi, Rsts Sheet

Contractor mtisls:

wr

4/29/2024
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Exhibit C'2. Amendment'02, Rate Sheet

Adult In-Home Care - Waypoint'

7/1/2022through 06/30/2023 Service Units
/ Total 0 of Units of Total Amourrt of

Service Funding being
anticipate to be Rate per Requested for each

Adult lrv>Home Care UnRType delivered. Service Service

Title XX in Home Services 1/2 Hour 22.366 S1200 $266.39^00
Trtte ins In Home Services 1/2 Hour 4 343 S12.00 $5? 116 00

Tide lllB Home Heatm Aide 1/2 Hour 1.563 S16.00 $25.008.m
Tide lilB Nursino 1/2 Hour 0 S25.73 $0.00

Subtotal 28.272 .$3t5.516.00

7/1/2023through 08/30/2024 Service Units

Total 0 of Units of Total Amount of

Service Funding bdirg
arrtldpated to be Rate per Requested for each

Adult In^Home Care UnRType delivered. Service Service

Title XX In Homo Ser^ots 1/2 Hour 22 366 S12.00 $268,392.00
Trtte IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 4.343 $12.00 $52,116.00

Tide IIIB Home Hcatth Aide 1/2 Hour 1 563 $16.00 $25,008.00

Tide IKB Nursirx] 1/2 Hour 0 $25.73 $0.00
HC8S ARP In Home Services 1/2 Hour 0 $12.00 $0.00

HC8S ARP Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 0 $16.00 $0.00
HOBS ARPNursina 1/2 Hour 0 $25.73 $0.00

Subtotal 28.272 $345,516.00

7/01/2024 ttirouqh 06/30/2025 Service Units
Total 0 of Units of Total Anrount of

Service Funding being
. anticipated to be Rate per Requested for each

Adult In-Home Care .UnR Type delivered. Servfca Service

Tide XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 16 775 $16.00 S268.400.00

Tide IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 3.257 $16.00 $52,112.00
Tide IIIB Home health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.508 $16.56 $25,002.64
Trtte IIIB Nursino 1/2 Hour 0 • $64.50 $0.00

Subtotal " . 21.540 $345,514.64

7/01/2025 throuQti 06/30/2026 Service Units

Total 0 of Units of Total Amount of

.. Service Monthly Furtdlng beirrg
anticipated to be Rate per Requested for each

In Home Services Unit Type delivered. Service Servtca

Tide XX In Home Seivtces- 1/2 Hour 16.775 $16.00 $268,400.00

Tide IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 3257 $16.00 $52 11200

Ttde IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1.508 $16.56 $25,002.64
Tide IIIB Nursinq 1/2 Hour - 0 $64.50 $0.00

Sutrtotal 21 540 $345,514.64

Overall Total 99.624 S1.382.061.28

Wiypoint
RFA-2D2>eCAS^HOMD44)7-M)3

E>Mbn C-3. Amerafenent *2. Rate Sheet

ContfBCtof mttlete

Mr

Oetc

4/29/2024
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Leri A. Weiver

iBtc'riB Coanl^onfr

Mtlbn A. Hardy
bircttor

0 JUN14'23 pH 1'31

STATE PF NEW HAMPSHrRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES^—

DiViSlON OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603<37i:5034 J-806^-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271<SI64 TDD Access: I-800-73S-2964 www.dhh>.nh:gov

Juhe.9, 2023

His Excettency. Govemor ChflstppherT. Sununu
and the.HonorabIa Council

Stdte House

Cdncord. New Hampshire 03301

.  REQUESTED ACTION /
t

Authorize the Diapartmeht of Health and Human Services, Division of Long term Supfwi^
and Sendees, to enter.into anriendmehts to existing contracts with,the Contractors (listed beiow'to
Increase'funding to cprihnue tn-Home Cere, Home Health Aide, and Nursing services by
increasing the total prica iimltatipri by^$246,937:30 from $12,091,794.44 to ,$12,332,731.74 with
ho chaise,to the cwnlra^ com dates of June 30. 2024, effective July 1. 2023, upon
Governor and Council approval. 87.55% Federal Fundis. 12^45% General Funds.

Contractor

Nome*

Vendor

Code
Area Served Current

Amdunt
Increase

(Decrease)
Revt^
/Vnount

G&C

Approval

Andrqscoggln
V^jley Home:
Owe Services

(Berlih;;.NH)'
157347 Cods County $1,237,380.44 $21,809.30 ■ $1;259.T89.74

0;
6/29/22;
item #47

Area

HorneCare

Family-
Services. Inc.

(Portsmouth.
NH)

166931 Rockingham,
Cwrity

$2,621,184 $15,000 $2,636,184
0:

6/29/22,
"Iterh #47

Easter Seals

New

Hampshire,
inc.

(Manchester,
NH)

177204

.Hil|sborough
(Manchester,-
:;Milfordi
Nashua) and

;Strafford
.Counties

$1,537,704 ,$30,000

i

$1,567,704
0:

6/29/22,
item #47

Lakes Region
Community

: Services
•Cpuncil

(Laconia, NH)

177251

Belknap,
G'raftoh and
Suiiivan
;C6urities

$1,319,858 $45,000 $1,364,856

-

0.

6/29/22,
item.#47
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His Excedency, Governor Christi^herT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Visiting Nurse~
Home Care &'
Hospice of
Carroll County

(North
Conway, NH)

" • •

225191 Carrol)

County
$295,600 $15,000 ^ $310,600

0:

6/29/22.
item #47

VNA at HCS.
Inc.

' (Keene, NH)
177274 Cheshire

County
$1,462,584 $15,000 $1,477,584

0:
6/29/22.
Item #47

Waypoint

(Manchester.
NH)

177166.

Hillsborough
and

Merrimack

Counties

$2,672,934 $30,000 $2,902,934
0:

6/29/22,
Item #47

Cornerstone

VNA

(Rochester.
NH)

230881 Strafford

County
$276,624 ■ $7,000 $283,624

0:

10/19/22.
item #21

Lake Sunapee
Community
Health

Services

(New London,
NH)

174248 Sullivan

County
$171,032 $33,500 $204,532

0:

10/19/22,
item #21

North Country
Home Health

& Hospice
Agency, Inc.

(Littleton, NH)

154643 Grafton

County

• ̂

$164,976 $13,298 $176,272
1

0;

10/19/22.
'itern#21

The Visiting
Nurse

Association of

Franklin

(Franklin, NH)

1M177 .
Belknap and
Merrimack

Counties
$131,920 $15,332 ^ $147,252

0:

10/19/22;
item #21

Total: $12,091,794.44 $240,937.30 $12,332,731.74

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2024,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the

.authority to adjust budget line'items within the price lirriitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding to support the continuation of
In-Home Care. Home Health Aide,; and Nursing services statewide, as well as to provide
additional Title III American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to support post-pandemic
prograrnmatic needs to provide these supportive services to our most vulnerable populations.
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His Excailaficy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

"  Approximately 3,320 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2024.

These in-home services provide assistance with managing individual personal care needs,
as well as monitdring health and safety needs of individuals. The additional Title III ARPA funding
will maintain the health and safety of Individuals by providing health and safety products that the
individual can use; as well as by providing additional supports for the staff that are providing the
in*home supports and services. The other additional funding will support:

•  In-Home Care services: Title III and Title XX programs. Including household
maintenance and housekeeping; and meal planning and preparation.

" • Home Health Aide services: Assistance with managing individual personal care
needs, including bathing and grooming.

•  Nursing services: ' Providing nursing services, conducting medical needs
evaluations, and developing , a nursing care plan to ..support .Individuals in their
homes. Nursing services include general licensed practical nurse or registered

u  nurse duties, including assistance with preparing and administering medications,
providing health evaluations, and developing health and wellness plans.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing quarterly reports sutjmitted by the
Contractors.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request the Department
will be unable to provide additional funding to support older, isolated, and frail adults, age 60 and
older, and adults between the ages of 18 and 59 who have a chronic illness or disability, which
may lead to a lack of proper care for this population.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6;
and Medicaid Enhanced FMAP-ARP. .

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will riot be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

LoiiigS^eaver
InteHKijObmmissioner

ThcDvparlnitniof HeaUhand Human Strvlccs'Miuion is to Join communiUnond familits
in providing opporlunittet for dliztne to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-46-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS (50% Fed 50% Gen)

AV Home Caro

Fiscal Year ' Class/Object . Class Tlile Job Numtier
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amoun
Budget

.  2023 540-500382 SS Conlracis iTiultiple $ -  103.890.22 $ $ 103,690.22
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 103.890.22 $ $ 103,890.22

Subtota ^ * •
$ 207,780.44 $ S 207,780.44

Area HomeCaro

)
v;

Fiscal Year Class/Object ' Class Title Job Nunrber
Current Modlfled

Budget'
increased

(Decreased) Amoun
Budget ''

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 70.584.00 $ $ 70.584.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 70,584.00 $  '• $ 70,584.00

- Subtota $ 141,168.00 $  ,• $ 141,168.00

Cornerstone v 1

Fiscal Year Class/Object

•t

Class Title Job Number
Current ModtHed

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 ■ 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 6,272.00 $ S 6,272.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 6,272.00 $ $ - ■ 6.272.00

Subtotal $ .12,544.00 S $ 12,544.00

Easter Seals

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount

(

Budget

2023 54D-500382 SS Contracts multiple $' 66,516,00 $ $ 66,516.00
2024 540-500382 • SS Contracts multiple $ 66,516.00 S $ 66.516.00

Subtotal ( 133,032.00 V- $ • $ 133.032.00

Franklin VNA

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modiried

Budget'
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple S 7.200.00 S  T $• ' 7,200.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple s 7,200.00 $ $ 7,200.00

Subtotal % 14,400.00 $ $ 14,400.00

Lakes Region

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title '* Job Number
Current Modified

.  Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382" SS Contracts mutilple $ 90,456.00 $ % 90,456.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 90,456.00 I S 90,456.00
-r Subtotal T. $ 180,912.00 % s 180,912.00

Lake Sunapee . ,

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Numt>er
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple" $ 33,384.00 $ S 33,384.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 33,384.00 $ $ 33.384.00

Subtotal -•1, $ 66,768.00 % $ 66,768.00

North Country HHH

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
increased

;Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ 76,532.00 .  $ ,'T $ 76,532,00
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2024 540-500382 33 Contracts multiple S 76.532.00 S $ 76.532.00
•

3ubtotal $ 153,064.00 s $ 153,064.00

.  ;; Visiting Nurse HCH * v , *-•

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382, 33 Contracts mulltple S 39.800.00 $ S 39,800.00

2024 540-500382 1 33 Contracts multiple S . 39.600.00 $ $ 39.800,00

/  Subtotal $■ 79,600.00 $ $ 79,600.00

VNAatHCS "

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 33 Contracts multiple S 16.548.00 $ $ 16.548.00
2024 540-500382 53 Contracts multiple S 16,548.00 $ $ 16,548.00

Subtotal $ 33,096.00 $ $ 33.096.00

Wa^olnt

Fiscal Year Class/Obied Class Title Job Number
Curreni Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 " SS Contracts multiple S •239.515.00 $ $ 239,515.00
2024 540-500382 33 Contracts multiple S 239.515,00 $ S 239.515.00

Subtotal s ■479.030.00 $ $ 479,030.00
Total 7872 $ 1,501,394.44 $ $ 1,501.394.44

05-95-48-4ai010-925S HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY -
GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT (60% Fed 40% Gen)

ADULT SERVICES,

AV Home Care •

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current ModiHed

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 33 Contracts '  48130098 S 514.800.00 5 $ 514,800.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 514.600.00 $ $ 514.800.00

'  Subtotal % 1,029,600.00 $ $ 1.029,600.00

Area HomeCare

Fiscal Year Class/Objecl
)

Class Title. Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 1,240,008.00 $  - $ 1,240,008.00
2024 540-500382 33 Contracts ) 48130098 S 1,240.008.00 S  .J $ 1,240.008.00

Subtotal $ 2,480,016.00 $ $ 2,460,016.00

Cornerstone ;

Fiscal Year Class/Objecl Class Title Job Number
Curreni Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amouni
Budget

2023 540-500382 33 Contracts 48130098 $ 128.040.00 S $ 128,040.00
2024 540-500382 33 Contracts 48130098 $ 126,040.00 s S 128,040.00

Subtotal % - 256,080.00 $ $ 256,080.00

Easter Seals

Fiscal Year Class/Objecl Class Title. Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amouni Budget

2023 540-500382 33 Contracts 48130098 S 702,336.00 S S 702,336,00
2024 540-500382 "SS Contracts 48130098 S 702,336.00 S ■ S 702,336.00

V Subtotal $ '1,404,672.00 $ % 1.404,672.00

-
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Franklin VNA

•

Fiscal Year Class/Obiect Class Title Job Number
Curreni ModiRed

Budget

Inaess^ •

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 50.760.00 $  r.:-> $ 50.760,00

. 2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 50.760,00 $  .Tt S 50.760.00

'' Subtotal i 101,520.00 $ $ 101,520.00

Lakes Region
*.

Fiscal Year Cl8ssA;>bjeci Class Tiile Job Number'
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 46130098 $ 569.472.00 $  ■ S 569.472.00

2024 .  540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 569.472.00 $ $ 569.472.00

Subtotal , $ 1,138,944.00 $ $ 1,138,944.00

Lake Sunapoe.,,

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Deaeased) Amount
Budget*'

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 48.132:00 $ $ 48.132.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts •48130098 $ 48,132,00 $  i $ 48,132.00

2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  ::-i s  - S  ■:
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ ;  $'■• - i $

-2027 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ S  r $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $ $ $  >

'  2029 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  .r $  ; $ .

Subtotal 1 $ 96,264.00 $ $ 96,264.00

North Country HHH

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023' 540r500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ T.956.00 $ $ 1,956.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 S 1.956.00 S ■$ 1,956.00
2025 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  . $  " $
2026 540-500382 SS Contracts .  multiple $ $ $  .'•>
2027 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple • $ $ $
2028 540-500382 SS Coritracts multiple $ $  -• . $
2029 540-500382 • SS Contracts multiple $ $  .i $

Subtotal $ 3,912.00 $ $ 3,912.00

Visiting Nurse HCH

■  Fiscal Year Class/bbjecl Class Tide Job Number
Current Modified '

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget .

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130098 $ 108,000.00 $  ; S 108.000.00
2024 ,540-500382 SS Contracts 46130098 $ 108.000.00 S  - $ 108,000.00

Subtotal $ 216.000.00 $ $ 216,000.00

VNAat-HCS

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Tlile Job Number
Curreni Modified

Budget
-  Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

- 2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130096 $ 714,744.00 $  - v; S 714,744.00
2024 540-500382 ' SS Contracts 46130098 $ 714,744.00 $ 714.744.00

Subtotal :-i- $ 1,429,486.00 ■$ $ 1.429.488.00

Waypoint

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
.Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget
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2023 540-500382 SS Contracts '* 48130098 $  1.196,952,00 $  .-i $ . 1,196.952.00

2024 540-500382 83 Contracts 48130098 S  1,196,952.00 $ $  1,196,952.00

Subtotal $  2,393.904.00 $ $  2.393.904.00

Total 9255 $  10,550,400.00.  $ i-l $  10.550,400.00

05.95^8:481010.2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.

GRANTS TO LOCALS. GENERAL FUND.MATCH.FOR ARPA (85% Fed 15% Gen)

AV Home Care

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Tiiie Job Number '
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 . 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $  • $

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 s $  15.000.00 S  15.000.00

Subtotal $ S  15,000.00 $  15,000.00

Area HomeCare

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Tille Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 .  $ ■ 'Y $  ;>

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $  15,000.00 $  15.000.00

Subtotal $ $  15,000.00 $  15,000.00

Cornerstone , m

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title o- Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

■  2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  8.000.00 $  • r: $ 8,000.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $  .7,000.00 $  7.000.00

Subtotal $  8,000.00 $  7.000.00 $  15,000.00

Easter Seals

Fiscal Year Ci'ass/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Budget

>•

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 ■■ $ $ ,  $

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  . Y $  30.000.00 $  30,000.00

Subtotal s $  30,000.00 $  30,000.00

Franklin VNA

Fiscal Year Class/Object .Class Title Job Number
Current ModlHed

Budget

Increased

(Deaeased) Amount
Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  16.000.00 $ $  16,000.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $  14;000.00 $  14,000.00

, Subtotal $  16,000.00 $  14,000.00 S  30,000.00

...Lakes Region Y

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Tille Job Number
Current Modified

■Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 .  $ $

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  Y $  45.000.00 $  '45.000.00
^  Subtotal $ $  45,000.00 : % 45.000.00

4}

Lake Sunapee

Fiscal Year • Class/Ot^ecl Class Tille Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) ^ount Budget

2023 540-500382 ^ SS Contracts 48130619 $  8.000.00 $ $.v-, 8,000.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 i  $ $  7,000.00 $  . 7,000.00
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Sublotal 8,000.00 (■ 7,000.00 $ 15.000.00l

North Country HHH

Fiscal Year

'  I

Class/Objeci Class Tille Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $  8,000.00 S $  8,000.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ :% 7,000.00 $  7.000.00

•  Subtotal " S  8,000.00 $  7,000.00 . S 15,000.00

...Visiting Nurse HCH

Fiscal Year Class/Ot)ject Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

-  Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 ■ $ ■ $ S  -
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619. $  .. S  15,000.00 $  15.000.00

• 1 , Subtotal s .$ 15,000.00 %  15,000.00

VNAatHCS

Fiscal Year Class/Ol^cl Class Title; Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 $ $ $

;? 2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130619 • $ $  15,000.00 $  15,000.00
• Subtotal $ $- 15,000.00 $  15.000.00

, Waypoint

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budge!
Increased

(Deaeased) Amount Budget

.2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 48130819 $ $ $  i

2024 540-500382 , SS Contracts 48130619 $  >- $  30.000.00 $  30,000.00
Subtotal •

i $  30,000.00 ,$ 30,000.00
V Total 2638 $  40.000.00 5  200,000.00 $  240,000.00

(
05-95-93-930010-2606 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS:

HCBS-ENHANCED FMAP-ARP (100% Fed)

AV Home Care

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ $
2024 540-500362 SS Contracts 93009020 S $  6,809.30 $  6,809.30

;•) • Subtotal S $  6,609.30 $  6,809.30

Franklin VNA

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $  ;i .  $ ■ c
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 . •$ $  1,332.00 $  1,332.00

Subtotal • $  1,332.00 $  1,332.00

Lake Sunapoo

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Tille Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts • 93009020 $  , $ $

2024 540-500382, SS Contracts .  93009020 $ S  .26,500.00 $  26,500.00
Sublotal .• • :  $ $ . 26,500.00 $  26.500.00
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North Country HHH

Fiscal Year Class/Objecl Class Title Job Number
Curreni ModiHed

Budget
Increased

(Decrea^^) Amount Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ $ $  ■;
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts 93009020 $ : $ 6.296.00 $  6,296.00

Subtotal S  6,296.00 S  6,296.00
Total 2606 % S  40,937.30 $  40,937.30

Grand Total $  12,091,794.44 $  240,937.30 J  12,332,731.74
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C43365O-BgFA-4C97-A064*D303CDOB025E

,  State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Home Health Services contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the Contractor").

y\/HEREAS. pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2022 (Item #47). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified: and

■^.WHEREAS, pursuant to Forrn P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17. the Contract.may be amended
"upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued .delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arid conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to read:

05-95-48-4810.10-7872
•  05-95-48r481010-9255

05-95-48-481010-2638

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Lirfiitation, to read:
$2,902,934 * :

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 1, to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by;

1.1. 58.61% Federal fundsT'

1.1.1.. 8.25% Older Americans Act Title lll-B. as awarded on September 8,2022
and February 13, 2023. by the Administration fpr Community Living, Title
NIB, Supportive Services. CFDA 93.044, FAIN 2201NHOASS'. and
231NHOASS.

,  1.1.2. 49.48% Sociai Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1, 2021, by
the Social Services Block'Grant. CFDA 93.667, FAIN 210iNH'soSR. '

■  1.1.3. 0.88% Older Am^ericans Act Title IIIB-ARP, as awarded on May 3, 2021,
by the Administration for Community Living. Title IIIB-ARP. Supportive
Services, CFDA 93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6.

1.2. 41.39% General funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3 through Subsection 3.1, to read:
- 3. Reimbursement shall be made at a per uriit rate in accordance with Exhibit C-1 Rate Sheet

through "C-2 Rate Sheet.
3.1. Payment for COVID-19 discretionary funding shall be on a cost-reimbursement basis

for actual expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In
accordance with the approved line items,' as specified in Exhibits C-3, Amendment
#1, SFY 2024 Budget through C-4. Amendment #1 SFY 2024 Budget.

-  5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, to read:

4.6. Is assigned an- electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to dhhs.beasinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov .or mailed to: ■08

Waypoint ; A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

RFA-2023-BEAS-06.HOMEH-07-A01 'page1of4 "■ '
wt
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Program Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street !

Concord, NH 03301

6. Add Exhibit C-3. Amendment #1, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit 0-4, Amendment #1, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Waypolnt

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor initials

Date
.6/6/2023 • ■
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023; upon Governor and Council approval.

r  ' ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written'below.

State of New Hampshire
■  Department of Health and Human Services

6/9/2023

Date

"^OocwSlgf^ bjr;

• Mn'xil It

Hardy

Title: Director, DLTSS

6/6/2023

Date

Waypoint
~OocuSlgn«d by:

' - acMo<j»4py<p»ui> i ^
Name: ®or}a'Alvarez de Toledo

Title, president'and CEO^

V\/aypoinl

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF3521O3E865

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 9C43365O-BgFA-4C97-A064-D303CODB025E

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlgMd by:

6/9/2023 q

Date Name: cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Waypoint A-S-1.2

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH^7-A01 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibll.C-3, Amehdmonl U^, SFY.2024 Budget R^A-2O23*eEA5H}&-HOMEH-67;A01

I'V

Haw HampsWn Oapsnnwn or Haafoi and Human S«rvlc*»

Wsypetii (Htiiborounh Oourty)Contractor Nama:

1

K

1
|a

1

BudoatPartod SFY2t»^

'  m«r*ct Cost Rata (R apdkaM) 0.00%

tf

^  Una ttam Program Cost • Fundad by DHHS

i.Sataiv^aa»

SO

2. FrinoeBeneas

'  . SO

• ••

3. CcnsijRants
'  _ " SO

.  :V'

4. Equipment
Mrecl cost rate carvtol be sppfled to cqilptneRl costs per 2 CFR
300. t end ADoerxXx IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

S./a> SuooOes • Educattonsd
$0

Supplies • Lob

so

5.1c) SuDoaes - Pharmacv

,  so

S.(d> siiDDils • MedKal

so

5.(0) Siiocites Office ; •

so

6. Travel

so

.* ■ . ■

7. iSoftwRte

$0

i

6. (a) Ottw • Mahcebnoi Comtnunlcallorts
SO

8. ni) Otri^ • Educotion iria fraintno

>  .

r- "• - M

8. to Oiner • O her rsDcdtv betowO

dher Rdcnticn sboends & Sonus*
S15.000

Othw rolease''5DedM

SO

9. SubredDlcfti Contmds
I  •

Total Dtract Costs S15.000

Total tndlract Costs .

•  . . :3. TOTAl St#,000

'  •;

:MT

Pat. 6/6/2023
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment «1. SPY 2024 Budget RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07-A01

New Hamoshtrt D«Mnn>«nt of Hoofth end Htanon Sorvtcoo'
* •

WeypofTi (Merrinac* County}Contrwtor Homo

BtMloot RoquMi fw: Homt H—Vt SwvicM

Budooi Podod SFY 2024

Indboa Cett Riio (if •ppllcoblo) 0.00%

Lino Horn Prograra Cost • Fiaxled by OHHS

I.SotMvnWMm
SO

2. Frinoo BonoTits

H

3. Conovfaiits
SO

4. EquipmoRl-'bidirad cost rtb cvuwt bo apfjCad
to oqiipmonl ccBts per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV
to2CFRJ00.

SO

S.la) 'SuDoia - Educational
SO

5;R>) SivdCos•Lab'

SO

s!fc) SupoCn • Phamacv
so

5.ld) Supplios • Modicsl
so

5.(oV Supoies Offico
.so

6. Travel

7. Softwaio'
.  • so

S.'lal Olber - MsAalinof CommunieBtiofts
so

8. (b) Olbor • Educatlwi and Traniiq
so

5. (c) Other • Other (specifv bebw)
,

Other: Retention Stipend) & Bonus'

V

S1S.OOO

Other loleasfl'tDedM

•  . 'so

9. Sut>recipien1 Cofttracb •  so

Total Oiriict Coels ' •
$15,000

'  Totil Indlreci Costs

•

T07AL S15.000

;M
'D.f6/6/2023
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Lorf A. SbiblDtne

Coonissioacr

Mtllssf A. Hardy
Director

JUN15'22pii 3^00 RGVO

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHCRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmSION OF LONG TERM SUPWRTS AND SERViCES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27J-5034 1-SOO-8S2.3345 Eat. 5034

Fat: 603-27I-S166 TDD Access: 1-800.735.2964

www.dhbs.ah.cov

June 8, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Temi Supports
and Services, to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$11,347,242.44 for the provision of home health services, with the option to renew for up to four
(4) additional years, effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through June 30, 2024. 58.8% Federal Funds. 41.2% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Androscoggin Valley Home
Care Services

(Berlin. NH)

157347 Coos County
$1,237,380.44

Area HomeCare Family
Services, Inc.

(Portsmouth. NH)

166931 Rockingham
County

.1

$2,621,184

Easter Seals New

Hampshire. Inc.

(Manchester, NH)

177204

Hillsborough
(Manchester.

Mitford, Nashua)
and Strafford

Counties

$1,537,704

Lakes Region Community
Services Council

(Laconta, NH) 177251
Belknap, Grafton
and Sullivan

Counties

$1,319,856

Visiting Nurse Home Care
& Hospice of Carroll County

(North Conway, NH)

225191 Carroll County $295,600

VNA at HCS, Inc.

(Keene. NH)
177274 Cheshire County $1,462,584

• Waypoint

(Manchester, NH)
177166

Hillsborough and
Merrimack

Counties
$2,672,934

Total: $11,347,242.44
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Funds are available in the foflovying accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating txjdget. with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide statewide In Home Care Services, Horr>e Health
Aide Services, and/or Nursing Services to support older, isolated and frail adults, age 60 and
older, to live as independently as possible, safely, and with dignity, and to adults betvyeen the
ages of 18 and 59 who have a chronic illness or disability.

Approximately 6,226 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

In-Home Care sen/ices, through Title III and Title XX programs Include, but are not limited
to, household maintenance and housekeeping; and meal planning and preparation.

In-Home Health Aide Services provide assistance with managing individual personal care
needs, including bathing and grooming.

In-Home Nursing Services incorporate providing nursing services, conducting medical
needs evaluations and developing a nursing care plan to support Individuals in .their homes.
Nursing Services include general licensed practical nurse or registered nurse duties including, but
not limited to assistance with preparing and administering medications, providing health
evaluations and developing health and wellness plans.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the quarterly reports submitted by the
Contractors.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Aprpllcations (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from March 22,
2022 through April 26, 2022. The Department received 11 responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Subsection 1.2.,
of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreemerits for up to four
(4), additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of this parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, older, isolated and frail adults,
age 60 and older, and adults between the ages of 18 and 59 who have a chronic illness or
disability will not receive the appropriate level of care according to their needs; leaving them at
risk of serious injury, Illness or possibly death.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.044, FAIN #2201NHOASS;
Assistance Listing Number #93.667, FAIN #2101NHSOSR.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

ctfully submitted,

Lol^ Shibinette
Con^issicner
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Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

ProJoctlD# >RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH

Pro}6CtTitlo ̂ Homo Health Sorvicos

Maximum

Points

Available

Androscoggin
Valley (AV)
Home Care

Area

HomeCare

& Family
Services.

Inc

Easterseals •

Hinsborouflh
Easterseals -

Strafford

Home

Heallhcare.
Hospice
and

Community
Services

Lakes

Region
Community
Services-

Belknap

Lakes

Region
Community
Services •

Grafton

Lakes

Region
Comniurxly

Services -

Sullivan

Visitirtg Nurse
Home Care &

Hospice

Waypoini-

HilJsborouqh

Waypoinl-

Merrimacfc
Technical I

ExperienceQ1 30 26 25 26 26 29 21 21 21 23 30 30

Capadty 02 2S 24 20 . 21 21 23 17 17 17 17 25 25

Ability 03 35 33 34 31 31 22 - 15 15 15 10 34 34

Staffing 04 10 8 10 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 10 10

TOTAL POINTS 100' - 91 89 87 87 83 62 62 62 58 99 99

Roviewor-Name

^ Shawn Martin

2

j<athleen^ra^_

^ Thorn O'Connor

Alyssa Votsine

'Title

Finance Admintstratof

Bureau of FamSy Centered

Support Staff

BEAS Program Adminlstrato

Program Planning &
'Review Specialist
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Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,890.22

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  103,890.22

Subtotal $  207,780.44

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title . Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple .$ 514,800.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  514,800.00

Subtotal $  1,029,600.00

Grand Total $  1,237,380.44



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

Area HomeCare Family Services, Inc.

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object

c

Class Title Job Number Budget .

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  70.584.00
2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  70.584.00

Subtotal $  141,168.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  1,240,008.00
2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  1,240,008.00

Subtotal $ 2,480,016.00

Grand Total $ 2,621,184.00



Docusign Envelope ID; 6BC88B5B-40EO-4818-991A-EF352103E865

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO
LOCALS. ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  66,516.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  66,516.00

Subtotal $  133,032.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  702,336.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  702,336.00

Subtotal $ 1,404,672.00

Grand Total $ 1,537.704.00



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

/  Lakes Region Community Services Council

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HNS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, AOMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object - Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  90.456.00

2024. 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  90.456.00

Subtotal $  180,912.00

05-95-48.481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  569.472.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  569,472.00

Subtotal $  1,138,944.00

Grand Total $  1,319,856.00



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

Visiting Nurse Home Care Hospice of Carroll County

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  39.800.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  39,800.00

Subtotal $  79,600.00

05^95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  108,000.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  108,000.00

Subtotal $  216,000.00

Grand Total $  295,600.00



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

VNAatHCS, Inc.

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  16,548.00

2024 540-500382 SS Contracts multiple $  16,548.00

Subtotal $  33,096.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  714.744.00

2024 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  714.744.00

Subtotal $ 1,429,488.00

Grand Total $ 1,462,584.00



Docusign Envelope ID; 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

Waypoint

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,515.00

2024 .540-500382 88 Contracts multiple $  239,515.00

8ubtotal $  479,030.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO

LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2023 543-500385 Adult In.Home Care multiple $  1.196,952.00

2024 _ 543-500385 Adult In Home Care multiple $  1.196,952.00

Subtotal $ 2,393,904.00

Grand Total $ 2,872,934.00
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Subject: Home Health Services (RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:'

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

WajTJoint

1.4 Contractor Address

464 Chestnut Street

Manchester, NH 03105

1.5 Contractor. Phone

Number

603-518-4300

1.6 Account Number

05-95-48-481010-7872;

05-95-48-481010-9255

1.7 Completion Dale

6/30/2024

1.8 Price Limitation

S2.872.934

1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director '

1.10 State AgencyTelephoncNumber

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
j  OocvSltfnfd bjr:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory'

Borja Alvarez de Toledo president and CEO

1. f3~'^l^'?Lgcncy Signature .
OocvSlpiMd by:

[ t/unsftiu- 6/^5^5022

1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signator>'
/•

Christine santaniello Associate Commissioner

1.15 'Appro^'by'lhc N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel f//"op;?//cr76/e^

By: Director, On;
r. •
/

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and E.\ccuiion) (ifapplicable)
•  O»eojlfl«*dby:

By: On: 6/8/2022

I.I7 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (i/applicable)

G&C Item number: ^ G&C Meeting Date: •

Page 1 of4
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Date 6/8/2022
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHlBfT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ( "Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such, approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIjMITATION/

payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the'State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State rescrx'es the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7.c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the-Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal c.xcculive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who i.s materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall surx'ive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTiccr's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term-or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State.may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification oftinie, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, efTeclive two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set oft against any other obligations the State may
owe to "the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8i3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard lb that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shal I
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at Its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not latcrlhan fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA7ACCESS/CONnDENTiALITV/

preservation.

I O.I As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91'A or other e.xlsting law. Disclosure of data requires

- prior written approval of the Stale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided, to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afTiliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or(b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Ser\'iccs shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party;

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Conlractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
ofTiccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its ofTiccrs or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or orhis^lenoof the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby reserved 'to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire'by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to" the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her succcs.sor, certificatc{s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificalefs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Cotnpensalion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible . for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services,under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed by the
panics hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
tvaiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thi.s Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any pany.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. conflicting terms. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS, The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Inihc event any oflhcprovisionsoflhis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed ah original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Health Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2022 ("Effective Date").

/

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding,
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3.' Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with.
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as-necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

irAX -
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide Home Health Services in this Agreement to
Individuals who are not already receiving the same or similar services funded
through other programs. Other programs may include, but are not limited to:

1.1.1. New Hampshire's Medicaid State Plan.

1.1.2. Any of the Home and Community Based Care Waivers administered
by the Department.

1.1.3. The Medicare Program.

1.1.4. Services provided through the Veterans Administration.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide and administer the services in this Agreement in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws and rules, and policies and
regulations adopted by the Department currently in effect, and as they may be
adopted or amended during the term of the Agreement, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.1. Title III of the Older Americans Act of 1965 as amended through P.L.
114-144, Enacted April 19, 2016.

1.2.2. New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 502, The Older American
Act Services: Title II IB- Supportive Servlces, (from herein after referred
to as NH Administrative Rule He-E 502).

1.2.3. Title XX of the United States, Social Services Block Grant (SSBG).

1.2.4. New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 501, The Social Services
Block Grant (Title XX) (herein after referred to as NH Administrative
Rule He-E 501).

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in Hillsborough and
Merrimack Counties.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.5. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall mean
Monday through Friday from 8 am to 4 pm.

1.6. Adult In-Home Care/ln-home Care Services

1.6.1. The Contractor shall provide In Home Care Services through the Title
III and Title XX programs to eligible individuals, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.6.1.1. Services by individuals employed and supervised by a
home health care provider licensed in accordance fWh
RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P SOST^o^ne

RFA.2023.BEAS-O6-HOMEH.O7 B-2.0 Contraclor InJiials

■67577U72
Waypolnl Page 1 of 15 Dale



Docusign Envelope ID; 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

OocuSign Envelope ID: 21B1AB03^579-41E&-92F&-2EA4079984C6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Health Services

EXHIBIT B

Health Care Providers or NH Administrative Rule He-P

822, Home Care Service Provider Agencies, as
applicable.

1.6.1.2. Core household maintenance tasks to support the safety
and well-being of individuals in their homes as defined in
NH Administrative Rule He-E 501, The Social Services

Block Grant (Title XX) and NH Administrative Rule He-E
502, Older Americans Act Services: Title NIB - Supportive
Services, Title IIIC1 and C2 - Nutrition Program Policies,
And Title HID - Disease-Prevention And Health Promotion

Services

1.6.1.3. Light housekeeping tasks.

1.6.1.4. Evaluating client safety and well-being and making
referrals to other services when indicated.

1-.7. Home Health Aide Services r

1.7.1. The Contractor shall be a home health care provider licensed in
accordance with RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P 809 in

order to provide home health aide services.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall provide Home Health Aide Level of Care Services
through the Title III to eligible individuals as outlined in NH
Administrative Rule He-E 502, which include, but are not limited to:

1.7.2.1. Receiving referrals from an individual's health care
provider{s).

1.7.2.2. Performing evaluations of individuals' medical needs.

1.7.2.3. Developing service plans and incorporating this
information into the individuals' person-centered plans of
care.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall provide the following home health aide services
based on the individual's need:

1.7.3.1. Services allowed within the Licensed Nursing Assistant
(LNA) scope of practice, pursuant to NH Administrative
Rule Nur 700; and

1.7.3.2. Personal care services, as described in NH Administrative

Rule He-E 801.22(b), when the individual's person-
centered plan contains documentation that his or her
functional or medical condition necessitates the

performance of such tasks by an LNA and not an
unlicensed provider.

y——09
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1.7.4. The Contractor shall coordinate home health aide services to ensure

no duplication of services when the individual Is also receiving home
delivered meals, other Title III services, or services at an adult medical
day program, in an-assisted living facility, pr in an adult family care
home.

1.8. Nursing Services

1.8.1. The Contractor shall provide nursing services through Title III to
eligible individuals, which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Providing nursing services in an individual's home by a
home health care provider licensed in accordance with
RSA 151:2 and NH Administrative Rule He-P 809.

1.8.1.2. Providing the services by individuals who are licensed
practical nurse (LPN) or registered nurse (RN) working
within the scope of services allowed under the NH Nurse
Practice Act, RSA 326-B.

1.8.2. The Contractor shall provide the following nursing services based on
the individual's need: ^

1.8.2.1. Receiving referrals from an individual's health care
provider(s).

1.8.2.2. Performing an evaluation of the individual's medical
needs.

1.8.2.3. Developing a nursing care plan and incorporating this
information into the individual's person-centered plan.

1.8.2.4. Providing nursing services in accordance with the
individual's person-centered plan as described in NH
Administrative Rule He-E 502 and as ordered by his.or her
primary care physician.

1.8.2.5. Coordinating nursing services to ensure that there is no
duplicate provision of services.

1.8.2.6. Ensuring that LPN and registered nursing services are not
covered when, provided for the purpose of nursing

• oversight of authorized LNA services.

1.9. Service Administration

1.9.1. Access to Services

1.9.1.1. The Contractor shall assist individuals in accessing the
services in this Agreement by:
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1.9.1.1.1. Accepting applications for services directly
from an individual and in accordance with

'  . Section 1.9.2., below; and

1.9.1.1.2. Accepting referrals of individuals from the
Department's Adult Protection Program.

1.9.2. Client Request and Application for Services

1.9.2.1. The Contractor shall complete an intake and application
for services in accordance with the requirerrients with NH
Administrative Rule He-E 501, The Social Services Block
Grant (Title XX) and. NH Administrative Rule He-E 502,
Older Americans Act Services: Title IMS - Supportive
Services, Title IIICl and C2 - Nutrition Program Policies.
And Title MID - Disease Prevention And Health Promotion

Services and:

1.9.2.1.1. Complete Form 3000 Application provided
by the Department for Title XX In Home Care
Services.

1.9.2.1.2. Complete Form 3000 Application provided
by the Department; or^mplete a Contractor
owned form that includes the same

information as the Form 3000 Application for
Title 111 In Home Care Services, In Home
Health Aide Level of Care Services, and In
Home Nursing Level of Care Services.

1.9.3. Client Eligibility Requirements for Services

1.9.3.1. The Contractor shall complete an assessment for eligibility
in accordance with the New Hampshire Administrative
Rules He-E. 501 and He-E 502.

1.9.3.2. The Contractor shall determine whether a client, except for
those clients referred by the Department's Adult Protection
Program in Section 1.9.7.2., is eligible for services in this
Agreement using the information collected during the
assessment and in accordance with the requirements in
the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2. ■

1.9.3.3. The Contractor shall provide notice of eligibility or non-
eligibility to clients and provide services to clients for the
eligibility period in accordance with the laws and rules
listed in Section 1.2.
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1.9.3.4. The Contractor shall re-determine whether a client is

.  eligible to receive services in accordance with the
requirements in the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2.

1.9.3.5. The Contractor may terminate services to a client In
accordance with the laws and rules listed in Section 1.2.

1.9.3.6. The Contractor shall obtain a service authorization for In

Home Care Services, In Home Health Aide Level of Care
Services only, from the Department once the client has
been determined or re-detenmlned eligible to receive
services by submitting a completed Form 3502 "Contract
Service Authorization - New Authorization" to the

Department.

1.9.4. Client Assessments and Service Plans

1.9.4.1. The Contractor shall develop, with Input from each
individual and/or his/her authorized representative, a
person-centered plan to guide the provision of services In
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-
E 501 and He-E 502.

1.9.4.2. The Contractor shall monitor and adjust service plans to
meet the Individual's needs in accordance with New

Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502.

1.9.4.3. The Contractor shall provide services to clients according
to the Individuals' adult protective service plan determined
by the Department's Adult Protection Program to prevent
or ameliorate the circumstances that contribute to the

individual's risk of neglect, abuse, and exploitation.

1.9.4.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department, within 30
days of The Agreement effective date, its protocols and

- practices to ensure that individuals who exhibit
problematic behavior due to mental health, or
developmental Issues or criminal histories receive
services.

1.9.5. Person Centered Provision of Services

1.9.5.1. The Contractor shall incorporate the following Guiding
Principles for Person-Centered Planning Philosophy into
all services provided under this Agreement:

1.9.5.1.1. Individuals and families are invited,
welcomed, and supported as full participants
In service planning and declslon-makinc

1.
r-
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1.9.5.1.2. Individual's wishes, values, and beliefs are
considered and respected. .

1.9.5.1.3. Individuals are listened to; needs and
concems are addressed.

^ 1.9.5.1.4. , individuals receive the information they need
to make informed decisions.

1.9.5.1.5. Individual's preferences drive the planning
process, though the decision making
process may need to be accelerated to
respond to emergencies. '

1.9.5.1.6. individual's services are designed,
scheduled, and delivered to best meet the
needs and preferences of said individual.

1.9.5.1.7. Individual's rights are affirmed and
protected.

1.9.5.1.8. individuals are protected from exploitation^
abuse, and heglect.

1.9.5.1.9. Individual's services plans are based on
person-centered planning and nriay be

/  incorporated into existing service plans or
documents .already being used by the
Contractor.

1.9.6. Client Fees and Donations

1.9.6.1. The Contractor shall comply with the donation
requirements for Title III Services. The Contractor;

1.9.6.1.1. May ask individuals receiving services for a
voluntary donation towards the cost of the
service, except as stated in Section 1.9.7. ■
Adult Protection Services;

1.9.6.1.2. May suggest an amount for donations in
accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-E 502.12;

1.9.6.1.3. Shall ensure the donation is purely
voluntary, and must not refuse services if an
individual is unable or unwilling to donate;

1.9.6.1.4. Shall not bill or invoice clients and/or their

families; and

DS
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1.9.6.2.

1.9.6.1.5. Shall ensure that all donations support the
program for which donations were given.

The Contractor shall comply with the fee requirements for
Title XX Services. The Contractor:

1.9.6.2.1. May charge fees to Individuals, (except as
stated in Section 1.9.7. Adult Protection

Services), receiving Title XX services
provided that the Contractor establishes a

sliding fee schedule and provides this
Information to individuals seeking services.

1.9.6.2.2. Shall ensure that the sliding fee schedule
complies with the requirements of New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 501.

1.9.6.2.3. May not charge fees to clients, referred by
the Department's Adult Protection Program,

'  for whom reports of abuse, neglect, self-
neglect and/or exploitation are under
investigation or have been founded or under
investigation.

1.9^6.2.4. Shall ensure that all fees support the
program for which donations were given.

1.9.7. Adult Protection Services

1.9.7.1. The Contractor shall report suspected abuse, neglect, self-
neglect, and/or exploitation of Incapacitated adults as
required by NH RSA 161-F: 46 of the Adult Protection law.

1.9.7^.2. The Contractor shall accept referrals of clients from the
Department's Adult Protection Program and provide them
with services described in this Agreement.

1.9.7.3. The Contractor shall inform the referring Adult Protection
Service staff of any changes in the client's situation or
other concerns.

1.9.7.4. The Contractor shall ensure that the payment received
from the Department for the services required in this
Agreement to clients who are active recipients of Adult
Protection Services, is payment in full for those services,
and musl'refrain from making any attempt to secure
additional reimbursement of any type.

1.9.8. Referring Clients to Other Services
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1.9.8.1. The Contractor shall identify and refer clients, to other
services and programs that may assist the client, as
applicable. )

1.9.9. Client Wait Lists

1.9.9.1. The Contractor shall ensure that all services covered by
this Agreement are provided to the extent that funds, staff
and/or resources for this purpose are available.

1.9.9.2. The Contractor shall maintain a wait list in accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E
502 when funding or resources are not available to provide
the requested services.

1.9.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure individuals with adult
protective needs in accordance with RSA 161 -F:42-57 are
given priority, and:

1.9.9.3.1. If the Contractor has a waitlist for providing
contracted services, then APS referrals shall
be given priority on that waitlist.

1.9.9.4. The Contractor shall include at a minimum the following
information on its wait list:

1.9.9.4.1. The individual's full name and date of birth.

1.9.9.4.2. The name of the service being requested.

1.9.9.4.3. The date upon which the individual applied
for services, which shall be the date the
application was received by .the Contractor.

1.9.9.4.4. The target date of implementing the services
based on the communication between the

individual and the Contractor.

1.9.9.4.5. The dale upon which the individual's name
was placed on the wait list, which shall be

the date of the notice of decision in which the
^  individual was determined eligible for Title

XX services.

1.9.9.4.6. The individual's assigned priority on the wait
list, determined in accordance with NH

Administrative Rules He-E 501 and 502.

1.9.9.4.7. A brief description of the individual's
circumstances and the services he or she

^  needs. _ds

if\X.
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1.9.9:5. The Contractor shall prioritize each individual's standing
on the wait list by determining the individual's urgency of
need in the following order:

1.9.9.5.1. Individual is in an institutional setting or is at
risk of being admitted to or discharged from
an institutional setting.

1.9.9.5.2. Declining mental or physical health of the
caregiver.

1.9.9.5.3. Declining mental or physical health of the
Individual.

1.9.9.5.4. Individual has no respite services while living
with a caregiver.

1.9.9.5.5. Length of time on the wait list.

1.9.9.5.6. When two (2) or more individuals on the wait
list have been assigned the same service
priority, the individual served first shall be the
one with the earliest application date.

1.9.9.5.7. Individuals who are being served under the
(  Adult Protection Program, as mandated in

NH RSA 161-F: 42-57 shall be exempt from
the wait list in accordance with NH

Administrative Rules He-E 501.14 (f) and
He-E 502.13.

1:9.9.6. The Contractor shall notify the individual in writing when
an individual is placed on the wait list.

1.9.9.7. The Contractor shall make the wait list available to the

Department upon request.

1.9.10. E-Studio Electronic Information System

1.9.10.1. The Contractor shall use the Department's E-Studio
electronic information system for uploading reports to the
Department and receiving important information from the
Department concerning time-sensitive announcements,

• policy releases, administrative rule adoptions, and other
critical information.

1.9.10.2. The Contractor shall identify all of the key personnel who
need to have E-Studio accounts to ensure that information

from the Department" can be shared with the necessary
staff.

1.'A-
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1.9.10.3. The Contractor shall ensure that their E-Studlo accounl{s)
are kept current and that the Department is notified when
a staff member is no longer working in the program so
his/her account can be terminated.

1.9.11. Grievance and Appeals Process

1.9.11.1. The Contractor shall maintain a system for tracking,
resolving, and reporting client complaints regarding its
services, processes, procedures, and staff that Includes,
but is not limited to:

1.9.11.1.1. The client's name.

1.9.11.1.2. The type of service received by the client.

1.9.11.1.3. The date of written complaint or concern of
the client.

1.9.11.1.4. The nature/subject of the complaint or
concern of the client.

1.9.11.1.5. The staff position in the agency who
addresses complaints and concerns.

1.9.11.1.6. The methods for infdrrning clients, of their
rights to file a complaint, concern, or an
appeal of the Contractor's decision.

1.9.11.2. The Contractor shall make any filed complaints or
concerns made by the client available to the Department
upon request.

1.9.12. Client Feedback
V.

1.9.12.1. The Contractor shall obtain client feedback as required in
New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501.12 and
He-E 502.11.

1.9.13. Support Services During an Emergency, Disaster or Crisis

1.9.13.1. The Contractor shall provide support services to eligible
individuals who are homebound in accordance with the

Older Americans Act during a declaration of emergency or
^ disaster, which may include delivery services for essential
needs.

1.9.13.2. The Contractor shall provide COVID-19 pandemic support
services, which may include, but not be limited to:

1.9.13.2.1. Disseminating information about COVID-19
vaccines, and directing individuals_D^ith
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.  questions to additional sources of
information.

1.9.13.2!2. Addressing inequity in COVID-19
vaccination access among older adults,
family caregivers. and aging network staff
and volunteers from communities defined by
race, ethnicity, geography, disability,
Income, sexual orientation, gender Identity,
and other factors.

1 1.9.13.2.3. Arranging and/or providing accessible
transportation to COVID-19 vaccination sites
for individuals and their caregivers.

1.9.13.2.4. Planning and organizing vaccination
activities.

1.9.13.2.5. Assisting older adults to receive COVID-19
booster shots, if necessary.

1.9.13.2.6. Providing Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) to staff and/or individuals served.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staff who have the skills to perform all
services specified in this Agreement,

.1.11. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry
out all of the functions, requirements, roles, and. duties in a timely fashion for
the number of clients and geographic area as identified in this Agreement.

1.12. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers .have
appropriate training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the
responsibilities of their respective positions.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel and training records and
• documentation of all individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications are
current.

1.14. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty (30) days of
the contract effective date that includes:

1.14.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key
personnel or other personnel during the period of this Agreement;

1.14.2. A description of how additional staff resources will be allocated in the
event of inability to meet any performance standard;

1.14.3. A description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff
replacements;
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1.14.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely
manner, staff replacements/additions with comparable experience;
and

1.14.5. A description of the method for training new staff members performing
duties required under this Agreement.

1.15. The Contractor shall'complete a criminal background check for each staff
^  member or volunteer who will be interacting with or providing hands-on care to

individuals in compliance with the requirements of New Hampshire

Administrative Rules He-P 818, Adult Day Programs, Section 809.17,
Personnel, and He-P 822, Home Care Sen/ice Provider Agencies, Section
822.17, Personnel.

1.16. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly' '
basis, or as othenvise requested by the Department.

1.17. The Contractor shall facilitate reviews of files conducted by the Department on
a semi-annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that may
include, but are not limited to:

1.17.1. Desk reviews; or
V

1.17.2. On-site reviews. i

1.18. Reporting

1.18.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the provision of Home
Health services to the Departmentto ensure program compliance. The
Contractor shall ensure:

1.20.1.1. The report is submitted on a pre-defined electronic form
supplied by the Department by the 15th day of the month
following the end of each quarter; and

1.20.1.2. The report includes, but is not limited to:

1.20.1.2.1. Expenses by program service provided.

1.20.1.2.2. Revenue, by program service provided, by
funding source.

1.20.1.2.3. Total amount of donation and/or fees

collected from all individuals as defined in

Section 1.9.6.

1.20.1.2.4. Actual Units served, by program service
provided, by funding source.

1.20.1.2.5. Number of unduplicated clients served, by
service provided, by funding source.

-OS
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1.20.1.2.6. Number of Title III and Title XX clients

/  served with funds riot provided by the
Department.

1.20.1.2.7. Unmet need/waiting list.

1.20.1.2.8. Lengths of time clients are on a waiting list.

1.20.1.2.9. The number of days individuals did not
receive planned service(s) due to the.
service(s) not being available due to
inadequate staffing or other related
Contractor issue.

I

1.20.1.2.10. Explanation describing the reasons for
individuals' not receiving their planned
services in this Agreement.

1.20.1.2.11. A plan to address how to resolve the issues
in Section 1.20.1.2.10.

1.18.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.19. Performance Measure

1.19.1. The Contractor shall ensure that all individuals' plans of care contain
elements of person-centered planning for services in accordance with
NH Administrative Rules He-E 502.17 and He-E 501.21 and as

confirmed by the Department during a site review.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

RFA-2028-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07 8-2.0 Contractor Ntials ̂
b/8/2U22
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3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve

,  compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Ciyil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss.; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have'speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report,- document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department.of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports..

3.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

RFA.2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07 B-Z.O Controclor Initials
■57B77C72
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4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. Ail records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect ail such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for rnalerials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall Include alj records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the^term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreerrient are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

-DS
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by;

1.1. 58.8% Federal funds,

1.1.1. 5.5% Older Americans Act Title lll-B, as awarded on April 27,
2022, by the Administration for Community Living, Title IIIB,
Supportive Services. CFDA 93.044, FAIN 2201NHOASS.

1.1.2. 53.3% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on October 1,

2021, by the Social Services Block Grant, CFDA 93.667, FAIN
2101NHSOSR

1.2. 41.2% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. . The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-2,
Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit "an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following,
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice: *

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otheiwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
. that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.beasinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services ^os
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105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form R»37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation ^d adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist;

5.

6.

7.

8.

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. . Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within. 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform

■ Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards. •

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status.of
implernentation of the corrective action plan.

— OS
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8.3. If Condition B or Condition G exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal 'audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

-08

1
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Exhibit C-1 Rate Sheet

Home Health Services - Waypoint (Hillsborough County) . .

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total# of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour 77,380 $12.00 $  928,560.00

Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour 10,476 $12.00 $  ■ 125,712.00

Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1,810 $16.00 $  28,960.00

Title. IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour 300 $25.73 $  7,719.00

7/1/2023 through 06/30/2024 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be
delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being

Requested for each
Service

Title XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour . 77,380 $12.00^ $  " 928,560.00

Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour .  .10,476 $12.00 $  125,712.00

Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1,810 .$16.00 $  28,960.00

Title IIIB Nursing 1/2Hour 300 $25.73 $  7,719.00

1  • , ^ ^ ^ ^
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Home Health Services - Waypoint (Merrimack County)

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

Adult In-Home Care Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

' anticipated to be

delivered.

Rate per

Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title .XX In Home Services 1/2 Hour ■ 22,366 $12.00 $  268,392.00
Title IIIB In Home .Services 1/2 Hour - 4,343 $12.00 $  52,116.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1,563 '$16.00 $  25,008.00
Title IIIB Nursinp 1/2 Hour 0 $25.73 $

7/1/2023 through 06/30/2024 Service Units

Adult In-Horne Care Unit Type.

Total # of Units of

Service .

anticipated to be.

delivered.

Rate per
Service

Total Amount of ..

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Title XX In Horne Services 1/2.Mour 22,366 $12.00 $  268,392.00
Title IIIB In Home Services 1/2 Hour .-4,343 * $12.00 $  52,116.00
Title IIIB Home Health Aide 1/2 Hour 1,563 $16.00 $  25,008.00
Title IIIB Nursing 1/2 Hour .  : 0 $25.73 $

Waypoint

RFA-2023-BEAS-06-HOMEH-07

Exhibit C-2

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

—03

•7 .

6/8/2022

Date;



Docusign Envelope ID: 6BC88B5B-40E0-4818-991A-EF352103E865

OocuSlgrt Envelope ID: 21B1AB03^579^1E8-92F&-2£A4079984C6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

r

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to. make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination'of grants, or governrnenl wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it wiil or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of, his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenvise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

"09^  OSg
Exhtbi] 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor iniiiala
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yy

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numt^erfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar "days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the"sile(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant,

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: waypoi nt

•OocsSl0A*d tor;

iJW-
DOCttStQAM I

6/8/2022 '
Name^^^'^Ja^°Alvare2 de Toledo
Title, president and CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND. HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
Xhild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Sen/ices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). }

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: waypoint

6/8/2022

Diti
Title, president and CEO

OecgSlontdby:

Exhibll E-Cerlificalion Regarding Lobbying Vendor initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45.CFR Part 76 regarding' Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below. ■

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. .

A. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

1

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and

■  "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for tower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous^ A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
' participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and (

Exhibit F - CbrtiricaUon Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
,  And Other Responsibility Matters 6/8/2022
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings;

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded' from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,- bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving .stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11 .A. have not within a tfiree-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default..

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: .
13.1. are not presently'debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective pahicipant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Volunta^ Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6/8/2022

Contractor Name: waypoint

DecuSigntd by;

Date de Toledo

president and CEO

Exhibit F - Cortiricaljon Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any $ut:>grantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or beneHts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirenients:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government sen/ices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in prograrns or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall k>e grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government vnde suspension or
debarment.

— D»
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and subrhltting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: waypoint

■DMaSlQntd by;oocwsipfttd I

6/8/2022

varez de Toledo
Title, president and CEO

r»os
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, .day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities us^ for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty, of up to
Stobo per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenlirted in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name; waypoi nt

-OocuS>9nt4 by:oocvSiji*#® I

6/8/2022

Date Name!^5'i^y^A''lvare2 de Toledo
president and CEO

Exhibil H - C«rtirtcation Regarding Contractor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABfUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlll. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of-
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal repreisentative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under Hlf^AA by the United States
Department of Health and Human.Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or receivp<Fby
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contrador Initials^
Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/8/2022
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, I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. • *Secretarv° shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
.a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except-as reasonably necessary, to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity..

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will .be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the. purpose for which it was
•disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in "accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security,^and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

/

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifie^

3/2014 Exhibil I ^ ConUactor iniUals^^
Health insurance Portability Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

•0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to'the protected health information has been

mitigated".

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and •'
Breach Notification Rule.

d.. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business asspfiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi/I^ HI

3/2014 ExHbill ContfaclofInilials^-- ' i
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the f
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall .make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of'PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate' shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event,ariy individual requests access to, amendment of," or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Busiiness
Associate to violate HIPAA<and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead'respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or

' destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenA^ise agreed.to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the.return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 ExWWl I Contfactor Initial?^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation($) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
useor disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ■

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may.either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determirtes that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from'time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule,

3/2014 ExhiWtl Coniractofirulials^ ■'
Health Insurance Portability Act
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
persbn(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. '

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices

DBMUfrCflCBiPl.

waypo.int

Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine Santaniello

Name of Authorized Representative
Associate commissioner

Title of Authorized Representative

6/8/2022

Date . ^

Contractor

«eD»uwPir«Be... . . .
Signature of Authorized Representative

Borja Alvarez de Toledo

Name of Authorized Representative

president and CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

6/8/2022

Date

3/2014 Exhibtll
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA1 COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sut)award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity '
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the enbty (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and natiies of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the av^rd or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: waypoint

by:^  Dy:

6/8/2022

<16 T6IW6

president and CEO

r—^I  .
Exhibit J - Cenificatlon Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor InlUab

AccounlabiBty And Transpaiency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/8/2022
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

09-550-5905
1. The DUNS number for vour entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts.'
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

'gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
.  cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m{a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986? • '

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

('
4. The names ahd compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUroHHS/n07l3

Exhibit J - Cerlificatloo Regarding the Federal Fundir>g
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

■ 1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With, regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meahing as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one parly to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

. Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not Jimited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms.of this Contract.

5.. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts'(either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without "the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

— 0$
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mail; all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network' that is
not designated by the State- of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and,
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish'
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked-

-  or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc;

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Inforrtiation at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R..§
,160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall rnean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable., unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. / .

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute.a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

/

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Info.rmalion in response to a

•w
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request for. disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpcjena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be txjund by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End'
User yiust only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data, obtained under this Contract may not l>e used for-
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to-the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance v/ith the terms of this
Contract.

I
METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have

been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons' authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting | services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

^■1
6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiried ground

mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via" an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
iristalled on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from, which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will'
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

•11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

I. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will.have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data coliected in
^connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shail also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cioud service or cloud storage capabilities, and inciudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4.- The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section iV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidentiai Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest antl-vlral. anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The,environment, as a

^03
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection arid firevvall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor wiir maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems),'the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described,in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology,, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at

.  time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary- to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrriination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivativedata or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services,.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to" protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., taper disk, paper, etc.). r—08
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3. The Contractor wll maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
'  detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or

Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department'confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services' for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. .

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determiries the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to. complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey.be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not"store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
■prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member .within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all cosits. of response and recovery fromC-M
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with, website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12'. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established.by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of. New Hampshire network.

-15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this ■
Contract to only those authorized End Users, who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection wilh.purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Conlractpr must ensure that all End Users:
a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,

implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
,  PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to. and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

-OS
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
•  identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. .only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in ail cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit; at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a .risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at. the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

D»
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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